Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING, AUDIT AND GENERAL
PURPOSES COMMITTEE

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Monday, 29th July, 2019 at 7.00 pm

To:

Clir J.E. Woolley (Chairman)
Clir S.J. Masterson (Vice-Chairman)

Clir J.B. Canty
Clir A.K. Chowdhury
ClIr Veronica Graham-Green
CllIr Christine Guinness
ClIr A.J. Halstead
Clir L. Jeffers
ClIr Prabesh KC
Clir P.F. Rust
Clir Jacqui Vosper

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Committee Administrator,
Kathy Flatt, Democratic and Customer Services, Tel. (01252 398829) or email
kathy.flatt@rushmoor.gov.uk.




AGENDA
MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 12)
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 6th June, 2019 (copy attached).
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 — (Pages 13 - 122)

To consider the Executive Head of Finance Report No. FIN1923 (copy attached),
which sets out the financial statements for 2018/19.

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE - (Pages 123 - 158)

To consider the Audit Manager's Report No. AUD1907 (copy attached), which
provides an update on Quarter 1 and expected deliverables for Quarter 2 and
Quarter 3.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS 2018/19 — (Pages 159 - 178)

To receive the Executive Head of Finance Report No. FIN1922 (copy attached),
which sets out treasury management operations carried out during 2018/19.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the
agenda by writing to the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices,
Farnborough by 5.00 pm three working days prior to the meeting.




AGENDA ITEM No. 1

LICENSING, AUDIT AND GENERAL
PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Thursday, 6th June, 2019 at the Council Offices, Farnborough at
7.00 pm.

Voting Members
Clir J.E. Woolley (Chairman)
ClIr S.J. Masterson (Vice-Chairman)

Clir J.B. Canty
Clir A.K. Chowdhury
ClIr Veronica Graham-Green
Clir Christine Guinness
ClIr L. Jeffers
Clir Prabesh KC
Clir P.F. Rust

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Clir A.J. Halstead and Clir
Jacqui Vosper.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 25th March, 2019 were approved and signed by
the Chairman.

RUSHMOOR DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP - GOVERNANCE AND
OVERSIGHT ARRANGEMENTS

The Committee considered the Chief Executive’s Report No. CEX1903, which set
out the Council’s proposed governance and oversight arrangements for the
Rushmoor Development Partnership LLP and the associated decision making
activities of the Council. It was also proposed that this model could be used for
future joint venture or company arrangements.

The Report advised Members that the Rushmoor Development Partnership Board
consisted of three directors from Hill Investments Partnership Limited and three from
Rushmoor Borough Council. The Council’s directors were currently the Leader of
the Council, the Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder and the Executive
Director (Customers, Digital and Rushmoor 2020). Both parties had an equal say in
decision making and governance processes, with each partner having one vote each
in decision making. If any matters under disagreement were not able to be resolved
within a fixed period then this entered a deadlock process where the matter would be
escalated to the Council’'s Chief Executive and the equivalent Hill Investments
Partnership Limited Senior Officer for resolution with the support of experts or
specialists as appropriate.

Page 1



It was noted that Members would be engaged and updated on the work of the
Rushmoor Development Partnership through regular seminars, the Policy and
Project Advisory Board, together with six-monthly reports to the Council’s
shareholder (the Chief Executive). The Chief Executive would enable consideration
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of appropriate reports on progress and the
Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee on any governance matters.
The Report set out a flowchart to illustrate the annual cycle of Rushmoor
Development Partnership LLP/Rushmoor Borough Council governance and
approvals. The Report also advised Members on the Rushmoor Development
Partnership’s site development process and associated land transfers.

The Report stressed that the Council had to ensure that its business was conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money was
safeguarded, accounted for and spent economically, efficiently and effectively. This
applied equally to the Council’'s partnerships, which had become an increasingly
important way of delivering strategic objectives and services but which also
produced particular risk and governance issues. The Council had to ensure that
partnerships were linked to the Council’s democratic processes to give assurance
that the Council was not exposed to unacceptable or unforeseen risks. It was noted
that, for the majority of matters arising from the establishment of, and proposed site
development processes for, the Rushmoor Development Partnership, the Council’s
established arrangements for decision making, as set out in the Constitution,
together with statutory guidance from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government and other guidance from CIPFA were considered sufficient. However, if
any changes to the Constitution were required, these would be picked up during the
current review.

During discussion, the Chief Executive answered Members’ questions regarding the
agreement of the value of Council land to be transferred to the Rushmoor
Development Partnership, the resolution of deadlock disagreements’ and the history
to the creation of the Partnership.

RESOLVED: That

(i) the proposed governance arrangements, as outlined in the Chief Executive’'s
Report No. CEX1903 be approved; and

(i) the governance arrangements be reviewed in twelve months’ time.
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 - DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee received the Executive Head of Finance’s Report No. FIN1921,
which set out the duties and responsibilities for the Committee to provide effective

scrutiny of the Council’s financial statements.

A copy of the draft Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 was tabled at the meeting and
Members had also been provided with a link to an electronic copy of the document.

' It is advised that there is a section on “Deadlock” in the agreement signed to establish the
Rushmoor Development Partnership. The original report to the Cabinet on 18th September 2018
includes a copy of the agreement and the section on deadlock is on page 30, section 15.

Page 2



That Statement of Accounts was an annual publication of the Council’s financial
position, containing a record of the assets and liabilities of the Council and the cost
of the services that the Council provided. The Statement of Accounts had been
prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC) under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 provided for the requirement for
the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 to be available for public inspection online for a
30 day working period commencing 3rd June to 12th July 2019.

The Committee was reminded that, in providing effective scrutiny of the financial
statements, Members should satisfy themselves that appropriate steps had been
taken to meet statutory and professional practices, together with having regard to
such factors as: materiality; transparency; valuation; consistency; completeness;
legality/legislation; classification; economic climate/going concern principle; risk of
error; fraud; and, rights and obligations.

The Report advised Members that consideration should also be given to what
sources of information that could be used to help them approve the accounts and
from whom they might seek assurance regarding the financial performance of the
organisation. Such sources included: internal audit; the work of the Committee in
considering fraud, risk and internal audit reporting; statements of senior officers;
external audit opinion; other external evaluation (e.g. Local Government Peer
Review); other inspection regimes (e.g. HMRC - VAT, PAYE); financial and
performance reports; Members’ own knowledge of the affairs of the Council; the
context (i.e. economic climate, interest rates, property prices, inflation); and, expert
knowledge (e.g. actuarial reports, property valuations).

It was stressed that Members of the Committee were not required to have a detailed
knowledge of every transaction within the accounts or any detailed, technical
accounting knowledge. Members should, however, consider the consistency of the
information being presented and ask questions to gain reassurance.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Head of Finance’s Report No. FIN1921 be noted.
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - 2018/19

The Committee considered the Audit Manager’s Report No. AUD1906, which set out
the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 for publication alongside the Council’s
Statement of Accounts.

It was noted that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required councils to
prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement in order to report publicly on
the extent to which the Council complied with its Code of Corporate Governance,
including how the Council had monitored the effectiveness of arrangements in the
year and on any planned changes to governance arrangements in the coming year.

The Committee was advised that assurance statements had been obtained from
Heads of Service to demonstrate how governance arrangements within their service

Page 3



met the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering good governance in Local Government
framework — 2016 Edition’. Actions to improve the governance arrangements were
set out in the Annual Governance Statement and work undertaken towards
implementing these actions would be regularly reviewed by the Internal Corporate
Governance Group and the Committee.

During discussion, reference was made to the review and update of the Council’s
Constitution which was currently taking place, to be overseen by the Corporate
Governance Group. Members also raised questions regarding the Procurement
Strategy and a target date for the annual renewal of the Capital Strategy.

RESOLVED: That approval be given to
(i) the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2018/19; and

(i) the publication of the Governance Statement alongside the Council’s
Statement of Accounts for 2018/19.

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2018/19

The Committee considered the Audit Manager’s Report No. AUD1905, which set out
an updated Local Code of Corporate Governance for review and approval.

The Report advised that the updated Code was based on the CIPFA/SOLACE
publication ‘Delivering good governance in Local Government: Framework 2016
Edition’ and was based on seven core principles:

behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law

o ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

. defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental
benefits

o determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes

o developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it

o managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management

. implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver
effective accountability.

The Code also identified the actions and behaviours taken by the Council in relation

to each of the core principles and associated sub-principles. These were
summarised in Appendix A of the Code with supporting evidence in Appendix B.

Page 4



During discussion, Members raised questions regarding the principle of social value
in contracts and also the need to make the document easily understandable by those
not involved in local government.

RESOLVED: That the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance 2018/19 be
approved, as set out in the Audit Manager’s Report No. AUD1905.

INTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT OPINION

The Committee considered the Audit Manager's Report No. AUD1904 which set out
the Internal Audit coverage, findings and performance for 2018/19 and presented the
Audit Manager’s overall assurance opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control environment. The
Report also covered the self-assessment carried out against the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the progress on the Quality and Assurance
Improvement Plan (QAIP) for the year.

It was noted that, in assessing the level of assurance to be given for 2018/19, the
opinion had been based on:

. all audits undertaken in 2018/19

. the result of any follow-up action carried out in 2018/19 in respect of previous
audit work

o any significant recommendations not accepted by management and the
potential consequences

. NFI fair processing checks

o participation on a working group to develop and improve risk management
throughout the Council

o participation on a working group to incorporate the requirements of the General
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) across the organisation

o participation on a corporate governance working group.

The Report advised that the Audit Manager had given an overall reasonable
assurance opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, control
and governance for 2018/19. However, there were a few areas where action would
enhance the adequacy and effectiveness and these included the rolling out of the
reconstituted risk management process across the Council and the development of
an Asset Management Strategy. These were issues that had already been identified
by managers and they were working to address them.

The Report set out a summary of the results of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards self-assessment. It was noted that there were eleven overall standards,
which were broken down into 336 fundamental principles, against which compliance
was measured. The Report advised that, in 2018/19, the Council had been 91%
compliant, 3% partially compliant, 2% not compliant and 4% not applicable. The
Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan would address some of the non-
compliance and partial compliance over the following financial year.

Page 5



Members noted that work carried out in 2018/19 towards the Quality Assurance and
Improvement Plan had resulted in the overall non-compliance being reduced by
1.5%. A full copy of the Plan was set out in Appendix C to the Report.

During discussion, Members raised questions regarding the processes in place to
make the Council fully compliant, the resources available within Internal Audit, the
time allowed to turn around limited assurances on audit areas and contract
management.

RESOLVED: That

(i) the contents of the Audit Manager’s Report No. AUD1904, including the audit
opinion, be noted:

(i) the self-assessment exercise against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards, as set out in the Report, be noted; and

(iii) the Quality and Assurance Improvement Plan for 2019/20, as set out in
Appendix C to the Report, be endorsed.

INTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT PLAN

The Committee considered the Audit Manager's Report No. AUD1902 which set out
the Internal Audit — Audit Plan for 2019/20. The Plan provided a framework for the
use of audit resources and ensured that resources were focused on activities that
would enable the Audit Manager to provide the organisation with an overall
assurance of the internal control environment.

The Report advised Members on the methodology for compiling audit coverage,
including the risk universe and risk criteria and full details were set out in the Report.
Heads of Service had been consulted on the risk areas which were high risk on the
audit universe to ensure that these were appropriate to be reviewed within the
financial year and to highlight any areas of concern within their services.

The Audit Plan would include a review of key financial systems on a three-year
rolling basis, adjusted for any significant system developments or identified
weaknesses. Other areas of coverage were based on various risk factors developed
by Internal Audit and input from Heads of Service.

The Committee noted that there was currently a vacant full-time auditor post.
Currently, the work of this post was being carried out by contract auditors.

The first six months’ work of the 2019/20 Audit Plan was set out in Appendix A to the
report and had been selected from the higher risk areas detailed in Appendix B. The
list of audits was subject to review due to the changing needs of the organisation or
resource availability and an update would be provided at the next meeting.

RESOLVED: That the Annual Plan for 2019/20, as set out in the Audit Manager’s

Report No. AUD1902 and to be monitored and updated on a rolling quarterly basis,
be approved.

Page 6



APPOINTMENTS 2019/20
(1) Outside Bodies —

RESOLVED: That the appointment of representatives to outside bodies for the
2019/20 Municipal Year, as set out in the Appendix (set out below), be approved.

(2) Appointments and Appeals Panel —
RESOLVED: That the following Members be appointed to serve on the

Appointments and Appeals Panel for the 2019/20 Municipal Year (1 Conservative: 1
Labour: 1 Liberal Democrat and a representative of the Cabinet):

Conservative Group Clir S.J. Masterson with Clir J.E.
Woolley as Standing Deputy

Labour Group ClIr P.F. Rust with Clir Christine
Guinness as Standing Deputy

Liberal Democrat Group A representative from the
Liberal Democrats

Cabinet Member Clir Adrian Newell

(3) Licensing Sub-Committee —

RESOLVED: That the following Members be appointed to serve on the Licensing
Sub-Committee for the 2019/20 Municipal Year (3 Conservative: 2 Labour):

Conservative Group Clirs S.J. Masterson, Jacqui
Vosper and J.E. Woolley

Labour Group Clirs P.F. Rust and Christine
Guinness

(4) Licensing Sub-Committee (Alcohol and Entertainments) —

RESOLVED: That the Head of Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships be
authorised to make appointments from the membership of the Licensing, Audit and
General Purposes Committee to the Licensing Sub-Committee (Alcohol and
Entertainments) in accordance with the procedure agreed by the Committee at its
meeting on 21st May, 2009.

Page 7



APPENDIX

LICENSING, AUDIT AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
6TH JUNE 2019

REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20

NAME OF ORGANISATION

REPRESENTATIVE(S) 2019/20

Age Concern, Farnborough

Clirs C.P. Grattan, Jacqui Vosper and
one vacancy

Aldershot & Farnborough Festival of
Music & Art

Clirs Gaynor Austin, A.S. Dekker and
K.H. Muschamp

Aldershot Military Museum Strategic
Local Agreement Meeting

Clirs Mrs D.B. Bedford and Sophie Porter

Aldershot Town Centre Business and
Retailers Group

Clirs Gaynor Austin, M.S. Choudhary,
Sophia Choudhary, Christine Guinness
and Prabesh KC

Basingstoke Canal Joint Management
Committee

Clirs J.H. Marsh and Veronica Graham-
Green with Clirs C.P. Grattan and P.G.
Taylor as Standing Deputies

Blackbushe Airport Consultative
Committee

Clir P.J. Cullum with CliIr J.E. Woolley as
Standing Deputy

Blackwater Valley Advisory Panel for
Public Transport

Clir M.L.Sheehan and M.J. Roberts with
Clirs T.D. Bridgeman and R.M. Cooper
as Standing Deputies

Blackwater Valley Countryside
Partnership

Clirs Mrs D.B. Bedford and P.G. Taylor
with and ClIr A.J. Halstead as Standing
Deputy

Brickfields Country Park, Friends of

Three Manor Park Ward Members (Clirs
D.E. Clifford, P.1.C. Crerar and B.A.
Thomas)

Page 8




Cove Brook Greenway Group

Clirs Veronica Graham-Green and L.
Jeffers

District Council’s Network (DCN)

Leader of the Council (Clir D.E. Clifford)

Enterprise M3 Joint Leaders Board

Leader of the Council (Clir D.E. Clifford)

Farnborough Aerodrome Consultative
Committee

Cabinet Member (ClIr M.L. Sheehan) and
Clir P.G. Taylor (as a representative of
an adjoining ward) with Clir M.J. Tennant
as Standing Deputy

Farnborough and Cove War Memorial
Hospital Trust Limited

Clir C.J. Stewart

457 Farnborough Squadron

Clir J.H. Marsh

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local
Government Association

Leader of the Council (Clir D.E. Clifford)
and ClIr P.G. Taylor (Cabinet Member)

Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
AGM

Clirs Veronica Graham-Green and
Marina Munro

Hampshire Districts Health and
Wellbeing Forum

Clir Marina Munro (Cabinet Member)

Hampshire Police and Crime Panel

Clir K.H. Muschamp (Cabinet Member)

Local Government Association - General
Assembly

Leader of the Council (Clir D.E. Clifford)

North Hampshire Area Road Safety
Council

Cllr Mara Makunura with Clir P.G. Taylor
as Standing Deputy

North Hampshire Community Safety
Partnership

Clir M.L. Sheehan (Cabinet Member)

Page 9




Joint Scrutiny Committee
(Hart/Basingstoke/Rushmoor) North
Hampshire Community Safety
Partnership

Two representatives from Chairman and
Vice-Chairmen of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and Clir A.H.
Crawford with Clir K. Dibble and
remaining Scrutiny Chairman or Vice-
Chairman as nominated substitutes

Parity for Disability

Clir S.J. Masterson with Clir Sue Carter
as Standing Deputy

Project Integra Strategic Board

Clir M.L. Sheehan (Cabinet Member)

Royal British Legion (Farnborough
Branch) Remembrance Day
Arrangements

Clir Mrs. D.B. Bedford

Rushmoor Citizens’ Advice Bureaux
Trustee Board

Clirs P.F. Rust and C.J. Stewart

Rushmoor Development Partnership LLP
(RDP)

Clirs D.E. Clifford, M.J. Tennant and
Executive Director (Mrs. Karen Edwards)

Rushmoor Local Housing Company —
Board Directors

Clirs. K. Dibble, K.H. Muschamp and J.E.
Woolley

Rushmoor in Bloom Forum

Clirs Mrs. D.B. Bedford, M.S. Choudhary,
Mrs Liz Corps, C.P. Grattan and Sophie
Porter

Rushmoor Partners Network

Clirs Marina Munro, K.H. Muschamp and
Clir D.E. Clifford

Rushmoor Voluntary Services Board

Clir S.J. Masterson

Rushmoor Youth Forum (currently a
virtual forum)

Clirs J.B. Canty, Sue Carter and A.J.
Halstead

Page 10




South East Employers — Full Meeting

Clir P.G. Taylor (Cabinet Member) and
one vacancy as Standing Deputy

South East Employers — The Local
Democracy and Accountability Network

Clirs P.F. Rust and J.E. Woolley

South East England Councils (SEEC)
All Member Meeting

Clir D.E. Clifford (Cabinet Member)

Thames Basin Heaths Joint Strategic
Partnership Board

Clir Marina Munro (Cabinet Member with
responsibility for Planning Policy)

West End Centre Management
Committee

Clirs M.S. Choudhary and Sophie Porter

The meeting closed at 8.11 pm.

CLLR J.E. WOOLLEY (CHAIRMAN)

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 2

LICENSING AUDIT & GENERAL EXECUTIVE HEAD OF FINANCE
PURPOSES REPORT NO: FIN1923
COMMITTEE

29 JULY 2018

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19

SUMMARY:

The purpose of this report is to inform Members’ of audit progress for the
Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2018/19, the process for approving and
publishing the statement of accounts and to draw to the Committee's attention the
fact that the deadline for issuing a final set of audit statements of accounts and
audit opinion will not be met by 315t July 2019.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the Committee:

)] Note the Auditor’s Update Report;

i) Note the financial statements for 2018/19;

iii) Note the process for approval and publication of the statement of
accounts

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1  The Council published a draft statement of account 2018/19 on 315t May 2019.
The Council is required under regulation to obtain an independent external audit
opinion on the true and fair nature of the statement of accounts. Following
provision of the external audit opinion the relevant Council Committee (being
Licencing, Audit and General Purposes Committee) is required to approve the
accounts and publish both the approved set of account and the audit opinion
by 315t July 2019.

1.2 The Council’s external auditor audit opinion will not be available by the 315t July.
The delay in issuing the opinion is due to an ongoing property valuation query
related to the depot. A final valuation of the depot was received on 9t July 2019.
The valuation is materially lower than the cost of constructing the depot. The
valuation methodology has been internally challenged and discussed with the
Council's external auditor on 10" July. Due to the materiality difference
between the cost and valuation the Council has commissioned a second
independent valuation and EY will undertake separate assurance work that
cannot be completed before 315 July due to lead in time of EY’s specialist
valuation team.

Page 13



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT REGULATION

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require an external auditor
to provide an opinion on the true and fair nature of the statement of accounts.
Upon receipt of the audit opinion paragraph 10 of the regulation requires a
committee of the Council to consider and approve the Statement and ensure
that it is signed by the chairman of the approving committee. Following
approval, the Statement must be published by the 315t July 2019.

Paragraph 10 (2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulation 2015 outlines the
process for publication and approval when an audit has not been concluded by
315t July 2019.

The Council is required to publish as soon as practically possible the reason for
not publishing an audited set of accounts by the 315t July 2019 deadline.

As soon as practicable after receipt of the auditor’s opinion the Licencing, Audit
and General Purposes Committee must approve the statement of accounts for
2018/19 that contain the following:

e Statement of accounts together with certified audit opinion
e Annual Governance Statement
e Narrative Statement

Following Committee approval, the final statement of accounts along with the
audit opinion must be published.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19

The Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 has been prepared in line with CIPFA’s
‘Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting’ for 2018/19, under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in accordance with the

The Statement of Accounts consists of the following sections and is attached
at Appendix A (to follow).

e Narrative Statement

e Statement of Responsibilities

e Core Financial Statements — Movement in Reserves, Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow.

e Notes to the Core Financial Statements — including accounting policies

e Collection Fund and accompanying notes

A summary of the adjustments between draft statement of accounts and
statement of accounts disclosed in Appendix A is given below:

Page 14



e Property Plant and Equipment decreased by £6m
e Investment Property by £5.6m

4 AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 2018/19

4.1  The auditors have substantially completed their audit for the 2018/19 financial
year and their status update is attached at Appendix B.

5 Conclusion

5.1  The council and external auditors will work together to achieve an audit opinion
by the next scheduled Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee on
239 September 2019. The Council will publish the unaudited statement of
accounts 2018/19 as presented in Appendix A on its website by 315t July 2019
and outline the reason for delay in the audit process.

Contact Details:

Report author:

Alan Gregory - Finance Manager
01252 398443
Alan.gregory@rushmoor.gov.uk

Head of Service:

David Stanley — Executive Head of Finance
01252 398440

David. Stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk

Page 15


mailto:Alan.gregory@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:Alan.gregory@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:David.%20Stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:David.%20Stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



| purchased

oy

RUSHMOOR

UGH COUNS™

LISTEN
LEARN
DELIVER

e

|

i & »

Statement of Accounts and
Annual Governance Statement
2018 -19

RUSHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Page 18



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Narrative Statement

Statement of Responsibilties

Statement of Accounts

Core Financial Statements
Movement in Reserves Statement
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Balance Sheet
Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Other Accounting Statements and Associated Notes
Collection Fund

Auditor’s Report

Annual Governance Statement

Glossary of Terms

Contents

Page 19

12

13

14

15

16

17

70

73

78

91



Page 20



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement
Narrative Statement from the Chief Financial Officer
ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW AND ENVIRONMENT
1. An introduction to Rushmoor

The Borough of Rushmoor, with an estimated population of around

95,800, covers an area of 3,905 hectares at the northeast corner of

Hampshire, with its eastern boundary with Surrey being formed by

the River Blackwater. London is some thirty miles away and the

Borough is served by direct road and rail links to the capital and

the south coast. Rushmoor includes the towns of Aldershot, with its . &, . ..
world famous military history and Farnborough, long noted as the

birthplace of aeronautical research and development and served

by Farnborough Airport.

The urban area extends the full length of the Borough from the southern boundary with Farnham to the towns of Frimley
and Camberley across the River Blackwater in the north.

The military area and Farnborough Airport occupy the land between Aldershot and Farnborough and to the west of those
towns, and works continue on Wellesley, a major redevelopment of an area of former Ministry of Defence land north of
Aldershot, which will provide an additional 3,850 properties over the next fourteen years.

2. Council services and purpose

Rushmoor Borough Council (RBC) delivers more than 100 local services to the communities of Aldershot and
Farnborough, including core services such as rubbish and recycling collection, street cleaning, planning, environmental
health, housing, parks and leisure facilities.

The Council is more complex than ever before and plays an essential role in broad areas like engaging with and where
necessary, supporting local communities and business, helping the most vulnerable in society and making sure our
Borough continues to develop and thrive economically with an extensive regeneration programme.

There are significant financial challenges faced by Rushmoor and other Councils across the Country due to Government’s
austerity measures and funding policies, which have put increasing pressure on local public sector finances. The Council
has effectively managed its resources through these challenges with sound financial management. The next few years,
however, will be particularly demanding as we work towards meeting reductions in our budgets and unknown impacts of
central government funding reviews and implications of Brexit.

Page 21


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Wellingtonstatue.jpg

Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

ORGANISATIONAL MODEL
3. Political Structure of the Council in the 2018/19 Municipal Year

Rushmoor has 13 wards and the Council consists of 39 elected Members. The political make-up of the Council during
2018/19 was as stated below:

Party Councillers
Conservative 26
Labour 11
Liberal Democrat .
Independent .
Total number of elected members 39

The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure arising from the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. The requirements of the Act are such that the Leader of the
Council has responsibility for the appointment of Members of the Cabinet, the allocation of Portfolios and the delegation of
Executive Functions.

4. Management Structure of the Council

The Council has two senior management boards. Executive Leadership team (ELT), which consists of the Chief Executive,
two Executive Directors, Executive Head of Finance and Corporate Legal Services Manager. ELT consider and co-
ordinates the strategic direction of the Council. The second board is the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), consisting of
the Chief Executive, two Executive Directors and Heads of Service. The CLT considers and co-ordinates the management
and future plans of the Council, providing operational leadership and support to elected Members alongside the delivery of
Council services.

The Executive Head of Finance (Chief Financial Officer) and Executive Director of Operations, as Monitoring Officer, are
both members of CLT and ELT, ensuring that these key statutory roles have on-going access to the most senior level of
the Council.

An outline of the structure is as follows:

Executive Leadership Team (ELT)

Chief Executive

d
e
d

Executive Director Executive Director

[Customers, Digital & (Operations) Executive Head of Corporate
Rushmoor 2020) Deputy CEx & Monitoring Finance (5151) Legal Manager
Officer

Page 22



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

4. Management Structure of the Council (continued)

Corporate Leadership Team (CLT)

Rushmoor Chief Executive D - Executive Team
Corporate Leadership
T=am Paul Shackley
1
1 ]
f . a Ny . 7
Executive Director Executive Director
[Customers, Digital & {Operations)
Rushmoor 2020) Deputy CEx & Monitoring Officer
K Edward i
\ aren ards J lan Harrison
I
J |
r—M S é Head of Head of IT, A Executive Head of Head of Head of, N
lajor Projects Projects Head of . Democra
and Customer : . Ecom?my, Operational ik
. - and Finance Planning & . Strategy &
Regeneration Experience . ) Services .
Exccutive Facilities {5151} Strategic Partnerships
Colin Housing James
— Paul Brooks Eckworth Nick David e Andrew s .
Head of \ Harding Stanley Tim Mills Colver CEECEEE
People Legal
({Interim) Manager
Estelle Catriona
Righy Herbert
' N N/ N N ' ™ 4 ™ 4 Community ™~ Y '
Safety (inc Democracy
ccTv) Elections
Customer F—
; n }
) ) FOETETEE L Building Control S
Capital Projects Improvemant Co-location Bereavemeant Cabinet -
- Benefits Development Cari Support Saolicitor to the
Hurnan Highways and Customer Facdilities . Management races Council
Resourcas Infrastructure Intelligence & . e Enforcement & Partnerships e
i Property and Insight ITE I-)lgltal E Inzurance Econamy, Town Dperat_'lcnal Strategy & Mon;ul-ﬂ'?;g
Learning and Estates csu Prajects Procuremant Centres & Parking Performance Offi
Development Website Revenues Cufture ey e =
i) i W nm i
Payroll RPEgEnElEtIDI'I Website Strategy Infrastructure ] Planning Palicy e Community Legal
rogramme P Risk Development
Communications . . GDPR [DPO)
Msanagement Skills Housing Neishbourhood
Branding [sRO) Strategic Options Renewal Land Charges
Media relations Houszing Leisure e
Licensing
Private Sector
\. J\ J N\ J J J O\ J N\ __fewine SN\ J\ J
GOVERANCE

5. Governance arrangements

Governance arrangements are outlined within the Annual Governance Statement on page 78 of this document.

RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES

5. Risks Management

A risk management strategy is in place to evaluate and identify risk. There are clearly defined processes to support robust
decision making through the understanding of risk, whether an opportunity or threat exists and the likely impact. We
believe that our performance monitoring, both financial and non-financial, our governance arrangements and our focus on
the sustainability of the organisation, mitigates the risks we are facing and we are well placed to respond to the ever-

changing environment.

Set out on the following page are the key risks from the Council’s Corporate risk register:

Page 23



Rushmoor Borough Council

5. Risks Management (continued)

Risk

Impact

Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Narrative Statement

Mitigation

Large Regeneration
Projects

IT: Information
Assurance / Security

Safeguarding
Arrangements
Safeguarding duties
under Children's Act -
adults and children

T19 Hampshire
County Council (HCC)
Transformation
Programme

A) Parking
Enforcement changes

B) Agency agreements
ending

C) Waste disposal
contract changes

D} Waste recycling
centres closure

E) Social inclusion
service funding
changes

* Risk to financial viability of schemes-
external influences such as market
values

* Affordability to Authority

* Risk of legal challenge during
compulsory purchase option (CPO)

= Risk of furtherdecline in town
centres, effecting local economy

* Partnercommitmente.g. other
landowners & competing priorities

* Holding costs during assemblhy of
project

* Risk of system compromise / data
breach / data loss and service loss.

* Potentialfor seriousinjury, death etc.

* Reputationalimpact to the Council

* Finesand loss of confidence in
service users.

* Decrease morale fromworkers
involved with service provision.

A) Potential loss of jobsin back office
(TUPE).

B) Potential loss of traffic management
agency work and posts (TUPE). No
financial impact - majorloss in
controlfinfluence.

C) Potentially significant impact on the
RBC waste contract.
D) Increased waiting times for recycling

centres.

E)} Potential risk of reduction in support
services forvulnerable homeless

*  Farnborough Civic Quarter Master Plan

* Regular oversight meetings with
Elected Members

* Bids being made forexternalfunding

* Investigating sharing risk through
partnership with private developers

* Legal advice soughton CPO

* Robustregeneration functions with
access to appropriate levels of
expertise and resource fully
established during 2018/19.

* Publicengagementaround major
projects.

L] Data,-"system access controls

*  Annual penetration testing

*  Annual security e-learning training for
all staff

*  Annualgap analysis audit

* Combine with Business Continuity
exercise and breach procedurestest by
end Q2 2018/19 - incorporating new IT
backup systems
GDPR working group work
E-learning module has been developed
for staff and will form part of all staff
induction

+ Safeguardingto be included in staff
contracts (new & renewed)

& Champions being provided enhanced
training

&+ Referral processin place

A) Meetings held with other Local
Authorities and HCC

B) Meetings held to discuss proposals

C) Meetings held by IH with HCC to discuss
proposals. Long-term minimum 5 year
project.

D} Watching brief followed by action to
mitigate impact on RBC if possible

E) Seeking advice from Local Government
Association on provision of temporary
accommodation for homeless people.

Page 24



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION
6. The Council Plan - “Listen, Learn, Deliver Better”

One of the key strategic documents that frame the actions of the Council is the Council’s Corporate Plan. This document
exists to help elected Members, staff and partners work together to deliver the vision for Rushmoor. It sets out our
priorities — what we are doing and why.

The Cabinet reviews progress against the Corporate Plan on a quarterly basis. This acts as the key corporate
performance monitoring process for the Council. The document combines both informative data about the Rushmoor area
and some more specific data about the Council as a whole and about individual services. It is provided to give an
enhanced overview to inform Cabinet’s priorities and its monitoring of performance.

The Corporate Plan is divided into four priority themes that support the overall purpose to work with others to improve the
quality of people’s lives as follows:

Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) in both

Aldershot and Farnborough town centre
Aldershot and Farnborough town centres

regeneration

Establish a good cause

lottery
Secure Alternative Natural Green Space

(SANGS) identified to enable
development of housing

Housing and Homelessness strategy
for 2017-22

MESHESN
Housing company set up to L E A R N

drive social and private D E L | V E R

rented homes .
New waste contract saving

£650K annually and raising
recycling levels
Investment portfolio expansion by
£47m by 2021 return yield in

excess of 3.2%
Varied programme of cultural events

throughout 2018/19

Robust annual review of fees
and charges Reviewing Council services and
structures “Love Rushmoor” mobile APP
established for residental use

Page 25



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

7. Resource Allocation

Rushmoor Borough Council manages cash flows of £156.5m and assets exceeding £172m by:

e Holding a General fund balance of £2m

e Collecting £51.4m of business rates. 60% of the business rates collected is passed onto
central government, Hampshire County Council and Fire and Rescue Authority. The Council
retains £19.8m

® Collecting £52m of Council tax payments. 88% of Council Tax collected is passed onto central
government, Hampshire County Council, Fire and Rescue Authority and Police and Crime
Commissioner. The Council retains £6.1m

® Managing a £201m portfolio of land, building and other assets that generates £4.7m of
income.

® Receiving grants and contribution of £40.6m mainly from central government.

Total capital cash flows through the Council are shown below:

CAPITAL CASH FLOWS

TOTAL ASSETS BROUGHT FORWARD

£172m
ADDITIONS DISPO3ALS REVALUATION
£62m £(10)m £(129)m

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS CARRIED FORWARD

Page 26

£205m
FPE INVESTMENT OTHER LONG CURRENT
£84m PROPERTY TERM AS5ETS ASSETS
£75m £30m £lem
6




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

Total revenue cash flows through the Council are shown below:

REVENUE CASH FLOWS

BUSINESS GRANTS/ OTHER COUNCIL CAPITAL INWVESTMENTS

RATES COMNTRIBUTIONS INCOME TAX FINANCING £4.7m

£50.9m £40.6m £9.3m £52m £45.6m
Al
TOTAL RESOURCES
£206.1m MNET TFR from
RESERWVES
[ £3m
v v
PAID TO OTHERS RETAIMNED BY RUSHMOOR
£114.4m £91.7m
! \ﬂ/

Housing BUSINESS COUNCIL GENERAL CAPITAL OPERATING
Benefits RATES TAX FUMND £44.2m EXPENSE

£36m £33.7m £44.7m £1.5m £46m

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

8. Core Funding

The Council, in line with other shire districts continues to experience an increasing reduction in core government funding.
The Government’s aim is to phase out non-specific grant funding, instead allowing local authorities to retain a higher
proportion of business rates collected locally from 2020/21 financial year. The reduction in core funding places greater
pressure on Council Tax now and will continue to do so in future years.

Core funding trend:

156
14
12

10

£Millions

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 19/20

B Counciltax M Business rates M Core funding

The increase in business rates marginally offsets the reduction in Council Tax. To address future challenges and reinvest
in the Borough, Council Tax has increased by 2.99% in 2018/19 from 2017/18 for an equivalent Band D property, raising
an additional £178k for the Council.

Page 27



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement
9. Financial position

The Council has maintainted a strong financial position against the backdrop of reduced government funding by £2,032k
between 2017/18 and 2018/19.

Liquidty ratio (a measure of the Councils' ability to cover short term obligations) has declined from 0.74 in 2017/18 to 0.22.
FINANCIAL POSITION

MET ASSETS £71.9M [(56.5M AT 31 MARCH 2015]
The Council maintains a strang balance sheet dezpite financial challenges

Funded by: Funded by:
usahle Reserves Usable Reserves
£14.BEm £16.3m
Unusable Reserves Unusable Reserves
£71.7m £55.6m
- -
MNET ASSETS MET ASSETS
£86.5m £71.9m
31 March 31 March
2018 , 2019 -
Long-Term Assets Long-Term Assets
£154.5m ELESm
Long-term liabilities Long-term liahilities and
Met Current Assets and provisions Met Current Assets provisions
[E6.2m) [E6L.Em) {E56.7m] (E60.2m)

10. Capital

The Council has an ambitious five-year capital programme of £171.92m. The Capital Programme for 2018/19 and beyond
will deliver a range of benefits that aim to achieve the Council’s objectives:

e |nvest to save schemes and property investment schemes, which will generate additional income streams
for the Council

e |Investment in local amenities such as football pitches and playgrounds, mainly funded by developers’
contributions

® Continued investment in our town centres and the links to the new Wellesley development

® Development of a site for the provision of a depot for the Council’'s Waste, Recycling and Street Cleansing
services

The table below shows the revised capital programme for 2018/19 and the indicative programme for following four year
period 2019/20 to 2022/23:

FIVE YEAR PLAN

Estimate  Outturn Carry forward Estimate Estimate Estimate  Estimate Total
201819 201819 2018/19 201920 2020f21 2021f22 2022/23
EXPENDITURE £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate and Democratic Services 1,497 1,433 64 1,224 - - - 2,721
Customer Experience and Improvement 330 288 1,510 321 95 75 - 2,289
Major Projects and Property 40,173 43,125 31,991 34,492 16,219 27,561 1,372 154,760
Operational Services 3,637 3,199 303 3,510 2,405 1,205 1,205 11,827
Planning and Economy 100 - 100 120 50 - - 270
Total Expenditure 45,737 48,045 33,968 39,667 18,769 28,811 2,577 171,867
FUNDING
Grants and other Contributions 2,929 1,871 1,058 v 10,462 3,248 2,498 998 20,135
Developers' Contributions 131 121 10 810 - - - 941
Capital Receipts/Borrowing 42,677 46,053 32,900 28,395 15,521 26,343 1,579 150,791
Total Funding 45,737 48,045 33,968 39,667 18,769 28,841 2,577 171,867
8

Page 28



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement
OUTLOOK
11. Future challenges

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) updated in 2018/19 reflects the Council’s best estimate of what
may occur in 2019/20 through to 2022/23, taking into account reduced government funding, continuing demand for local
services, the need to promote the local economy and potential implication of Brexit.

The MTFS sets out a path to balance the Council’s budget, innovate and seek efficiencies. Within the Council is an ethos
of reviewing its internal processes and monitoring for economy, efficiency and effectiveness. Through sound financial
stewardship, the Council continues to maintain its core services while delivering challenging savings.

The Council is committed to undertaking significant investment in the local economy through ambitious regeneration
programmes that are shown in the Council’s capital programme. Through the Council’s investment property strategy and
regeneration, the Council is increasing the potential business rate and investment income, while also providing socio-
economic benefits to Aldershot and Farnborough.

To meet the financial challenges in 2018/19, the Council needed to reduce net spending requirement by £1.55m.

This has mainly been achieved by:
e Tighter budget control through increased use of virements
e Increased scrutiny of additional budget requests and further efficiency focus for budget holders
e Contract management and re-tendering of significant contracts
® Increasing income from investment activity

There are still risks that could affect the Council’s financial position, which include:
e Increased localism of Business rates: At least 75% localism is still expected by 2020, and the current
retained business rates is above the Council’s baseline funding position. Therefore, any reset of the baseline
to take account of growth achieved to date, may impact on the Council’s finances.

e Fair Funding Review: Government funding is only known up to 2019/20. The Government has consulted on
the funding formula and the methodologies that should be used to determine future funding. However, there
is still uncertainty in terms of the funding allocation for the Council.

e Reliance on income from investment activity: The council has increased it’s reliance on income from
investment properties from 6.2% of gross service expenditure in 2018/19 to 14.5% in 2019/20. Any short fall
in income from investment property will have an increase adverse effect on service delivery. To mitigate
future variable income flow a Commercial Property Reserve is being set up in 2019/20 funding by current
income receipts from property.

e Changes to New Homes Bonus: This source of funding may be subject to change as the Government
plans to change the incentive scheme in future years. The Council received £1.095m in 2018/19, with
£1.011m awarded for 2019/20. The loss of such funding is a significant risk as the Council expects to deliver
a large increase in new homes over the next 3 years.

e Brexit: The impact of the UK leaving the European Union is difficult to quantify as the current terms and
timing of the exit are unknown. The Council has a number of income streams that are linked to economic
performance, including fees and charges, treasury management investment and commercial investments. A
significant down turn in economic performance, could potentially reduce disposal income of the Council’s
demographic, erode investment fund performance, reduce commercial property values and increase
vacancies and defaults within the commercial property portfolio. The Council has received limited funding of
£34k from central government to address the impact of exiting the EU, which is very unlikely to cover the
impact of a bad deal.

Page 29



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement

12. Non-Financial Performance of the Council

During 2018/19, Rushmoor Borough Council has continued its drive towards a sustainable future, developing plans for a
workforce fit for the future, continuing its improvement and efficiency work using System Thinking principles and continuing
to deliver high quality services to its residents while seeking to reduce costs. As the financial statements demonstrate, the
Council continues to maintain a sound financial position.

We have established good financial management processes and procedures and, recognising that we operate in an
environment of continuous change, we will pursue our drive for on-going improvement, working collaboratively across the
Council, and with partners where appropriate, to deliver effective end-to-end processes.

The Council's Quarter 4 Corporate Performance Monitoring report can be found on the RBC website at Cabinet meeting -
28th May 2019 - Rushmoor Borough Council and contains extensive performance data relating to each of the Council's
four themes. This includes Community Safety data such as local crime rates, educational attainment, benefit caseloads
and local economic data. In addition, it provides progress reports against key schemes within the Council’s Listen, Learn,
Deliver Better corporate plan for achieving financial sustainability as well as the Organisation Development Programme.

The graphic below provides some useful quantitative information about the Council:

95,800

residents

Collected

Hedeiderhe
:q-:om

eeade
Dedederde

Dadeierde
Hedehends
Wi

el iende
Bededeherde

of council tax
owed and

"I'O 050 with maore than
hames 58,000...-

.l....lll.. Collected more than
R 30,350
EENEEN » e :
S gEEEEE o housenoid waste SO
Served Answeraed Served
(16,208) (55,021)
% % 863,240
o & g T ‘
4 A
customers who called calls to our Customer wvisitors to our website,
im person to our offices Services team www rushmoor.gowviuk

Supported the

L Enabled
completion of

21,730

people to vote
in the local electiaon

860 i

new planning
applications

10

atfordable homes

Page 30



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Narrative Statement
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
13. Explanation of accounting statements

The Statement of Accounts set out the Council’'s income and expenditure for the year, and its financial position at 31st
March 2019.

The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2018/19, in turn underpinned by
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Core statements are:

e The Movement in Reserves Statement is a summary of the changes to the Council’s reserves over the
financial year. Reserves are divided into “usable”, which can be invested in capital projects or
service improvements, and “unusable”, which must be set aside for specific purposes. Page 13

e The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement records all the Council’s income and
expenditure for the financial year. The upper element of the statement provides an analysis by service
area. The lower half of the statement shows corporate transactions and financing. Page 14

e The Balance Sheet is a “snap shot” of the Council’s assets, liabilities, cash balances and reserves at the
end of the financial year. Page 15

e The Cash Flow Statement shows the reason for changes in the Council’s cash balances during the
financial year and whether those changes are due to operating activities, new investment or financing
activities. Page 16

The supplementary financial statements are:

e The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows the net expenditure that is chargeable to taxation and
reconciles it to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Page 28

e The Collection Fund Statement is a statutory fund maintained by a Billing Authority summarising local
taxes and non-domestic rates collected by the Council, along with redistribution payments to Precepting
Authorities, Central Government and its own General Fund. Page 70

e The Independent Auditor’s Report provides the auditor’'s opinion on the financial statements and the
Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Page 73

e The Annual Governance Statement sets out the governance structure of the Council and its key internal
controls. Page 78

Receipt of further information

Further information about the statements is available from the Executive Head of Finance, Council Offices, Farnborough
Road, Farnborough, Hampshire GU14 7JU. The statements are also available on the Council’s website —
www.rushmoor.gov.uk

Acknowledgements

The production of the Statement of Accounts would not have been possible without the hard work and dedication of staff

across the Council. | would like to thank my colleagues both in Financial Services and from other departments, who have
played a role in the preparation of this document.

{

David Stanley
Executive Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer

11

Page 31



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Statement of Responsibilities

The Authority's Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
e Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Chief

Financial Officer;

e Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets
e Approve the Statement of Accounts

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s statement of accounts in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
(the Code).
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:

e selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

e made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

e complied with the Local Authority Code.
The Chief Financial Officer has also:

e kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Certification of Accounts

| certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of Rushmoor Borough Council
and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2019.

&ﬁt&lﬂp e David Stanley
- » Chief Financial Officer
/’/ Date:

{

Approval of Accounts

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, | certify that the Statement of Accounts was approved by
the Licensing and General Purposes Committee on XX July 2019.

Cr. J. Woolley
Chair of Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee
Date:

12
Page 32



Rushmoor Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Core Financial Statements

This Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves
held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are
broken down between gains and losses in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory
adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for the year. The net Increase/Decrease

line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the year following those adjustments.

General Capital Capital Total Unusable Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Reserves Council
Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 March 2017 10,453 5,863 1,651 17,967 68,416 86,383
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure (443) i i (443) 573 130
Adjustments between
accounting basis and
funding basis under
regulations (Note 8) 1815 (4612) 49 (2,748) 2,748 -
on Page 34
Net increase/(decrease) 1,372 (4,612) 49 (3,191) 3,321 130
31 March 2018 11,825 1,251 1,700 14,776 71,737 86,513
Transition to IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 - - - - (79) (79)
Opening balance 1 April 2018 11,825 1,251 1,700 14,776 71,657 86,434
Total Comprehensive Income (21,749) ) ) (21,749) 7254 (14,495)
and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis and
funding basis under
regulations (Note 8) 23,989 (475) (239) 23,275 (23,275)
on Page 35
Net increase/(decrease) 2,240 (475) (239) 1,526 (16,021) (14,495)
31 March 2019 14,065 776 1,461 16,302 55,636 71,939
13

Page 33




Rushmoor Borough Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Core Financial Statements

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Council
raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting
cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves

Statement.
Restated Restated Restated
2017/18 2018/19
Gross Gross Net Exp Comprehensive Income and Gross Net Exp
Exp Income Expenditure Statement Exp Income
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
42,097 (36,929) 5,168 |Corporate & Democratic Services 42,970 (36,225) 6,745
11 0 11|Customer Experience & Improvement 10 - 10
3,431 (3,426) 5[Major Projects & Property 5,140 (4,304) 836
14,275 (7,338) 6,937 |Operational Services 23,435 (8,297) 15,138
4,215 (1,927) 2,288|Planning & Economy 4,312 (1,872) 2,440
64,029 (49,620) 14,409|Cost of services - continuing 75,867 (50,698) 25,169
operations
103 (912) (809) |Other Operating Expenditure (Note 10) 32 (54) (22)
1,894 (3,280) (1,386)|Financing and Investment Income and 9,658 (1,484) 8,174
Expenditure (Note 11)
16,514 (28,285) (11,771)| Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 17,300 (28,872) (11,572)
Income and Expenditure (Note 12)
[ Defici h
82,540  (82,097) 443 Surplus) or Deficit on the 102,857 (81,108) 21,749
Provision of Services
(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation
(848) of Property, Plant and (2,227)
Equipment (Note 24)
85 (Surplus) or deficit from investing in (117)
equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (Note 24)*
Remeasurement of the net defined
190 benefit liability/(asset) (Note 24) (4,910)
Other Comprehensive Income
(573) and Expenditure (7,254)
(130) Total Comprehensive Income 14,495

and Expenditure

*The format of the 2017/18 CIES have been amended to enable comparison with 2018/19 IFRS 9 amendments

Page 34

14




Rushmoor Borough Council

Balance Sheet

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Core Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The
net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported
in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for
example the capital receipts reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of
reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to
provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves

Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March 2018

Balance Sheet

31 March 2019

£000 £000 Notes
85,934 Property, Plant & Equipment 83,882 13
258 Heritage Assets 258
46,093 Investment Property 74,935 14
766 Intangible Assets 624 15
15,179 Long-Term Investments 22,304 17
6,312 Long-Term Debtors 7,003 17
154,542 Long-Term Assets 189,006
9,253 Short-Term Investments - 17
6,010 Short-Term Debtors 14,536 18
2,575 Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,355 19
17,838 Current Assets 15,891
12,429 Short-Term Borrowing 59,929 20
11,325 Short-Term Creditors 12,285 21
354 Other Short-Term Liabilities 359 17
24,108 Current Liabilities 72,573
3,278 Long-Term Provisions 4,407 22
1,714 Long-Term Borrowing 1,286 23
53,274 Other-Long Term Liabilities 51,025 23
3,493 Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 3,668 33
61,759 Long Term Liabilities 60,386
86,513 Net Assets 71,938
14,776 Usable Reserves 16,302 MIRS
71,737 Unusable Reserves 55,636 24
86,513 Total Reserves 71,938

15

Page 35




Rushmoor Borough Council

Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Core Financial Statements

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents to the Council during the reporting period. The
statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash flows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing

activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.borrowing to the Council).

2017/18|Cash Flow Statement 2018/19
£000 £000
(443)|Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (21,749)

809|Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for 15,786
non cash movements - see Note 25
(484)| Adjustments for items that are included in the net surplus or deficit on the 0
provision of services that are investing and financing activities - see Note 26
(118)|Net cash flows from Operating Activities (5,963)
(5,238)|Investing Activities - see Note 28 (44,444)
2,906 [Financing Activities - see Note 29 49,187
(2,450)|Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,220)
5,025|Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 2,575
2,575|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 1,355

The Council’s cash flow statement has been compiled using the indirect method whereby the statement is prepared using
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and cash flows are derived by adjusting for non-cash items, removing

the effect of accruals and extracting transactions relating to investing or financing activities.

16

Page 36




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
1 Accounting Policies

i. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at the
year-end of 31st March 2019. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of
Practice on Local Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation
of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. In accordance with application accounting
framework, these accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:

* revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the
goods or service are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with performance obligations in the contract

* supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date supplies are
received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

» expenses in relation to services received, including services provided by employees, are recorded as expenditure when
the services are received rather than when payments are made.

* interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and expenditure
on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

» where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for
the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes all bank accounts including overdrafts that are an integral part of the Authority’s cash
management.

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without any penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours.

Cash equivalents are deposits held with financial institutions that mature in no more than one month or less from the date
of acquisition and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value

iv. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Material
errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the
change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

17
Page 37



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

v. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-
current assets during the year:

+ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

* revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

» amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations.
vi. Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits as
salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in
the year in which employees render service to the Council.

Termination Benefits

When the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or
making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. These costs are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Post Employment Benefits

The Council participates in the Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Hampshire County Council. The
scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the
Council.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The liabilities of the Hampshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in
relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees. The assets of Hampshire County Council pension fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. The change in the net pensions liability is
analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

* current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year — allocated in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked

* past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service
earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

* net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) - the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Remeasurements comprising:

+ the return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) —
charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

+ actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with
assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — debited to
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

18
Page 38



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Contributions paid to the Hampshire County Council pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount
payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.

Discretionary Benefits:

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the
decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

vii. Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of
the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

Two types of events can be identified:

* those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts is
adjusted to reflect such events

* those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to
reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the
nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
viii.  Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of a financial instrument, are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

The Council borrowed funds for the purposes of capital expenditure in 2018/19, and therefore has a capital financing
requirement in excess of zero at 31st March 2019. Other financial liabilities were trade creditors that occur in the normal
course of business and a liability arising from an embedded lease in the Council’s contract for Waste, Recycling and
Grounds Maintenance. The amount presented in the Balance Sheet in respect of the embedded finance lease is the
outstanding principal repayable. Interest payable in the year is calculated and charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Financial liabilities entered into with a duration of less than 12 months, such as trade creditors, are
recognised at their nominal value.

19

Page 39



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on the classification and measurement approach that reflects the business model for
holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.

There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:
» Amortised cost

» Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are therefore
classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payment are not solely payment of principle and interest.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council , this means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited
to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value.

Fair value gains and losses are recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:
* instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
» other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis

The inputs to the measurements techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:

» Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council can access at the
measurement data.

* Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly
or indirectly

* Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sets out that investments in equity should be classified as FVPL unless there is an

irrevocable election to recognise changes in fair value through other comprehensive income. The Council will assess each
investment on the underlying purpose for holding the financial instruments.

20
Page 40



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Income (FVOCI)
The Council has equity instruments designated at FVOCI. This was previously classified as Available For Sale assets at
31 March 2018.

The Council has made irrevocable election to designate all but one of its equity instruments as FVOCI on the basis that
the instruments are held for non-contractual benefits, not held for trading but for strategic purposes. Instruments were
transferred to the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve (FIRR) on 1 April 2018 where asset where already held by the
Council. All equity instruments purchased in year that have been designated as FVOCI are transferred at inception.

Financial assets that are measured at FVOCI are initially measured and carried at fair value.
The value is based on the principle that the equity shares have no quoted market prices and is based on an independent
appraisal of the company valuation.

Dividend income is credited to Financial and Investment Income and Expenditure in the CIES when it becomes receivable
by the Council.

Fair value gains and losses are recognised within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure are balanced by entries
in the FIRR.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit loss on all its financial assets held at amortised cost or FVOCI, either on a 12-
month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only
lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

No impairment losses are recognised for pooled funds.

ix. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and donations are
recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

+ the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

* the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until
conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.

X. Heritage Assets
The Council’s heritage assets largely comprise items of civic regalia as well as a memorial and a statue. They are all held

in support of their primary objective of contributing to knowledge and culture and appreciation of the Council’s history and
local area.

21

Page 41



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

xi. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Council as a result of
past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will
flow from the intangible asset to the Council.

The Council does not have any internally generated intangible assets. Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.
Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an
active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at
amortised cost.

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment
losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xii. Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not
met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the
asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms-length. The 2017/18 external valuation report on all the
investment properties and a selection of the other assets was prepared by GSC Harbord MA MRICS IRRV (Hons) RICS
Registered Valuer of Wilks Head & Eve LLP. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market
conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and
losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result
in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xiii.  Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other venturers that involve the
use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Council
recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from
the activity of the operation.

22
Page 42



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

xiv. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are
accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the
lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are
added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

+ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down the lease liability,
and

+ a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to
such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful
life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on
leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment
in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

The Council as Lessor

Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the
Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to either the Financing and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement or the relevant service line in the net cost of services. Credits are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

xv. Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the Council's
arrangemnets for accountability and financial performance.

23
Page 43



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

xvi. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes and that have an expected useful life of more than one financial year are classified
as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals
basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to
the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably (subject to a de-minimus capitalisation threshold of
£10,000). Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

* the purchase price

* any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have
commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset
is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Assets are carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

« infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost

+ all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use
value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is
not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service. The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

» where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

» where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

24
Page 44



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all material Property, Plant and Equipment by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives.

An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets)
and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

+ dwellings and other buildings — straight-line allocation over the remaining useful life of the property as estimated by the
valuer

* vehicles, plant and equipment — straight-line allocation over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is considered where the carrying value of the asset is greater than £500,000 and the value of the
component is at least 20% of the carrying value.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation
charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred
each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately
before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any
previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held
for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current
assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale,
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if
any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or
loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. Capital receipts are required to
be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under

separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

25
Page 45



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
xvii. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably
requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service or Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from
an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received if the Council settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

xviii. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are
created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve
is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net
charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement
and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the
relevant notes.

XiX. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in the
creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from
existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level
of council tax.

xx. VAT
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

26
Page 46



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

xxi. Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalisation

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure on the qualifying asset (as defined within IAS 23)
had not been made. The Council recognises the accounting requirements of IAS 23 and determines the amount of
borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on the qualifying
asset. The capitalisation rate is the total borrowing costs related to the spend on the specific asset based on the average
cost of the Council's total debt.

The Council only applies a process of capitalisation of borrowing costs for qualifying assets, in the following
circumstances:

» Scheme capital expenditure exceeds £1m,
» Scheme capital expenditure results in an asset or revenue income stream,
* Duration of scheme creation is more than one financial year.

2 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Council is required to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a
new standard that has been issued, but has not yet been adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

For 2019/20 the list of standards are as below:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their Balance Sheets as right-of-
use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is recognition for low-value and short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC
have deferred implementation of IFRS16 for Local Government to 1 April 2020. The Council does not have any material
leases within the scope of the new standard that are not already included in Balance Sheet.

IAS40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property
Provides further explanation of the instances in which property can be reclassified as investment property. There is no
material impact as the Council already complies.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
IFRIC 22 classifies the treatment of payments in a foreign currency made in advance of obtaining or delivering service or
goods. The Council does not have any material transactions within the scope of the amendment.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
IFRIC 23 provides additional guidance on income tax treatment where there is uncertainty. There will be no material
impact on the Council.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

IFRS 9 has been amended to make clear that amortised cost should be used where prepayments are substantially lower
than the unpaid principle and interest. The Council has loan to which this applies.

27

Page 47



Rushmoor Borough Council

3 Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers how the funding
available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in
providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the Council in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for

decision making purposes between the Council's portfolios.

Income and Expenditure accounted for under generally

accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Net  Adjustments Net Net Adjustments Net
Expenditure between  Expenditure Expenditure between Expenditure
chargeable to Accounting charged in the chargeable to Accounting and charged in the
the General  and Funding CIES the General  Funding Basis CIES
Fund Basis Fund
Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,546 (378) 5,168 |Corporate & Democratic Services 5,596 1,149 6,745
(636) 647 11|Customer Experience & Improvement (565) 575 10
(1,849) 1,854 5[Major Projects & Property (2,396) 3,232 836
5,632 1,305 6,937 |Operational Services 5,258 9,880 15,138
1,868 420 2,288|Planning & Economy 2,089 351 2,440
10,561 3,848 14,409|Net cost of services 9,982 15,187 25,169
(11,933) (2,033) (13,966) |Other income and expenditure not
charged to services but is chargeable (12,221) 8,801 (3,420)
to the General Fund
(1,372) 1,815 443|(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of (2,239) 23,988 21,749
Services
(10,453) General Fund opening balance for the (11,825)
year
(11,825) * General Fund closing balance for the (14,064)

year

* The General Fund closing balances for each financial year stated in the above table are composed of the following

sources:
£000 £000

(2,000) General Fund Reserve (2,000)
(9,825) Earmarked Reserves (12,064)
(11,825) (14,064)

Further notes on the Expenditure and Funding Analysis continue on the following page.

Page 48

28




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The adjustment between Accounting and Funding Basis on Page 28 comprises the following amounts:

2017/18
Adjustments  Net Change Other Total
for Capital for the Differences  Adjustments
Purposes Pensions (Note c)
(Note a)  Adjustments
(Note b)
Restated Restated Restated Reststed
£000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate & Democratic Services 41 (420) 1 (378)
Customer Experience & Improvement 442 205 1 648
Major Projects & Property 1,766 87 0 1,853
Operational Services 882 422 1 1,305
Planning & Economy 163 256 1 420
Net cost of services 3,294 550 4 3,848
Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding (2,664) 1,180 (549) (2,033)
Analysis
Difference between General Fund (surplus) or deficit and 630 1,730 (545) 1,815
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Surplus) or
Deficit on the Provision of Services
2018/19
Adjustments  Net Change Other Total
for Capital for the Differences  Adjustments
Purposes Pensions (Note c)
(Note a)  Adjustments
(Note b)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate & Democratic Services 288 (504) 5 (211)
Customer Experience & Improvement 376 196 3 575
Major Projects & Property 3,162 69 1 3,232
Operational Services 2,081 386 6 2,473
Planning & Economy 115 233 3 351
Net cost of services 6,022 380 18 6,420
Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 1,337 1,280 529 3,146
Analysis
Difference between General Fund (surplus) or deficit and 7,359 1,660 547 9,566

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Surplus) or
Deficit on the Provision of Services

Notes

Note a - Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column contains a range of adjustments all related to capital. Each category of adjustment is described in the

continution of this note on the following page:

29

Page 49




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Note a - Adjustments for Capital Purposes continued
Adjustments for capital purposes - adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the service
line

Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts
written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue
Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable
under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure - capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under
generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in year to those receiveable
without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions
were satisfied in the year.

Note b - Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related
expenditure and income:

For Services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by
statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Note c - Other Differences
Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is
chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year
and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any
difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

Segmental Income - Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below:

2017/18 2018/19

Revenues from external Revenues from external
customers (excluding grants & customers (excluding grants &
contributions) contributions)

Restated
£000 £000
(986)|Corporate & Democratic Services (764)
0[Customer Experience & Improvement 0
(3,412)|Major Projects & Property (4,297)
(5,884)|Operational Services (6,295)
(1,926)|Planning & Economy (1,872)
(12,208)|Total (13,228)

30

Page 50




Rushmoor Borough Council

4 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

This note breaks down the Income and Expenditure as reported in the Comprehensive Income

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

and Expenditure Statement by nature including employees’ expenses, Investment Income and expenditure and all capital
charges adjustments applied in year.

2017/18|Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 2018/19
£000 £000
Expenditure
11,094 |Employee Benefit Expenses 11,255
641|Changes in the fair value of Investment Properties 8,043
4,554 |Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 14,928
16,514 |Expenditure from Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates 17,300
73|Interest Payments 181
48,484 |Other Service Expenses 49,870
1,180|Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 1,280
82,540|Total Expenditure 102,857
Income
(2,424)(Changes in the fair value of Investment Properties (449)
(12,112)|Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (12,946)
(837)|Gain on the disposal of non-current assets 0
(40,875)|Grants and Contributions (40,597)
(24,968)|Income From Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates (26,044)
(820)|Interest and investment Income (1,035)
(61)|Other Income (37)
(82,097)| Total Income (81,108)
443|(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 21,749

31

Page 51




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
5 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of
Accounts are provided as follows:

* Future Funding for Local Government. There is an element of risk about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of
the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. In addition, as
mentioned in the Narrative Statement, the Council has made judgements about the adequacy of its balances and has also
put in place processes to achieve savings that will mitigate or counteract any future changes in its levels of funding or
other income.

* Asset Classifications. The Council has made judgements on whether assets are classified as Investment Property or
Property, Plant and Equipment. These judgements are based on an understanding of the main purpose that the Council is
holding the asset. If the asset is used in delivering services, or is occupied by third parties who are subsidised by the
Council, the asset is deemed to be Property, Plant and Equipment. A non-current asset used solely to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation is classified as an Investment Property.

* Property, Plant and Equipment. Non-current assets are depreciated over their useful lives that are dependent on
assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to them. If the useful life of an non-
current asset is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the non-current asset falls. Annual
depreciation charge for buildings would increase proportionately for every year that an asset useful life has to be reduced.

* Lease Classification. The Council has made judgments on whether its lease arrangements are operating leases or
finance leases. These judgements are based on a series of tests to assess whether the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee. The accounting treatment for operating and finance leases is
significantly different.

* Contractual Arrangements. The Council has made judgements on whether its contractual arrangements contain
embedded leases i.e. arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

* Potential Liabilities. The Council has made judgements about the likelihood of potential liabilities and whether a provision
should be made. The judgements are based on the degree of certainty and an assessment of the likely impact.

» Bad or Doubtful Debts. The Council has made judgements about the level of bad or doubtful debts and the level of
provision that it may need to provide for. These judgements are based on historical experience of debtor defaults and
current economic conditions.

* Business Rate Appeals. The Council has made judgements about the number of successful appeals under the Business
Rates Retention Scheme.

All of these judgements are the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer as set out in the Statement of Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts on page 12.

32
Page 52



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

6 Assumptions made about the future and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contain some estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the
future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and
other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with complete certainty, actual results could be

different from the assumptions and estimates made.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2019 for which there is a risk of adjustment in the forthcoming

financial year are provided below:

Item and Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Pensions liability

At 31st March 2019, the net Pensions Liability was
£48.6 million. Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate
at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns
on pension fund assets.

A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide
the Council with expert advice about the assumptions
to be applied.

The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured (the impact of changes in
assumptions are outlined in note 37). For example, a 0.1%
increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a
reduction of £2.54m on the projected service cost. However, the
assumptions interact in complex ways.

During 2018/19, the Council’s actuaries advised that the net
pensions liability for funded LGPS benefits had decreased by
£1.89 million due to changes in financial assumptions.

Many of the financial assumptions are linked to current market
conditions. Conversely, the same measurement increased by
£1.92 million in the previous year.

7 Events after the balance sheet date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer on the 31st May 2019.

There have been no other events occurring after the reporting date that would have a material impact on these financial

statements.

8 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure recognised by the
Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory
provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The adjustment detail is given

in tables on the following two pages.

33
Page 53




Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Adjustments between accounting basis and General Capital Capital Movement

funding basis under regulations Fund Receipts Grants| in Unusable
Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves

For the year 2017/18 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment

Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 1,405 - - (1,405)

(Property, Plant and Equipment)

Revaluation gains/losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,215 - - (1,215)

Movements in the market value of Investment Property (1,783) - - 1,783

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 211 - - (211)

Capital grants and contributions received/applied (1,185) - 49 1,136

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,723 - - (1,723)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (384) - - 384

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (126) - - 126

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on (446) 484 - (38)

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital (5,096) - 5,096

expenditure

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 3,880 - - (3,880)

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (see

Note 37)

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to (2,150) - - 2,150

pensioners payable in the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund

Adjustment Account

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income (549) - - 549

credited or debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement is different from council tax and non-domestic rating

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory

requirements

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences

Account

Amount by which Officer remuneration charged to the 4 - - 4)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals

basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments 1,815 (4,612) 49 2,748

34
Page 54




Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations

For the year 2018/19

General
Fund
Balance

£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Movement
in Unusable
Reserves

£000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment
Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets
(Property, Plant and Equipment)

1,852

(1,852)

Revaluation gains/losses on Property, Plant and Equipment

11,368

(11,368)

Movements in the market value of Investment Property

7,595

(7,595)

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

248

(248)

Capital grants and contributions applied

(1,391)

(239)

1,630

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

1,460

(1,460)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

(683)

683

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

(29)

29

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

@)

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

(475)

475

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (see
Note 37)

5,350

(5,350)

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

(2,330)

2,330

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income
credited or debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from council tax and non-domestic rating
income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
reqguirements

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences
Account

529

(529)

Amount by which Officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

18

(18)

Total Adjustments

23,989

(475)

(239)

(23,275)

35

Page 55




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
9 Transfers to/from earmarked reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked reserves to provide financing for

future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in

2018/19.
Earmarked Balance as at Transfer Out| Transfers In| Balance as at| Transfer Out Transfers In| Balance as
Reserves 31 March 31 March at 31 March
2017 2017/18 2017/18 2018 2018/19 2018/19 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Stability and Resilience
Reserve 3,808 - 545 4,353 (43) 559 4,869
Commuted Sums/Amenity
Areas 2,163 (42) 325 2,447 (88) 729 3,088
Service Improvement Fund
609 (98) 380 891 (276) 386 1,001
Mercury Abatement
529 - 45 574 0 45 619
Commercial Reserve
0 0 0 0 0 475 475
Insurance Reserve
253 - - 253 0 0 253
Civil Parking Enforcement
Surplus 432 (308) 111 235 (120) 131 246
Budget Carry Forwards
90 (90) 232 232 (232) 318 318
Other Grants (Individually
below £45k)
252 (120) 89 221 (62) 86 245
Flexible Housing Grant
- - 128 128 0 270 398
Planning Delivery Fund
- - 125 125 (28) 125 222
Cohesion/Migration
Impact/GurkhaSettlement 128 (31) _ 97 (22) 0 75
TAG Environmental Fund
78 - 13 91 0 6 97
Housing & Planning Delivery
Grant 66 - - 66 (66) 0 0
Planning Service
Improvement 0 0 37 37 0 16 53
Custom Build
0 0 30 30 0 30 60
Land Charges
45 - - 45 0 0 45
Total of all Earmarked
General Fund Reserves 8,453 (688) 2,060 9,825 (937) 3,176 12,064
36

Page 56




Rushmoor Borough Council

10 Other Operating Expenditure

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18|Other Operating Expenditure 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Gross Exp Gross Inc Net Exp Gross Exp Gross Inc Net Exp
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- (15) (15)|Photovoltaic Cells Feed In Tariff - 17) 17)
- (35) (35)|Advertising income - - -
- (25) (25)|Other Corporate Income & Expenditure 30 (37) @)
- (837) (837)[(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non- 2 - 2
current assets
103 - 103|Allowance for Doubtful Debts* - - -
103 (912) (809)Total 32 (54) (22)
*See note 11
11 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2017/18 2017/18 2017/18|Financing and Investment Income 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Gross Exp | Gross Inc Net Exp|and Expenditure Gross Exp Gross Inc Net Exp
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
73 - 73|Interest payable and similar charges 181 - 181
1,180 - 1,180|Net interest on the net defined benefit 1,280 - 1,280
liability/(asset)
- (820) (820)|Interest receivable and similar income - (1,035) (1,035)
641 (2,424) (1,783)|Changes in the fair value of Investment 8,043 (449) 7,594
Property
- - - |Fair value (gains)/losses on financial 4 - 4
investments
- - -|Impairment losses (including reversals 150 - 150
of impairment losses or impairment
gains)*
- (36) (36)|Other Investment Income - - -
1,894 (3,280) (1,386)|Total 9,658 (1,484) 8,174

*Impairment losses is a concept introduced by IFRS 9 and replaces Allowance for Doubtful Debts (bad debt provision) previously recognised in
note 10 under IAS 39. As the transition occurs on 1 April 2018 there is no restatement in 17/18 of note 10.

12 Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18|Taxation and Non-specific Grant 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Gross Exp | Gross Inc Net Exp|Income and Expenditure Gross Exp Gross Inc Net Exp

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- (5,864) (5,864)|Council Tax income - (6,148) (6,148)

- (114) (114)|Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - - (99) (99)
Council Tax

255 - 255|Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - NDR 549 - 549

15,252 (18,990) (3,738)[Non Domestic Rates (Income) and 15,710 (19,797) (4,087)
Expenditure

1,007 - 1,007|Non Domestic Rates (Safety net)/Levy 1,041 - 1,041

Payment

- (536) (536)|Revenue Support Grant - (190) (190)

- (2,595) (2,595)|Non-ringfenced Government Grants - (2,354) (2,354)

- (186) (186)|Capital Grants and Contributions - (284) (284)

16,514 (28,285) (11,771)| Total 17,300 (28,872) (11,572)

37

Page 57




Rushmoor Borough Council

13 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Movements on balances in 2017/18

Page 58

Assets Under Land & Vehicles| Community| Surplus Assets Total PPE
Construction| Buildings Plant & Assets Assets
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
As at 1 April 2017 - 74,378 6,426 3,752 532 85,088
Adjustment - (38) - - - (38)
Additions 2,590 2,202 4,080 68 193 9,133
Revaluation increases recognised in - 1,050 - - 81 1,131
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation decreases recognised in - (207) - - (176) (283)
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation decreases recognised in - (1,254) - - (131) (1,385)
the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Reversal of previous revaluation - 169 - - - 169
decreases recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Other movements in cost or valuation - (575) - - - (575)
Derecognition - Disposals - - (2,385) - - (2,385)
Transfers and adjustments 1,720 2,172 - - - 3,891
As at 31 March 2018 4,310 77,998 8,121 3,820 499 94,747
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2017 - (5,716) (4,653) - - (10,369)
Depreciation - annual charge - (1,108) (296) - - (1,404)
Depreciation charge written out and - 575 - - - 575
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services or Revaluation
Reserve
Derecognition - Disposals - - 2,385 - - 2,385
As at 31 March 2018 - (6,249) (2,564) - - (8,813)
As at 31 March 2018 4,310 71,749 5,557 3,820 499 85,935
As at 31 March 2017 - 68,662 1,773 3,752 532 74,719
38




Rushmoor Borough Council

13 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Movements on balances in 2018/19

Page 59

Assets Under Land & Vehicles| Community| Surplus Assets Total PPE
Construction Buildings Plant & Assets Assets
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
As at 1 April 2018 4,310 77,998 8,121 3,820 499 94,747
Adjustment 2 - - - - (2)
Additions 10 8,512 185 75 173 8,955
Revaluation increases recognised in - 2,251 - - 406 2,657
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation decreases recognised in - (406) - - (24) (430)
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases recognised in - - - - 102 102
the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Revaluation decreases recognised in - (11,493) - - (13) (11,506)
the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Reversal of previous revaluation - 35 - - - 35
decreases recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Other movements in cost or valuation - (1,648) - - - (1,648)
Derecognition - Disposals - - (97) 1) - (98)
Transfers and adjustments (4,308) 4,213 - - 84 (112)
As at 31 March 2019 10 79,462 8,209 3,894 1,227 92,802
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2018 - (6,249) (2,564) - - (8,813)
Depreciation - annual charge - (1,155) (697) - - (1,852)
Depreciation charge written out and - 1,648 - - - 1,648
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services or Revaluation
Reserve
Derecognition - Disposals - - 97 - - 97
As at 31 March 2019 - (5,756) (3,164) - - (8,920)
As at 31 March 2019 10 73,706 5,045 3,894 1,227 83,882
As at 31 March 2018 4,310 71,749 5,557 3,820 499 85,935
39




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

e Other Land and Buildings 5 to 55 years
¢ Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 4 to 15 years

Capital Commitments

The Council has the following material capital commitments as at 31st March 2019:

» Farnborough International Limited Loan — The Council is committed to paying £1.1m out in 2019/20 as part of the loan
agreement made in 2018/19

» Aldershot Town Centre Integration — The Council is committed to paying £1.5m over to Grainger (which is funded from a
LEP loan) once HCC sign off Grainger's works under the S278 agreement

» Purchase of Police Station site — The Council is committed to paying £5.1m over to Homes England to acquire the old
police station site for reaeneration as part of a purchase aareement made in 2018/19

Effects of Changes in Estimates
In 2018/19, the Council made no material changes to its accounting estimates for Property, Plant and Equipment.

Revaluations

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured
at current value or fair value as appropriate is revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out by Wilkes,
Head and Eve. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and basis for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The effective date of each
revaluation is the date that the revaluation was produced.

14 Investment Property

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Major Projects & Property Services section
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2017/18|Investment Property 2018/19
£000 £000
(2,985)|Rental income from investment property (3,654)
726|Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 818
(2,259)[Net (gain)/loss (2,836)

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the Council’s
right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. All Investment Properties were re-
valued as at 31st March 2019.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2017/18|Movements In Fair Value 2018/19
£000 £000
47,997 |Balance at the start of the year 46,093
204 |Additions 36,426
(3,891) |Transfers 11
1,783|Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments taken to the Comprehensive Income and (7,595)
Expenditure Account
46,093 |Total 74,935

40

Page 60




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Fair Value Hierarchy
All the Council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation
purposes.

Valuation Technigues Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Property

The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes into account quoted
prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market evidence including
market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing
the Council’s Investment Asset portfolio. Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and
sold and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised as level 2 on the fair
value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best is use as advised by the valuer.
The Council has no investment properties where the fair value measurement has been carried out at Level 1 (Quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets) or Level 3 (Significant unobservable inputs).

Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The Council’s investment property has been valued as at 31st March 2019 by the Wilkes, Head & Eve in accordance with
the methodologies and basis for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. The Council’s investment properties are categorised as follows:

Categories of Investment Property 2018/19

£000
Commercial/Industrial Units 24,136
Land leased out for mixed use 4,538
Office Units 15,578
Retail use 30,683
Total of all investment properties 74,935

15 Intangible assets

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a
particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. Intangible assets
consist of purchased licenses only. All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the
software is expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the major software suites used by the
Council is five years.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. The amortisation of £248,000 charged to
revenue in 2018/19 was charged directly to service revenue accounts and is therefore included in the cost of services. No
items of capitalised software are individually material to the Financial Statements. The movement on Intangible Asset
balances durina the vear is as follows:

2017/18|Intangible assets 2018/19
£000 £000

Balance at the start of the financial year
2,121|Gross carrying amounts 2,184
(1,459)|Accumulated amortisation (1,418)
662 |Net carrying amount at start of year 766
315(Additions purchases 106
(253)|Disposals (115)
(211)|Amortisation for the period (248)
253|Reversal of past amortisation of disposal 115
766|Net carrying amount at end of year 624

Comprising:
2,183|Gross carrying amounts 2,175
(1,417)|Accumulated amortisation (1,551)
766|Net book value of intangible assets 624
41

Page 61



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
16 Interests in Jointly Controlled Operations

Jointly Controlled Operations

Community Safety Service

On 1st November 2012 the Council entered into a jointly controlled operation with Basingstoke and Deane Borough
Council and Hart District Council to deliver a shared community safety service. Rushmoor Borough Council’s element of
the shared community safety service costs are included in the Operational Services line in the Cost of Services section of
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Below is a memorandum account of the financial activity of the shared community safety service from 1st April 2018 to

31st March 2019.

Rushmoor Borough Dislt-lr?c:: Basingstoke and Deane Total

Council Council Borough Council
2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
Employee Related Expenditure 121 129 135 385
Premises Related Expenditure 4 - - 4
Transport Related Expenditure 2 2 2 6
Supplies and Services 12 2 - 14
Support Services 81 - - 81
Capital Charges - - - -
Net Project (Income) / Expenditure (2) 2 - -
Net Expenditure 218 135 137 490
Hosting Charge (12) 6 6 -

The following is an extract of the Joint Community Safety Team Projects delivered on behalf of the 6 statutory agencies
who work together under Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 (Probation, Police, Clinical Commissioning Groups,
Hampshire County Council, The Local Authority and Fire Authority). The credit balance of funds of £46,000 as at 31st
March 2019 is held as a creditor on Rushmoor Borough Council's balance sheet

Project Balance as at| 2017/18 Project 2017/18 ([Balance as at 2018/19 2018/19 Project | Balance as at
31st March Income Project Exp | 31st March Project Exp 31st March
2017 2018 Income 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Challenge and Change and 2 - 2 - - - -
OPS Stronghold
Anti Social Behaviour and Night 3 - - 3 - 2 1
Time Economy
Bike Project 4 - - 4 - - 4
Education Programme 5 - 3) 2 - - 2
OP Moat 2 - (2) - - - -
LIBOR Fund 2 5 3) 4 - (1) 3
Community Development 23 - (8) 15 - 3) 12
Domestic Violence - - - - 7 (D 6
Restorative Justice 20 - - 20 - (4) 16
Victim Needs Project 2 - (1 1 - (D 0
Speedwatch 1 - - 1 - - 1
Other - - 1 1 - - 1
64 5 (18) 51 7 (12) 46
42

Page 62




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

CCTV Service
On 1st May 2013 the Council entered into a jointly controlled operation with Hart District Council to deliver a shared CCTV
service.

Rushmoor Borough Council’s element of the shared CCTV service costs are shown on the Operational Servies line in the
Cost of Services section of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Below is a memorandum account of
the financial activity of the shared CCTV service from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019.

Rushmoor Borough Hart District Council Total

Council
2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
£000 £000 £000
Employee Related Expenditure 148 94 242
Premises Related Expenditure 2 2 4
Supplies & Services 59 9 68
Support Services 85 - 85
Capital Charges 28 - 28
Net Expenditure 322 105 427
Hosting Charge (14) 14 -

Building Control Service

On 2nd July 2015 the Council entered into a jointly controlled operation with Hart District Council to deliver a shared
Building Control service. Rushmoor Borough Council’s element of the shared Building Control service costs are are
included in the Planning and Economy line in the Cost of Services section of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Below is a memorandum account of the financial activity of the shared Building Control service from 1st April

2018 to 31st March 2019.

Rushmoor Borough Hart District Council Total

Council
2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
£000 £000 £000
Employee Related Expenditure 232 263 495
Premises Related Expenditure 9 9 18
Transport Related Expenditure 3 4 7
Supplies & Services 8 7 15
Support Services 159 - 159
Net Expenditure 411 283 694
Hosting Charge ©) 7 -
Fees & Charges (279) - (179)
Other Income (24) - (24)

In addition to the above, Hart contributed £3k towards the purchase of iPads to be used by inspectors.

As Hart District Council receive their income directly, no figures are shown for their income.

The purpose of the jointly controlled operations is for the councils to work together in a spirit of partnering in connection
with their dealings with each other in respect of these services so that, wherever possible the activities of one complement
and enhance the activities of the other for the benefit of all residents, businesses and visitors to their respective
administrative areas.

There is no requirement for an authority to produce Group Accounts where the authority only has an interest in a jointly
controlled operation.

43
Page 63



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

17 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes, benefits and government grants,
do not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by cash, equity
instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right to exchange financial assets and
liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the Council. The financial assets held by the Council during the
year are accounted for under the following three classifications:

Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the Council’s business model is to
collect those cash flows) comprising:

* cash in hand,

* bank current and deposit accounts with Lloyds bank,

* loans to companies,

« certificates of deposit and covered bonds issued by banks and building societies, and

« trade receivables for goods and services provided.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and
the Council’s business model is to both collect those cash flows and sell the instrument; and equity investments that the
Council has elected into this category) comprising:

* pooled bond, equity and property funds managed by fund managers held as strategic investments

Fair value through profit and loss (all other financial assets) comprising:
* money market funds managed by fund managers,
* pooled bond, equity and property funds managed by fund managers,

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood that the
borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their contractual commitments to the Council.

The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

Long-term Current
Financial Assets 01/04/18 31/03/19 01/04/18 31/03/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investments
At Amortised Cost - - 4,236 -
At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - designated 15,179 22,304 - -
equity instruments
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss - - 5,018 -
Total Investments 15,179 22,304 9,254 -
Debtors
At Amortised Cost
- Trade Receivables 1,812 1,403 5,282 7,044
- Loans made for service purposes 4,500 5,600 - -
- Loss Allowance - - - (474)
Total Debtors* 6,312 7,003 5,282 6,570
Cash & Cash Equivalents
At Amortised Cost - - 2,575 1,355
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 2,575 1,355
Total Financial Assets 21,491 29,307 17,111 7,925

*Debtors due within 1 year excludes £606,000 in respect of Council Tax debtors, HMRC and Non-Domestic Rates, from
the total of £14,536,000 reported on the Balance Sheet, as these are statutory levies not falling within the definition of
financial instruments. £6,785,000 is also excluded in respect of Payments in Advance.

44

Page 64




Rushmoor Borough Council

Financial Liabilities

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be represented by a
contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with
another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Council.

The majority of the Council’s financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and comprised:
* long-term loans from the Local Enterprise Partnership,

« short-term loans from other local authorities,

* lease payables detailed in note 36, and

« trade payables for goods and services received.

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

Long-term Current
Financial Liabilities 01/04/18 31/03/19 01/04/18 31/03/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing
Loans at Amortised Cost 1,714 1,286 12,429 59,929
Total Borrowing 1,714 1,286 12,429 59,929
Other Long Term Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities at Amortised cost 2,828 2,470 354 359
Total Other Long Term Liabilities 2,828 2,470 354 359
Creditors
Liabilities at Amortised Cost - - 4,039 5,265
Total Creditors* 0 0 4,039 5,265
Total Financial Liabilities 4,542 3,756 16,822 65,553

*The Creditors lines on the Balance Sheet include £5,978,000 from the total of £12,285,000 reported on the Balance
Sheet, in respect of Council Tax creditors, Housing Benefit subsidy payments and payments for Non-Domestic Rates.
£1,042,000 is also excluded in respect of Income in Advance that do not meet the definition of a financial liability as they

relate to non-exchange transactions.

Transition disclosures

Reclassification and remeasurement of financial assets at 1 April 2018

This note shows the effect of reclassification of financial assets following the adoption of IFRS 9

Financial Instruments by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and the remeasurements

of carrying amounts then required.

New classification at 1 April 2018
Carrying Amortised cost Fair value through| Fair value through profit
amount other comprehensive or loss
brought income
forward at
1 April
2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Previous classification
Loans and receivables 11,594 11,594 - -
Available for sale 24,432 4,236 15,179 5,017
Reclassified amount at 1 April 2018 15,830 15,179 5,017
Remeasurement at 1 April 2018 (79)
Remeasured carrying amount at 1 15,751 15,179 5,017
April 2018
Impact on General Fund Balance (79)
45

Page 65




Rushmoor Borough Council

Effect of reclassification and remeasurement on the Balance Sheet
This note shows how the new balances at 1 April 2018 for financial assets are incorporated into the Balance Sheet

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

New classification at 1 April 2018
Total
Balance
Sheet
Amortised| Fair value through other Fair value through| Non-financial instrument carrying
cost| comprehensive income profit or loss balances Amount
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Remeasured 15,751 15,179 5,017 728 36,675
carrying
amount at 1
April 2018
Non-Current - 15,179 - - 15,179
Investment
Long-term 6,312 - - - 6,312
debtors
Current 4,157 - 5,017 - 9,174
investment
Current 5,282 - - 728 6,010
debtors

Application of classification requirements at 1 April 2018

The following judgements were made in reclassifying financial instruments at 1 April 2018:

* Bonds with a combined carrying amount of £4,235,982 were reclassified from available for sale to amortised cost, as it
has a quoted market price which is no longer relevant to its classification and it is being held as part of a business model
to collect contractual cash flows.
« Equity instruments with a carrying amount of £5,017,585 were reclassified from available for sale to fair value through
profit or loss as there are no contractual payments comprising interest or principal. As per the statutory override the
corresponding carrying amount is charged to a new reserve: Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account

» The Council has elected to account for the following investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income because they are long-term strategic holdings and changes in their fair value are not considered to
be part of the Council’s annual financial performance.

Fair Value
Elected Pooled Funds 31/03/18 31/03/19

£000 £000
CCLA LAMIT Property Fund 4,647 4,719
Kames Diversified Monthly Income Fund -1 - Inc - 2,021
M & G Strategic Corporate Bond Fund 3,888 3,825
Schroder Income Maximiser Fund - 5,123
Threadneedle Strategic Bond 1,999 1,977
UBS Multi-Asset Income Fund 4,646 4,640
Total 15,179 22,304

Reclassification and remeasurment of financial liabilities at 1 April 2018
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost on 1 April 2018 as per 31 March 2018. Therefore, no financial
liabilities have changed classification and no remeasurement is required.

Page 66

46




Rushmoor Borough Council

Reclassification and remeasurement of impairment losses at 1 April 2018
This note shows the adjustments made to impairment loss allowances as a result of the reclassification

of financial assets and the change from an incurred losses model to an expected losses model:

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Loss allowance for new
classifcation at 1 April

2018

Impairment allowance
brought forward at 1

Amortised cost

April 2018
£000 £000
Previous classification
Loans and receivables 369 369
Available for sale - -
Reclassified amounts at 1 April 2018 369 369
Remeasurement for incurred losses to expected losses basis at 1 125 125
April 2018
Impairment losses allowance at 1 April 2018 494 494
Gains and Losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial
instruments consist of the following:
F!nahF!aI Financial Assets
Liabilities
Amortised| Amortised| Elected to| Fair Value 2018/19 2017/18
Cost Cost| FVOCI £000 PL Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest expense (181) - - - (181) (73)
Interest paid and similar charges (181) - - - (181) (73)
Interest revenue - 266 21 748 1,035 820
Interest receivable and similar - 266 21 748 1,035 820
income
Losses on de-recognition - - - (4) (4) -
Losses from changes in fair value - - - - - -
Gains on de-recognition - - - - - 36
Gains from changes in fair value - - - - - -
Fee income/(expense) - (20) - - (20) (30)
Other investment income - (20) 0 (4) (24) 6
Net impact on Surplus/Deficit on (181) 246 21 744 830 753
Provision of Services
Gains on de-recognition - - - - - -
Gains on revaluation - - 216 - 216 -
Losses on revaluation - - (99) - (99) (85)
Impact on other comprehensive
income i i 117 i 117 (85)
Net gain/(loss) for the year (181) 246 138 744 947 668
47

Page 67




Rushmoor Borough Council

Fair Value

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most
assets, including bonds, shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market

price.

Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values
have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2019,
using the following methods and assumptions:
+ Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole life of the
instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans

* The fair value of all financial liabilities is equal to the carrying value reported in the balance sheet
+ The fair value for all financial assets is equal to the carrying value reported in the balance sheet

Fair values are assesed against the following fair value hierarchy:
* Level 1 — fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices
* Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, e.g.

interest rates or yields for similar instruments
* Level 3 — fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow forecasts or
estimated creditworthiness.

All financial assets and liabilities apart from long term loans (assessed as a level 2) are assessed as being level 1 using
an unadjusted quoted price in active markets

18 Short-Term Debtors

2017/18|Short-Term Debtors 2018/19
£000 £000
1,479|Central government bodies (excluding Business Rates) 3,217

800(Other local authorities (excluding Precepts) 605
160|Council Tax 179
234|NDR 426
3,002|Other entities and individuals 3,324
335[Payments in advance 6,785
6,010(Total Debtors 14,536

Debtors for Local Taxation

The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-domestic rates) can be analysed by age as

follows:
31/03/18 31/03/19
£000 £000
Less than three months 0 0
Three to six months 0 0
Six months to a year 309 488
More than one year 461 502
770 990
Less provision for debts (377) (385)
Total 393 605

48

Page 68




Rushmoor Borough Council

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

2017/18|Cash and Cash Equivalents 2018/19
£000 £000
6|Cash held by the Council 4
2,569 Short-term cash deposits 1,351
2,575|Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,355
20 Short-Term Borrowing
2017/18|Short-Term Borrowing 2018/19
£000 £000
429|Borrowing from M3 LEP 429
12,000|Borrowing from Local Authorities 59,500
12,429|Total Short-Term Borrowing 59,929
21 Short-Term Creditors
2017/18|Short-Term Creditors 2018/19
£000 £000
5,151 |Central government bodies 5,620
2,572|Other local authorities 2,499
-|Council Tax -
533|NDR 524
2,241 |0Other entities and individuals 2,600
828|Income in advance 1,042
11,325|Total Short-Term Creditors 12,285

The Council are the Local Trusted Organisation for the Prospect Estate Big Local Partnership. As at 31st March 2019, the
Council held £41,134 for this purpose in the "Other entities and individuals" line of the creditors analysis (£60,888 at 31st

March 2018)

22 Provisions

Long-Term Provisions

2017/18|Long-Term Provisions 2018/19
£000 £000
2,738|Balance at 1st April 3,278
1,535|Additional provision made in the year 1,932
(995)|Amounts used in the year (803)
3,278|Balance at 31st March 4,407

The Council had one long-term provision as at 1st April 2018 for £3.3 million in respect of Business Rate appeals, this has

now further increased to £4.4 million as at 31st March 2019.

49

Page 69




Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

23 Other Long-Term Items

2017/18|0Other Long-Term Liabilities 2018/19
£000 £000
50,446|0ther Long Term Liabilities (Pension Liability) 48,556
2.828|Finance Lease Liabilities 2,469
53,274|Balance at 31st March 51,025
2017/18|Long-Term Borrowing 2018/19
£000 £000
1,714|Long-Term Borrowing 1,286
24 Unusable Reserves
2017/18|Unusable Reserves 2018/19
£000 £000
41,590 (Revaluation Reserve 43,149
80,341|Capital Adjustment Account 61,302
383|Available for Sale Reserve -
-|Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve 422
-|Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account -
(50,446)|Pensions Reserve (48,556)
6[Collection Fund Adjustment Account (524)
(137)|Accumulated Absences Account (157)
71,737|Total Unusable Reserves 55,636

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant
and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

* revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

+ used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
« disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the reserve was created.

Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2017/18|Revaluation Reserve 2018/19
£000 £000
37,900 (Balance at 1st April 41,590
1,131 |{Upward revaluation of assets 2,657
(283)|Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on (430)
the Provision of Services
848 2,227
3,475|Adjusting amounts written to the Revaluation Reserve to amend the transfer of assets from -
Investment Properties to PPE
(632) | Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (668)
2,843|Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (668)
41,590(Balance at 31st March 43,149

50

Page 70




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets
under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The
account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Property and gains accumulated on Property, Plant
and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 8
provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from those involving the Revaluation
Reserve.

2017/18|Capital Adjustment Account 2018/19
£000 £000
79,252 |Balance at 1st April 80,341

Amount written out of the Revaluation Reserve

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

(1,405) [Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (Property, Plant and (1,852)
Equipment)
(1,215)|Net revaluation gains/(losses) on Property, Plant and Equipment (11,368)
(211)|Amortisation of intangible assets (248)
(1,723)|Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,460)
(38)|Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/(loss) on 2)
disposal to the Comprehensive I&E Statement
(4,592)|Net of the above transactions (14,930)
632|Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve to account for difference between 668

fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation
(3,475)|Adjusting amounts written to the Revaluation Reserve to account for change in asset -
classification

(7,435)|Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year (14,262)

Capital financing applied in the year:

5,096|Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 475
1,136|Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive I&E Statement that have been 1,630
applied to Capital financing
383(Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the General Fund 355
balances
126|Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 358
6,741 |Net of the above transactions 2,818
1,783|Movements in the market value of Investment Property debited or credited to the (7,595)

Comprehensive I&E Statement

80,341|Balance at 31st March 61,302

51
Page 71




Rushmoor Borough Council

Available for Sale Reserve

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

2017/18|Available for Sale Reserve 2018/19
£000 £000
Balance transferred at 1st April 2018* 383
Transfer to Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve (295)
Transfer to Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account (8)
Transfer to amortised cost

468
586
(671)

Balance at 1st April

Upward revaluation of investments

Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of
Services

(80)

383

Balance at 31st March

*Available for Sales Reserve ceased to exist on 1 April 2018 due to the introduction of IFRS 9. Balances at 31 March 2018 have been transferred
to the appropriate Reverse on the Balance Sheet

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

2017/18|Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve 2018/19
£000 £000
-|Balance at 1st April 295
-|Upward revaluation of investments 218
-|Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of (91)
Services
-|Balance at 31st March 422
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account

2017/18|Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account 2018/19
£000 £000
-|Balance at 1st April 8
-|Downward revaluation of investments charged to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of (8)

Services

Balance at 31st March

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be
financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits
earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2017/18|Pensions Reserve 2018/19
£000 £000
(48,526)|Balance at 1st April (50,446)
(190)|Remeasurements of the net defined benefit (liability)/asset 4,910
(3,880)|Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on (5,350)
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2,150|Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year 2,330
(50,446)|Balance at 31st March (48,556)

52

Page 72




25

Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

Information for the Collection Fund Adjustment Account is shown below:

2017/18|Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2018/19
£000 £000
(544)|Balance at 1st April 6

550|Amount by which council tax income and NDR income is (credited) or debited to the (530)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income and
NDR income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
6|Balance at 31st March (524)

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance
from accruing for compensated absences earned, but not taken, in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward
at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to
or from the account.

2017/18|Accumulated Absences Account 2018/19
£000 £000
(134)|Balance at 1st April (137)

134|Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 137
(137)|Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (157)
(3)|Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (20)
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
(137)|Balance at 31st March (157)

Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements

2017/18|Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 2018/19
£000|for non-cash movements £000
1,405 |Depreciation 1,852
1,215(Impairment and downward valuations 11,368

211{Amortisation 248
527|Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 418
649|Increase/(decrease) in Creditors 1,322
(1,835)|(Increase)/decrease in Debtors (8,059)
57|(Increase)/decrease in Interest Debtors 1
1,730{Movement in pension liability 3,020
39|Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or 2
derecognised
(3,189)|Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 5,614
809(Total adjustment of net surplus or deficit on the provision of 15,786

services for non-cash movements (as per page 16)

53
Page 73




Rushmoor Borough Council

that are investing or financing activities

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

26 Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services

2017/18|Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on 2018/19
£000]|the provision of services that are investing or financing activities £000
(484)|Proceeds from the sale of Property,Plant and Equipment, investment property and intangible -

assets
-[Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows -
(484)|Net adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for financing and 0
investment cash flows
27 Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2017/18|Cash Flow 2018/19

£000 £000
648|Interest received 643
(33)[Interest paid (62)
615[Total interest received 581

28 Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

2017/18|Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities 2018/19

£000 £000

(5,696) |Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, investment property and intangible assets (45,486)
(4,000) [Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (7,000)
(4,384)|Other payments for investing activities (1,173)
484|Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible -

assets.

8,154 |Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 9,004

204 |Other receipts from investing activities 211

(5,238)|Net cash flows from investing activities (44,444)

29 Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
2017/18|Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities 2018/19
£000 £000
24,000 (Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 99,500
3,568 |Other receipts from financing activities 2,471
(234)|Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases (355)

(24,428) |Repayment of short and long-term borrowing (52,429)

2,906 |Net cash flows from financing activities 49,187
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

01/04/18| Financing cash flows Non-cash changes 31/03/19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Long-term borowings 1,714 (428) - 1,286

Short-term borrowings 12,429 47,500 - 59,929

Lease liabilities 3,182 (355) 2 2,829

Total liabilities from financing activities 17,325 46,717 2 64,044

Page 74




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

30 Members’ Allowances

In 2018/19 a total of £314,216 was paid out in members’ allowances, compared with a total of £305,808 in 2017/18.

31 Officers’ Remuneration and Termination Benefits

The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows:

Officers’ Remuneration and Termination Benefits Salary and Expenses Pension
Allowances | Allowances| Contribution Total
£ £ £ £
Chief Executive 2018/19 126,530 - 27,574 154,103
2017/18 105,486 - 21,203 126,689
. 2018/19 86,819 317 19,951 107,087
Corporate Director 2017/18 93,833 317 17,563 | 111,713
. 2018/19 84,125 317 19,385 103,827
Corporate Director 2017/18 81,126 317 16,142 97,585
2018/19 34,625 - 7,204 41,830
Head of Financial Services and Chief Finance Officer 2017/18 72,748 - 14,535 87,283
2018/19 16,344 - 2,472 18,816
Head of Financial Services and Chief Finance Officer 2017/18 - - - -

Head of Financial Services and Chief Finance Officer vacant from 3 September 2018 to 7 January 2019, annualised salary
of £66,593

The rate of pension contribution to the Hampshire Pension Fund is 23.07%. This is split 15.1% of pensionable pay for
individual employees plus an additional 7.97% relating to all scheme members.

The number of employees whose remuneration (including taxable benefits, but excluding employers’ pension
contributions) was £50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000, is shown below. Data shown includes senior employees.

The number of employees whose remuneration (including benefits, but excluding 2017/18 2018/19

employers’ pension contributions) was £50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000 No of No of
employees| employees

Remuneration Band
£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999 -
£75,000 - £79,999 1
£80,000 - £84,999 1
£85,000 - £89,999 - 3
1
1

R I N S|

£90,000 - £94,999
£95,000 - £99,999 -
£100,000 - £104,999 - -
£105,000 - £109,999 1 -
£110,000 - £114,999 - -
£115,000 - £119,999 - -
£120,000 - £124,999 - -

=

£125,000 - £129,999 - 1
Exit Packages
Number of compulsory Number of other departures Total number of exit Total cost of exit packages in
redundancies agreed packages by cost band each band
2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19
No No No No No No £ £
£0-£20,000 2 2 4 49,853
£20,001-£40,000 1 1 1 1 2 32,197 70,355
£40,001-£60,000 3 3 131,784
£60,001-£80,000 1 1 71,762
£80,001-£100,000 1 1 97,025
£100,001-£120,000 1 1 112,203
Total 2 4 3 4 5 8 ~82,050 _ 483,129

55 Page 7o




Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

32 External Audit Costs

2017/18|External Audit Costs 2018/19
£000 £000
50|Fees payable to Ernst and Young with regard to external audit services carried out by the 54
appointed auditor
(6)|Refund of fee payable to Ernst and Young
9|Fees payable to Ernst and Young for the certification of grant claims and returns
53|Total 54

33 Grant Income

The Council credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2017/18|Grant Income 2018/19
£000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income & Expenditure
536|Revenue Support Grant 190
1,450|New Homes Bonus 1,095
819|Section 31 Grants in Relation to Business Rates 935
186|Capital Grants & Contributions 284
141{New Burden Grant 200
125|Planning Delivery Fund 125
40(Transition Grant -
5|Top Up Grant -
6|Council Tax Discount for Family Annexes -
9[Homeless Reduction IT Set Grant -
3,317|Total 2,829
Credited to Services
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
247 [Flexible Homelessness Grant 390
84 |Localising Council Tax Admin Subsidy 80
-|Other 3
Department for Works and Pensions
35,018|Housing Benefit Subsidy 34,562
326|Housing Benefit Admin Subsidy 300
240(Discretionary Housing Payment 225
51(Other 72
19|Cabinet Office 15
464|Developers Contributions 950
Hampshire County Council
998 (Better Care Fund 1,106
62|Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs 32
Other Grants and Contributions
20(Contributions for other projects 7
22(Local & Parliamentary Elections contributions 20
-|Armed Forces Community Covenant -
1|Developing Our Communities contribution for specific projects -
5|Supported through Big Local, administered by Local Trust for the Big Lottery Fund 5
37,557 |Total 37,767

56

Page 76




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as they have
conditions attached to them that could require the monies to be returned to the giver. The balances at year-end are shown
in the table below:

2017/18|The value of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as they 2018/19
£000|have conditions attached to them £000
3,493(S 106/grants Developers' contributions & capital grants 3,668

39|Creditor Armed Forces Community Covenant 39
3,532|Total 3,707

34 Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have the potential
to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows
readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. During 2018/19, the Council
provided financial assistance to 115 organisations by way of direct grant payments (£658,012), awards of rent relief
(£236,449) and awards of business rates relief (E724,281)

Within the Business Rates Retention Scheme, rate relief has been awarded to charitable and not-for-profit organisations.
The cost of the rate relief is shared between central government, Rushmoor Borough Council and Hampshire County
Council (including Fire Authority) in the following proportions 50:40:10. The Council did not provide material financial
assistance to any organisation, being more than 50% of their funding, on terms that gave the Council effective control over
their operations. However, of the 115 voluntary organisations that the Council provided financial assistance to, significant
financial assistance was given to the following organisations:

£
Rushmoor Citizens Advice 329,153
Places for People Leisure Ltd 276,327
Farnborough and Cove War Memorial Hospital Trust 110,355
Step by Step 101,719
Rushmoor Voluntary Services 93,752
British Heart Foundation 55,148
Aldershot Town & District Football in the Community Trust 51,534
The Brain Tumour Charity 45,943
Basingstoke Canal Management Committee 42,246
Farnborough Football Club 35,624
Enterprise First 32,300
Dial-a-Ride 31,837
Aldershot Military Museum 30,012

Central Government - Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council - it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in
the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council
tax bills, housing benefits). Details of funding transactions with government departments in the form of grants and
contributions are set out in Note 33

Members - Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of
members’ allowances paid in 2018/19 is shown in Note 30. During 2018/19, no works or services were commissioned
from companies in which members had an interest. Financial assistance totalling £542,303 was awarded to voluntary
organisations in which 21 members and 1 ex-member had an interest. These financial awards were made with proper
consideration of declarations of interest and the relevant members did not take part in any discussion or decision relating
to the grants. Details of all these transactions are recorded in the Statement of Accounts working papers and the Register
of Members interest, open to public inspection.

Officers - Chief Officers have not disclosed any material transactions with related parties.

57

Page 77



Rushmoor Borough Council

35 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

As at 31st March 2019 use of borrowing for capital expenditure resulted in the Council incurring a capital financing
requirement of £61.2m. Total capital expenditure in 2018/19 was £48.045m, of which £1.46m was revenue expenditure
funded from capital under statute. An amount of £0.475m was drawn from available capital receipts and government
grants and contributions amounted to £1.63m. A summary of this expenditure and how it was financed is shown below.

2017/18|Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 2018/19
£000 £000
6,548|0Opening Capital Financing Requirement 15,618

Capital Investment
4,435(|Loans to external body 1,100
8,899 |Property, Plant and Equipment 8,600
205]|Investment Property 36,426
315(Intangible Assets 106
1,722|Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 1,460
15,577|Total Capital Investment 47,692
Sources of Finance
(5,096)|Capital receipts (475)
(1,136)|Government grants and other contributions (1,630)
(126) |Direct revenue contributions (29)
(150) [Minimum Revenue Provision (329)
(6,507)| Total sources of finance applied (2,463)
15,618|Closing Capital Financing Requirement 60,847
Explanation of movements in year
5,888|Increase in underlying need to borrowing (unsupported by government 45,582
financial assistance)
3,182 |Asset acquired under finance lease (354)
9,070(Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 45,228

58

Page 78




Rushmoor Borough Council

36 Leases

Council as lessee

Finance leases

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

The Council has identifed an embedded finance lease under IFRIC 4 for the refuse and grounds maintenance vehicles.
These assets are shown as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

2017/18|Finance Lease Assets 2018/19
£000 £000
3,416 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3,046
3,416|Total 3,046

The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the long-term liability
for the interest in the vehicles acquired by the Council and the financial cost that will be payable by the Council in future
years while the liability remains outstanding. Minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

2017/18|Finance Lease Liability 2018/19
£000 £000
3,182 |Finance lease liability (net present value of minimum lease payments) 2,829
172|Finance costs payable in future years 134
3,354|Total 2,963

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
2017/18|Finance lease Minimum Lease Payments 2018/19
£000 £000
392(Not later than one year 392
1,535]|Later than one year and not later than five years 1,485
1,427Later than five years 1,085
3,354|Total 2,963

Finance lease liability over the following periods:

2017/18|Finance Lease Liabilities 2018/19
£000 £000
354|Not later than one year 359
1,432 (Later than one year and not later than five years 1,401
1,396(Later than five years 1,086
3,182|Total 2,847

59

Page 79




37

Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Council as Lessor
Operating Leases

The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:

* Returns from investment property and the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and
community centres
» Economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

2017/18(Leases 2018/19
£000 £000
3,216(Not later that one year 3,522

11,948|Later than one year and not later than five years 25,699
95,041|Later than five years 105,217
110,205|Total 134,438

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease
was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2018/19, contingent rents of £5,590.34, were receivable
by the Council (£76,236 in 2017/18, including £61,000 of back-dated rental income).

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the cost of post
employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in two post-employment schemes:

» The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Hampshire County Council. This is a funded defined
benefit plan with benefits earned up to 31 March 2014 being linked to final salary. Benefits after 31st March 2014 are
based on a Career Average Revalued Earnings scheme. The funded nature of the scheme requires employers and its
employees to pay contributions into the Fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with
investment assets.

* Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement. This is an unfunded defined
benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment
assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they
eventually fall due.

60
Page 80




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

The cost of retirement benefits are recognised in the cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than
when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made against council tax is based
on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General
Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the

year:

Local Government

Discretionary Benefits

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Pension Scheme Arrangements
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£m £m £m £m
Cost of Services:
Service cost comprising:
current service cost 2.62 2.69 - -
past service costs 1.45 0.01 - -
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net Interest Expense 1.17 1.07 0.11 0.11
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit 5.24 3.77 0.11 0.11
on the Provision of Services
Other Post Employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Return on Plan Assets (Excluding the amount included in the net (6.41) (0.44) - -
interest expense)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 7.07 (0.17) 0.12 -
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic (5.75) - (0.18) -
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from liability experience 0.23 0.76 0.01 0.04
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive 0.38 3.92 0.06 0.15
Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the (5.24) (3.77) (0.11) (0.11)
Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:
Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 2.06 1.87
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 0.27 0.28

61

Page 81




Rushmoor Borough Council

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as

follows:-

Local Government

Discretionary Benefits

Pension Scheme Arrangements
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£m £m £m £m
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 142.35 135.97 413 4.34
Fair value of plan assets 97.92 89.86 - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligations 44.43 46.11 4.13 4.34

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme (Plan) Assets

Local Government

Discretionary Benefits

Pension Scheme Arrangements
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£m £m £m £m
Opening fair value of scheme assets 89.86 88.39 - -
Interest income 2.33 2.20 - -
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on assets 6.41 0.44 - -
Contributions from employer 2.06 1.87 0.27 0.28
Contributions from employees into the scheme 0.62 0.63 - -
Net Benefits paid (3.36) (3.67) (0.27) (0.28)
Closing balance at 31st March 97.92 89.86 - -

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation)

Local Government

Discretionary Benefits

Pension Scheme Arrangements
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£m £m £m £m
Opening balance at 1st April 135.97 132.45 4.34 4.47
Current service cost 2.62 2.69 - -
Interest cost 3.50 3.27 0.11 0.11
Contributions by scheme participants 0.62 0.63 - -
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 7.07 (0.17) 0.12 -
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic (5.75) - (0.18) -
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes due to liability 0.23 0.76 0.01 0.04
experience
Net Benefits paid (3.36) (3.67) (0.27) (0.28)
Past service costs 1.45 0.01 - -
Closing balance at 31st March 142.35 135.97 413 4.34

62
Page 82




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
The remeasurement gain on the net defined benefit liability is comprised of:
* Return on plan assets — a measure of return (income from dividends, interest etc, and gains on invested sums) on the
investment assets held by the scheme for the year

* Actuarial gains and losses — arise where actual events have not coincided with actuarial assumptions made for the last
valuation.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £8.74 million (2017/18: £2.64 million).

Scheme history

31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
£000 £000 £000
Present value of liabilities:
Local Government Pension Scheme (142,350) (135,970) (132,450)
Fair value of assets in the Local 97,920 89,860 88,390
Government Pension Scheme
Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme:
Local Government Pension Scheme (44,430) (46,110) (44,060)
Discretionary Benefits (4,130) (4,340) (4,470)
Total Surplus/(Deficit) in the Scheme (48,560) (50,450) (48,530)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post employment (retirement)
benefits. The total liability of £48.6 million has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains
healthy:

» the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life
of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary
« finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are actually paid.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in the year to 31st
March 2020 is £2.17 million.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions
that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local
Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Aon Hewitt Ltd, an
independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the
scheme as at 31st March 2016.

63
Page 83




Rushmoor Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Financial Assumptions: 31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
% % %
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.30 3.20 3.10
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.20 2.10 2.00
Rate of increase in salaries 3.70 3.60 3.50
Rate of increase to pensions in 2.20 2.10 2.00
payment
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 2.20 2.10 2.00
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.40 2.60 2.50
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.20 2.10 2.00
Mortality assumptions: 31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
Years Years Years
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men 23.3 24.1 24.0
Women 26.1 27.2 27.0
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men 24.9 26.2 26.0
Women 27.8 29.4 29.3

The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme’s

assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held:

31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

% % %

Equities 60.4 62.6 60.3
Property 7.6 7.0 6.5
Government Bonds 22.7 23.7 25.2
Corporate Bonds 5.2 1.0 1.4
Cash 2.3 2.6 3.4
Other assets 1.8 3.1 3.2
100.0 100.0 100.0

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions outlined above. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions
remain constant. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change

from those used in the previous period.

Page 84

64




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Impact on the present value of the funded defined benefit

obligation in the Scheme Increase in Assumption| Decrease in Assumption
£M £M

Rate of inflation (adjustment to discount rate +0.1% or -0.1% pa) (2.50) 2.54

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1% pa) 0.42 (0.42)

Rate of increase to pensions in payment & rate of revaluation of 211 (2.08)

pension accounts (increase or decrease by 0.1% pa)

Post retirement mortality assumption (increase or decrease by 1 452 (4.49)

year)

38 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities, both revised in December 2017.

In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the
commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with
financial instruments. The Council also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to
be followed to manage these risks.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Investment Strategy in compliance with the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government Investments. This Guidance emphasises that
priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and its
Treasury Management Practices seek to achieve a suitable balance between risk and return or cost.

The main risks covered are:

* Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its contractual obligations, causing a
loss to the Council.

+ Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make contracted payments on time.

» Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in market variables such
as interest rates or equity prices.

Credit Risk

Treasury Investments

The Council's credit risk management practices are set out in paragraph 7.10 of the Annual Treasury Management
Investment Strategy. With particular regard to determining whether the credit risk of financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historic default data published by credit
rating agencies, and adjusted for current and forecast economic conditions. A two-year delay in cash flows is assumed to
arise in the event of default. Investments are determined to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk where they
have been downgraded by three or more credit rating notches or equivalent since initial recognition, unless they retain an
investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be credit-impaired when awarded a “D” credit rating or equivalent.
At 31 March 2019, £0 (2018: £0) of loss allowances related to treasury investments.

65

Page 85




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements

Trade and Lease Receivables and Contract Assets

The following analysis summarises the Council’s trade and lease receivables, by due date. Only those receivables meeting
the definition of a financial asset are included.

31/3/18 31/3/18

£000 £000

Neither past due or impaired 6,749 8,468

Less than two months 604 308

Two to six months 166 427

Six months to one year 476 602
More than one year - -

Total Receivables 7,995 9,805

Loss allowances on trade and lease receivables and contract assets have been calculated by reference to the Council’s
historic experience of default and adjusted for current and forecast economic conditions. Receivables are determined to
have suffered a significant increase in credit risk where they are 30 or more days past due and they are determined to be
credit-impaired where they are 90 or more days past due.

Receivables are written off to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services when the debtor are formally insolvent,

but steps are still taken to collect sums owing. The amount written off but still subject to enforcement action at 31st March
2019 is £45,000 (2018: £11,000).

Loans, Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments

In furtherance of the Council’s service objectives, it has lent money to Farnborough International. It has also committed to
lend money to Farnborough International should it be requested to do so at market rates of interest.

The amounts recognised on the balance sheet, and the Council’s total exposure to credit risk from these instruments are:

Borrower Exposure type Balance Risk Balance Risk

sheet| exposure sheet| exposure

31/3/2019| 31/3/2019 31/3/2018| 31/3/2018

£000 £000 £000 £000
Company loan Loans at market rate 5600 - 4500 -
Company loan Loan commitment at market rate 1100 - - -
Total 6700 - 4500 -

The Council manages the credit risk inherent in its loans for service purposes and loan commitments in line with its
published Investment Strategy.

Loss allowances on loans for service purposes, financial guarantees and loan commitments have been calculated by
reference to historic default data published by credit rating agencies and adjusted for current and forecast economic
conditions. They are determined to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk where they are 30 or more days past
due and they are determined to be credit-impaired where they are 90 or more days past due. Loans are written off to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services when they are two years past due, but steps are still taken to collect sums
owing.

66
Page 86




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
Liquidity risk

The Council manages its liquidity position through risk management procedures as referred to above, including the setting
and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the Annual Treasury Management Strategy as well as through
cash flow management procedures. This seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed.

In the event of an unexpected cash requirement, the Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to
cover any day-to-day cash flow need. The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.

There is no perceived risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.

Refinancing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against
the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial
instruments as they mature. This risk relates to the maturing of longer- term financial assets. The approved limits placed
on investments of greater than one year in duration, are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Council
approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks, and the central treasury team address the
operational risks within the approved parameters.

This includes monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure liquidity is available for the Council’s day to day cash
flow needs and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer-
term cash flow needs.

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan Board and other local
authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies. There is no perceived risk that the Council will be
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. The Council does have some long-term borrowing with Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) at below market rates. Therefore, there is no exposure to refinancing risk.

The maturity analysis of its financial assets and analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets 31/03/18| 31/03/19
£000 £000
Less than one year 17,782 8,424
Between one and two years 463 459
Between two and three years 457 446
More than three years 20,571 28,402
Total 39,273 37,731
Analysis of Financial Liabilities 31/03/18 31/03/19
£000 £000
Less than one year 17,493 66,542
Between one and two years 788 793
Between two and three years 793 798
More than three years 2,961 2,165
Total 22,035 70,298
67

Page 87




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
Market risks

Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the
following effects:

* borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense will rise
* borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities will fall
* investments at variable rates — the interest income will rise
* investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall.

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their fair value
will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, changes in interest payable and
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments measured at fair value will be reflected in Other
Comprehensive Income or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as appropriate.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy and
Capital Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an
expectation of interest rate movements. From the strategy, a prudential indicator is set which provides maximum and
minimum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. The treasury team will monitor the market and forecast
interest rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance, in periods of falling interest rates, and where
economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long-
term returns. At 31 March 2019, -£3.9m (2018: -£6.4m) of net principal borrowed (i.e. borrowing net of investments) was
exposed to fixed rates and £37.9m (2018: -£7.6m) to variable rates.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of
the annual budget and which is used to update the budget during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be
accommodated.

At 31st March 2019, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would
be:

£000
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 102
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 102

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed
Price risk

The market prices of the Council’s fixed rate bond investments and its units in pooled bond funds are governed by
prevailing interest rates and the price risk associated with these instruments is managed alongside interest rate risk.

The Council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling commercial property prices. This risk is
limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to property investments of £56m. A 5% fall in commercial property prices at
31st March 2019 would result in a £235,000 (2018: £232,000) charge to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
which is then transferred to the Finance Instrument Revaluation Reserve (FIRR).

The Council’s investment in a pooled equity funds is subject to the risk of falling share prices. This risk is limited by the
Council’s maximum exposure to equity investments of £5m. A 5% fall in share prices at 31st March 2019 would result in a
£879,000 (2018: £529,000) charge to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure which is then transferred to the
FIRR, if elected and the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services which is then transferred to the Pooled Investment
Funds Adjustment Account, when not elected.

68
Page 88



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19 Notes to the Core Statements
39 Contigent Assets
As at 31 March 2019 the Council had the following material contigent assets:

The Council holds a contigent assets of £183,390 in relation to a claim outstanding against a construction company
involved in the development of the Depot.

69
Page 89



Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Collection Fund

Collection Fund

The Collection Fund (England) is an agent’'s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the
collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and business rates.

2017/18|Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
Council NDR Total
Tax
Income
48,485 [Income from Council Tax payers 51,982 51,982
48,520(Income from Non Domestic Rate payers 51,399 51,399
97,005|Income Total 51,982 51,399 103,381
Expenditure
Precepts
34,474|Hampshire County Council 37,195 37,195
5,034 |Police & Crime Commissioner for Hampshire 5,496 5,496
1,942 |Hampshire Fire and Rescue 2,036 2,036
5,864 |Rushmoor Borough Council 6,148 6,148
Business rates:
121 |Allowance for collection 119 119
4,272|Payments to Hampshire County Council 4,455 4,455
475|Payments to Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 495 495
18,990|Payments to Rushmoor Borough Council 19,797 19,797
23,737 |Payments to Government 24,747 24,747
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
223|Council Tax 276 276
213|NDR 337 337
1,349|Provision for NDR appeals 2,822 2,822
Collection fund surplus/deficit
701|Council Tax 811 811
(1,947)[NDR (54) (54)
95,448|Expenditure Total 51,962 52,718 104,680
(1,557)|Net Movement in Fund (20) 1,319 1,299
158|Balance b/fwd 1 April (1,993) 594 (1,399)
(1,399)|Balance c/fwd 31st March (surplus)/deficit (2,013) 1,913 (100)
The (surplus)/deficit as at 31st March allocated to:
(1,402)|Hampshire County Council (1,462) 172 (1,290)
(214)|Police & Crime Commissioner for Hampshire (229) - (229)
(75)|Hampshire Fire and Rescue (80) 19 (61)
(5)|Rushmoor Borough Council (242) 765 523
297|Government 957 957
(1,399) (2,013) 1,913 (100)

70

Page 90




Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19  Collection Fund
Notes to the Collection Fund
1. Council Tax

Council Tax derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties which have been classified into 8
valuation bands estimating 1st April 1991 values for this specific purpose. Individual charges are calculated by estimating
the amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by Hampshire County Council, Police and Crime
Commissioner, Fire and Rescue Authority and the Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the Council Tax
base (the total number of properties in each band adjusted to convert the number to a Band D equivalent and adjusted for
discounts: (30,424.24 for 2017/18). This basic amount of Council Tax for a Band D property (£1642.65 for 2018/19) is
multiplied by an appropriate ratio to produce the amount due for the bands A to H. Council Tax bills are based on the
following dwellings and proportions.

Tax Band Discounted Band D
Equivalent Equivalent
Dwellings Weighting
A (Disabled Relief) 0 5/9 0
A 777 6/9 518
B 5,687 7/9 4,423
C 12,310 8/9 10,942
D 6,984 1 6,984
E 3,473 11/9 4,245
F 1,086 13/9 1,569
G 280 15/9 466
H 7 18/9 14
O (Army) 1,810 - 1,810
Total 30,971

2. Income from Non-Domestic Rates

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, which are based on local rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate
specified by the government. In 2013/14 the administration of NDR changed following the introduction of the business
rates retention scheme, so instead of paying the NDR to the pool the local authority retains a share of the total collectable
rates due. For Rushmoor this is 40%, Hampshire County Council 9%, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 1% and the
Government 50%.

The rateable value of properties at 31st March 2019 is £121,628,369 and the national non-domestic multiplier was
48p.This gives a potential business yield of £58.3 million. The actual business rates collectable for 2018/19 after reliefs is
£51.3 million. In addition there is an adjustment to the business rates income for the provision on appeals to the collection
fund. This provision for 2018/19 has been increased from £8.2 million to £11 million, due to the potential number and value
of successful appeals.

Business Rates Revaluation 2017

At revaluation, the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) adjusts the rateable value of business properties to reflect changes in
the property market. The most recent revaluation came into effect in England and Wales on 1st April 2017, based on
rateable values from 1st April 2015.

Across England as a whole, the revaluation was expected to lead to an 11% increase in the rateable value of the average
non-domestic property, with changes unevenly distributed across the country. The business rates multiplier was adjusted
so that revaluation would be revenue neutral, after accounting for a forecast of the cost of appeals against the new values.

A complex package of reliefs was introduced to phase in the biggest increase in bills to ratepayers resulting from the
revaluation.

The impact of revaluation on the amount of business rates retained by individual councils has been offset by changes to

the redistributive “tariffs” and “top-ups” between councils, with the aim of leaving underlying budgets unaffected by
revaluation.

71
Page 91




3. Provision for Council Tax and NDR Bad or Doubtful Debts and NDR provision for valuation appeals

Provisions for bad or doubtful debts are assessed annually and charged to the collection fund

Rushmoor Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Collection Fund

2017/18|Collection Fund - Provisions for bad or doubtful debts 2018/19
£000 £000
Council Tax
1,219|Provisions at 1st April 1,359
223|Provisions made in year 276
(83)[Written off in year (106)
1,359|Provisions at 31st March 1,529
NDR
777|Provisions at 1st April 531
213|Provisions made in year 337
(459)|Written off in year (364)
531|Provisions at 31st March 504
NDR Valuation Appeals
6,844 |Provisions at 1st April 8,193
1,349|Provisions made in year 2,822
8,193|Provisions at 31st March 11,015

72

Page 92




Auditor’s Report

73
Page 93



Auditor’s Report

74
Page 94



Auditor’s Report

76
Page 95



Auditor’s Report

77
Page 96



Annual Governance Statement
Annual Governance Statement 2018/19

1. Scope of Responsibility

Rushmoor Borough Council (RBC) is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and
effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, which include arrangements for the management of risk, whist facilitating the effective exercise of
its functions.

RBC has approved and adopted a local code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the seven core principles
of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
(SOLACE) Framework ‘Delivering good governance in Local Government’. A copy of RBC’s adopted Code is on the
Council’s website (https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/)

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2018/19 states how the Council has complied with the Code and also meets
the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6 (1b), which requires all relevant authorities to
prepare an Annual Governance Statement. It is subject to detailed review by the Licensing, Audit and General Purposes
Committee and approval in advance of them agreeing the Statement of Accounts, in which the AGS is referred to.

2. What is Governance

Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people in a
timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. Good governance leads to effective:

sleadership and management;

*performance and risk management;

«stewardship of public money; and

*public engagement and outcomes for our citizens and service users.

3. The purpose of the Governance Framework

The Governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the authority is directed and
controlled. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.
It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process, designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
and potential impact of those risks being realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

4. What is the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)?

The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish an Annual Governance
Statement, to report publicly on the extent to which we comply with our own local Code of Corporate Governance,
including how we have monitored the effectiveness of our arrangements in year and on any planned changes to our
governance arrangements in the coming year. In this document the Council:

«acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance;

*summarises the key elements of the governance framework and the roles of those responsible for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment;

«describes how the Council has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year,
and on any planned changes in the coming period;

*provides details of how the Council has responded to any issue(s) identified in last year’s governance statement; and
sfeports on any key governance matters identified from this review and provides a commitment to addressing them.

The Council’'s Governance Assurance Framework, which underpins the AGS, has been in place at the Council for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the AGS and Statement of Accounts.

78 Page 97



Annual Governance Statement

-

-

anaE ./

HpnY [ENUUY
pue podsy
FIUELISAOG
|ENUUY

ul paysysy
S IENTERTAT: (117}

ooy e

UDISNILOT A4
pUE JUSWBSEURW

§51 pUE [DAUDD

|BuaEIul Fuinodal

Ejaueuy Sulpnjaul
JUBUOIALS
|ouuoa

|EIUEUY B3

40 ssBUBAEYS

4 A4

HE1E pu= ARl
JUBLILCIIALS a1
[CERI g anzinza a0y

5,[12UNS7Y YL o ul g2 fhunnios

13edu AW 1] o} 12algns aue

£anssl NE81Ed1s SPEW SUOISIDER

pue Suning 150d pue augd
T5047 SASSIPPE EEITLTTINT g
PUE S3IIIUSP| Aunnuag
(113 we=) PUE MBIAIBAD
diyssapes
anpnaaxy

¥

4 ™

“sio3a@dsu]
[I2UENE]

AQ 53210435 JO
SANEIAS WD)
5SLU0IIN0
suonladsu)
[EUEIVe|

—

A 4

BYL J0 MBAIBAD
wspusdapu] e

upny _Eaﬁw\

BIUBJINSIE 40 533UN0S A5y

)j

\. “s@szadcud uu:mEm._Ew/

“IE151E81 H5U
sesodio] sV Ea PUE |0JIU0D ‘JuswsSeusw
33 uo LDl SuRwEERE FETEA =11y}
S B3| "SEIAISE B 203 40 S5AUSNIALE 30
pue Aguspt uiyna spuawssueLE ug uoiudo NPNE [ENUUY
dnoug aouewIEnoE sy Jo) HSI 40
wawaZeuepy JUSWEERUE Y JOIUES SB2IE Emecuﬂ
HEld Ayl o papinosd ol m_o.m__u_._m.n:um“
JuawaEeuegy BIE BuBEES SERUSANIBHE SYL e
SOUEINETY
51y uELAFEUEW
(112) #5141 PUE |CHUDD
wea) diysiapes |EUIEIUI UD
a1esodioy gauesnsse Sujued
Joy 55300J4d 3Y3 20
SERUSANIBHS BYL e
sa5zad0.d |ouIuod
[ E Y
Yy aoueldwon o«
= “uo uciudo Juapuadspu)

B2

/ upny _mEmEH.\

“I2Unog 343 ulyus sauswsSueie sauewsaacE syl Jeao Saueinsse sapinousd dnoud sy siEnyg Suuouuogy

B8 |IIunog 3y Uiyl 55|00 AJDINIEIS Yl 5130140 4o s3sisund dnoud siy ) — dnoud sausuwiaaog 31E10dioD |EUISIU)

soy

“§IOi JI3YL UD IZUNGCY [|n4 03 Hodad ABY ) TJUSWU0IIALS [04IU03 PAIEID0SSE SU) PUE JUSWSEEUELL Y51 YL JO T52UAAISYS 3L BUIPN|IU] 'FIUSWSEUBLIE SIUEUISADE 5,|12UNC)

2U1 40 55RUSAI0ENE pus Axenbape ayl uo BIUBINSEE JUBpURdapUl BpIAod — (|I2UND) (INd S0 JBYaq uc 5Oy aAacudde o Aluoyine paleSajaq) aemwwe) sesoding [B1FUSD 3 PNy ‘Buisusan

1uneg (ing

H “[IUneg sy 40 yeyaq uc oy uSis aAndEx3 a1y i Japes _

£IOMBLIEL] 2DUBINSSY 2IULUIBAOL S [IDUNOY) AU S1 JeUM

79

Page 98



Annual Governance Statement

5. How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its governance arrangements?

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance arrangements. The key sources of assurance that
informs this review are:

+The work of the Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee Members and Senior Officers of the Council who have
responsibility for good governance.

A statement of assurance is obtained from Heads of Service to confirm the governance arrangements in place within their
service.

*The Audit Manager’s update reports on the internal audit activity, which provides an independent assurance that key risks
are being adequately controlled and provides an opinion on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

*Any comments made by External Audit or other external reviews.

«Internal Corporate Governance Group provides assurance over the governance arrangements within the Council.

6. What are the key elements of RBC’s Governance Framework?
The Council aims to achieve good standards of governance by adhering to the seven core principles, detailed below,
which form the basis of the Council’'s code of Corporate Governance.

G. Implementing good - I‘ (o Defining outcomes

practices in transparency, in terms of sustainable

reporting, and audit, to economic, social, and

deliver effective environmental benefits
accountability

A. Behaving with
integrity, demonstrating
strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting
the rule of law

F. Managing risks

and performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

B. Ensuring openness
and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement

E.
Developing the
entity's capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and the
individuals within it

D. Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimize the
achievement of the
intended outcomes

The following pages provide a summary of actions and behaviours taken by the Council in relation to each of these seven

core principles and associated sub principles.

80

Page 99



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE A

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Sub principles Demonstrated by

= A code of conduct is in place for both Councillors and siaff, both are
contained within the Council’s constitution. The codes outline the
ethical standards and behaviours to be adopted and observed by
elected Members and officers to ensure that Council business is
conducted with fairness and integrity .

s« The Council also has in place various policies, procedures and
guidance including Anti-fraud, Acceptable Use of IT, Declarations of
Interest, and Gifts and Hospitality, which are regularly reviewed.

F’Ehﬂ'{inﬂ with = Specific legal and regulatory requirements andi/or Standards and
inteqrity Codes of Practice are maintained by staff for Membership of relevant
professional bodies, including continuing professional development.

= \Whera necessary the Council collaborates with other professionals for
advice and guidance. For example, the Council has recently enlisted
the assistance of Freeths for legal advice in establishing a Housing
Company.

= A reqgister of Member interests is published on the Council's website
to ensure that any conflicts of interests are open and transparent.

+ The Council has established a Governance Group, which includes the
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officers, the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Manager, to ensure that the Council works within

Demonstrating its rules and that the necessary governance provisions are followed,

strong and associated guidance, advice and training is provided.
commitment to # The Council has adopted a Behaviours Framework which sets out the
ethical values attitudes and behaviours expected from staff. The framework sets out

seven behaviours, Customer First, excellence in service delivery,
productive and efficient, commercial, modernisation, leadership and
inwest in people.

# The Constitution sets out responsibilities within the Council. This is
maintained by the Head of Democracy, Sirategy and Partnerships o
ensure that the Council's legal requirements are met, and the
provisions are up to date.

* The Council has appointed the following officers as required:

- The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) — Owerall
accountability for the governance arrangements operating within

the Council
Respecting the - The Monitoring Officer — Ensures decisions taken are within the
rule of law law and the Council complies with the provisions of its
Constitution.

-  The Chief Financial Officer — Principal finance adviser to the
Council and is responsible for the proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs and internal control environment.

= The Council's in-house legal service identifies and advises the
Council on key elements of the law and their application.

+ The Council ensures compliance with the mandatory elements of the
Local Government Transparency Code.

81
Page 100



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE B

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Sub principles Demonstrated by

# The Councils policies and govemance framework are published on the
Council's webegite — this includes:
—  The Constitution
— Agenda and reports for all meetings within the Council's decizion-
making framework
— Cabinet work programme
— Annual budget
— Pay Policy and Gender Pay Gap Statements
— Record of Executive Decizions
— Information required under the Tranzparency Code

DP'E'I'II‘IEES =  The Council regularly canmmy out consuliations on major policy initistives which is
conducted inan open way with all consultations available on the Council's website.

#  The Council haz an up to date Freedom of Information &ct 2000 publication scheme
in place on itz website with links fo information and guidance for stakeholders.

=  The Council’s plan is currently being updated into a 10 vear “ision' with a 3-year
rolling plan with objectives to assist with the achievement of the vision. The plan is
=hown on the council's website along with the monitoring of the actions towards the
plan.

®  During 201819 the Council published four ‘arena’ magazines, to inform the
community of the work and services camed out by the Council.

=  The Rushmoor Strategic Parnership has been reviewed and a Rushmoor Partners
Metwork established, which in future will focus on projects and consider multi-agency
isEUES.

= A statement of community imcalvement iz published on the Council’s website. Work
i= currently undenvay to update this statement with a draft currently in circulation.

(:Dmprehensively # Fomal and informal consultation iz carred out with Members (e.g. Budget Strategy

with institutional Waking Group)

stakeholders =  The Council has recently adopted the Local Plan 2014-2032, which imwolved
participation from numercus stakeholders. Details are published on the Councils
website. Consultation was underiaken, and a proactive role was taken o engage as
many residents and stakeholders as possible. Feedback from the consultation
informed the submizsion of the Local Plan.

= The Council sucoorts the Prospect Estate Big Local (PEBL)

®  The Council has invested in a range of traditional, digital and social media channels
fo enable regular contact, engagement and consultation with itz key stakeholder
groups, including customer feedback surveys, workshops, consultation items on the
Council's website and regular citizen consultation on both Borough-wide and place

Engaging

specific issues.
!E“E_lﬂ_!:lmg with - Ewanles of significant consultation exercises carried out during 2018/19 included:
individual Viaste and recycling performance
citizens and - Council Tax Support Scheme, which resulted in no changes being implementad
service Users a5 A rgsultof feedback. _ ] _ _
effectively —  The Council has recently consulted with key pariners on its emerging “ision for

2030 and key priorities undempinning that vision.

= A zcheme is in place within the Council's Constitution to have public participation at
Member meetings. Therefore, mesiings of the Council and its Committees are open
to members of the public to attend, with agendas and minutes being publicly available
on the Council's website.

82
Page 101



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE C

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

Sub principles Demonstrated by

Defining outcomes

The Council's plan is currently being updated into a 10-year
“vision' with a 3-year rolling plan with objectives to assist with the
achievement of the vision. The plan is shown on the council's
website along with the monitoning of the actions towards the plan.

Following comprehensive resident and stakeholder consultation,
the Council developed its priorities and measures of success with
Members in a range of ways including discussions with individual
portfolio holders, the Cabinet and the Policy and Project Advisory
Board.

Service business plans have been developed and cover:
- Linking actions to pricrities
- ldentification of outcomes
- Performance indicators
- Risks and expected service changes

Sustainable
economic, social and
environmental
benefits

The Council's reports to Cabkinet require the consideration of
business, strateqgic, economic, legal, financial and equalities
impact of the decisions being made. All reports reguiring
executive decisions (except those exempt) are accessible via
the Council's website.

{https:faww rushmoor.gov.ukfarticle/1701/Records-of-
executive-decisions)

A PESTLE analysis was camied out in order to contribute to the
10-year Council vision and rolling 3-year plan. This looks at how
external moves will impact on the Council's plans and objectives.
The Council's Strategy and Performance team monitors place
and organisaticnal data to support the work.

The Council has recently adopted and implemented the Local
Plan 2014-2032. Details are published on the Council's website.
Consultation was undertaken, and a proactive role was
undertaken to engage as many residents and stakeholders as
possible. Feedback from the consultation informed the
submission of the Local Plan. Social, environmental and
economic evidence was obtained to inform the development of
the Local Plan.

Page 102

83




Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE D

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Sub principles Demonstrated by

=  Amangements are in place to ensure all options are considersed
before decisions are taken and service changes implemented.
External f independant expertise i5 often used if the decision is of a
complex technical nature. An example of this being the use of
external experts when making a decision on establishing a housing
COmpany.

Determining
interventions

+ The Corporate Governance Group has been established to consider
legalfconstitutional issues associated with decision making.

= At service level, priorities and objectives are encouraged to be

SMART and these are underpinned by plans and, for major projects,
Planning interventions there is significant emphasis on effective project management. The
Council is investing in additional project management resources o
ensure this.

«  Amangements are in place to monitor operational and financial
plans, priorities, KPI's, guality and targets and to report on
progress, e.g. quarterly monitoring, budget monitoring.

= The Council has several key partnerships with other local
authorities and stakeholders in order to optimise the achievement
of the Council's corporate plan. For example, the Community
Safety Partnership (Safer Morth Hampshire).

# The Council has in place more significant arrangements for project
development, both internally and through the hMember decision
making structure. This has been achieved through the revised
Member structure to include the following:

Optimising - Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee, with
achievement of specific roles to ensure effective governance
intended outcomes - The Policy and Project Advisory Board which provides

early consideration of projects prior to submission to the
Cabinet. For example, Establishment of the Housing
Company, re-letting of the leisure contract and the
Council's 2020 transformation programme.

The Owverview and Scrufiny Committee is underiaking both pre- and post-
decision scrutiny on a range of issues and projects. For example, the
review of Council Tax Support Scheme, performance of major confracts
such as the waste and recycling confract, and decisions to acquire
property for regeneration purposes which resulted in the Commitiee
calling in one of the major regeneration purchases during 201319,

84
Page 103



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE E

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Sub principles Demonstrated by

®  The Council participated in an independent peer review during 2017713,
Fecommendations from thiz review have been accepled and work is
underway to implement the recommendations made. A follow up on the
recommendations made i being prepared during 201%/20.

Developing the * The Council, where possible, collaborates with other authorities to share
entity’s capacity information and best practice, 2.9. Hampshire & lsle of Wight Chief
Executive group and subseguent groups.

*  Service reviews are being carmied out by the newly constituted corporate
leadership team, to enszure that services are best placed to meest the overall
objectives of the Council.

=  Amangements are in place to ensure staff have the appropriate skills,
knowledge, rezources and support to fulfil their reles and responsibilities and
are able to update their knowledge on a confinuing basis e.g9. CPD through
attendance at seminarzsfconferences, training courzes efc.

* Development reviews are cammied out annually. Within these reviews, training
needs are identified and communicated to HR in order to ensure individuals
are provided with the training they require for their role and identify any Council
wide training which may be required.

# The Council iz currently planning to engage in ‘learning at work week’, which
will be carried out in early 2015/20.

# The Council haz adopted a Behaviours Framework, which seizs out the
attitudes and behaviours expected from staff. The framework sets out seven
behaviours; Customer First, excellence in service delivery, productive and
efficient, commercial, modernization, leadership and invest in people.

* The Council iz providing leadership programmes and apprenticeship

Developing the leadership programmes to support the confinued professional development of
capability of the staff.

entity’s leadership # The Council has recently introduced mental health awareness programmes
and other for managers to recognize symptoms of mental illness at work and provide
individuals support to staff members.

* The Council's constitution defines the statutory and distinctive roles of the
Leader and other Councillorz and zetz out to who decision making powers are
delegated to.

=  The Member Development Group maintains a programme for Member fraining
and development and the Council has secured the Charer for Member
Cevelopment, managed by South East Employers. They are currently
reviewing the induction programme for new councillors. They also have
greater influence on governance issues.

® Since the recent restructure within the Council at the Senior Management
lewvel the Directors have provided a mentoring role to the newly appointed
Heads of Service.

= \Within the current year, industry specialistz, Hills, Ardingcloze and Emst and
Young have brisfed elected Members jn_grdertno provide them with fraining
and support with decizions they may need to make within their role.

85
Page 104



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE F

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Sub principles Demonstrated by
# [nternal audit provides a risk-based audit plan and reports on the effectiveness of risk
managemsant to the Licensing, Audit & General Purposes Committes,

» Rizks are considered within activities and decision-making reporis taken to Cabinet.

* Rizk mansgement is identified through the business planning process.

= Effective performance, financial and risk management arrangements are an integral
part of all business activities, examples include:
- Oplion appraizals/ rizk aszessment
- Day to day business § perfformance / 2ervice business planning amrangemenis/
quarterly reporting
- Projectz and programme management — Intermal documentation will be
reviewed and updated in 20120 to improve the effectiveness of project and
programme management.

Managing risk

Managing - Contractual and third-party arangements (including shared risks)
performance -  Business continuity plans are in place, tested and communicated to staff as
necessary

* The Council’s plan iz curmrently being updated info a 10 year “ision' with a 3-year
rolling plan for achieving the overall vision. The plan iz shown on the council's website
along with the monitoring of the actions towards the plan.

=  The Council has in place an Ovendaew and Scrutinyg Committes to encourage debate
on policies, objectives and ocutcomes before, during and after decisions are made.
They alzo review the quarterly monitonng of the Council plan.

»  Internal Audit provide an annual opinion on the effecfiveness of the Councils® intermal
control envircnment. This is based on the outcome from awdit reviews carmied out
within the year. Details of thiz are reported to the Licensing, Awudit & General
Purposes Commities for review.

#  The Council has a Corporate Investigations Team which investigate potential fraud,
cormughion and maladministration and provide effective counter fraed arrangements
within the Council.

» Effective arangement= are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing
of data with other bodies, including processes to safeguard personal data in line
with GDPR reguirements.

»  Extensive training has been provided to all officers and Members in 201819 around
GDOPR and the Data Protection Officer was appointed in line with the reguirements.

» [Effective arrangementz are in place for the disposal and storage of legacy IT
N equipment Al hard disk-based systems are erased to HMG Infosec Standard 5
Managing data prior to disposal using accredited pariners. 1T equipment is stored in a locked store
room when not in uzse\awaiting disposal.

» T Security: IT follows End Llzer Device (EUD) guidance issued by Mational Cyber
Securty Cenfre when implementing security =olutionz and endpoint operating
systems. Council IT infrastructurs iz audited annually, and results passed to NCSC
for review and further quidance on actions to take to maintain comgliance (ncluding
annual Public Services Mebwork assezsment). & bid iz curmrently being made to
MCSC for funding to support uzer fraining relating fo cyber security.

#  There are efiective mechanizsms in place for financial planning, bedgetary control and

Robust internal
control

fs_trﬂl‘lg. I'_I'Uhl": reporting, including the management of financial risk
Inancia . . - . -
management - ﬂEx_te_mal Audit review and report on the Council’s financial statements providing an
pinion on the accounts
86

Page 105



Annual Governance Statement

PRINCIPLE G

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Sub principles Demonstrated by

+ Agendas and minutes of Committee meetings are publicly available
on the Council's website.

Implementing good + The Council ensures compliance with the mandatory elements of
practices in the Local Government Transparency Code
transparency + Onthe Council’s website there is a Freedom of Information Act page

to enable members of the public to have access to all recorded
information held by the Council.

» The Annual Statement of Accounts is published on the Council's

website to grve clear information on the income and expenditure of
the Council.

» The Council publishes an Annual Governance Statement in order to
report how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance
arrangements in the year and any planned changes in the coming
year.

Implementing good
practices in
reporting s The Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee review and
approve the Annual Statement of Accounts and the Annual
Governance Statement.

» Performance is reported gquarterly on a range of indicators,

comparing some items with other Local Authonties and public sector
bodies.

» The terms of reference and working arrangements of the
Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Commitiee have been
revised to ensure greater focus on ensuring transparency and
effective audit of processes.

= There are arrangements in place for ensuring all agreed actions
from peer reviews, internal audit, external audit, or other

Assurance and inspectorate work are implemented. Recommended actions from
effective the 2017M1& Peer Review are monitored by the Executive
accountability Leadership Team

» Risk based internal auditing provides ongoing assurance that the
key risks are being managed.

» The Council's constitution is updated as appropniate. There is a plan
for a fundamental review of the entire constitution to be camed out
within 2019/20.

87
Page 106



Annual Governance Statement

7. How has the Council addressed the governance improvement actions from 2017/18?

The Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 contained the following key improvement actions. Details of the issues and
how they have been addressed during the year are detailed below. Please note that where actions are ongoing these have
been carried forward into the 2018/19 Action plan.

Governance Issue
Implementing a Capital
Strategy to comply with the
revised Prudential Code
and the Treasury
Management Code of
Practice

Action
Develop and adopt:
s« Capital Strategy
« Asset Management
Flan; and
+« [nvestment properties
performance criteria

Current status

Work is undenway on the
investment properties
performance criteria and
Asset Management
strateqgy to be adopted
within 2018. During
201819 the Council's
Falicy, Performance and
Advisory Board (FPAEB)
received a report on the
Asset Managemeant plan
and the fuiure priorities.

The Capital Strategy was
formally adopted by the
Council in February 2019
and will be reviewead on an
annual basis.

EU General Data Protection
Regulation

Ensure that the necessary
changes for the GOFPR are
completed and implementad
from the 25" May 2015,

Extensive GOPR fraining
has been cammied out with
all employees. Work
continues to ensure
ongoing compliance with
the changes. The Data
Protection Officer was
appointed within 2018M19.

Restructure of the Council's
Senior Management Team

honitor the risks created by the
raview and ensure that the
Council has appropriate
resilience during a time of
change.

The restructure of the
Senior Management Team
was completed by the end
aof 2018, During the period
of review the Chief
Executive and Executive
Directors met and reviewed
sanvice continuity on &
weekly basis and led the
recruitment and change
process.

Introduction of new
governance arrangements

Ensure that the working
arrangements are transparent
and understood and the
necessary support and fraining
is provided for Council
Members.

During 201819 a new
lMember framewark was
established introducing the
Crerview and Scrutiny
Committee and the Policy
and Project Advisory
Board. These new bodies
were supported by Senior
Members of the leadership
team and given the
necessary resources to
carry out their work
programme.

88

Page 107




Annual Governance Statement

8. Governance issues identified for 2018/19

The review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework has identified the following actions that will need to
be addressed during 2019/20, which includes the carried forward actions from 2017/18. The progress against these
actions will be reviewed by the Corporate Governance Group and regularly reported to the Licensing, Audit & General

Purposes Committee.

Governance Action Targetdate Lead Officer
Issue
EU General Data Ensure that the necessary resulting changes | October 2019 Corporate Legal
Protection for the GDPR are finalised and embedded Services Manager
Reqgulation (b froym | within - a  broader information governance
previous year) framework following the review of the
effectiveness of the cument arangements the
Council has implemented.
Implementing a Capital Strategy was approved by Council in [ Ongoing Executive Head of
Capital Strateqy to February 2019 and will be reviewed on an Financial Services
comply with the annual basis. and Executive
revised Prudential Head of
Code and the Finalisa development of the Asset | October 2015 Regeneration and
Treasury Management Strategy which supporis the Froperty
Management Code | approved annual Capital Strateqgy
of Practice (b from
previous year) Development of formalised reporting criteria | September
(financial and non-financial measures) in | 2019
relation to the Council's Investment Property
portiolio
Risk Management Formal adoption of the rnsk management | September Executive Head of
(b from previous process and work camed out to embed risk | 2019 Financial Services
year) management within  all Council activities.
Development and adoption of an information
risk policy.
Workforce/ peopla Develop and adopt a longer-term workforce! | December HR Manager
strateqy people strateqy 2018
Relationship Develop relationship management approach | September Head of Economy,
Management and and processes and economic engagement | 2019 Flanning and
aconomic plan. Strategic Housing
engagement plan
FProcurement Revision and adoption of the procurement | Juby 20159 Frincipal
Strateqgy strateqy Frocurement
Officer
Financial Revision and adoption of the financial | October 20159 Executive Head of
Requlations regulations Financial Services
Review of the entire | The entire constitution will be reviewed and | October 2019 Head of
constitution updated to ensure that it remains relevant. Democracy,
Strategy and
Parnerships
Housing Company The governance arangements in place around | August 2019 Head of Economy,
Governance the Housing Company needs to be formally Flanning and
agreed. Strategic Housing

Page 108

89




Annual Governance Statement

9. Certification

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined above and within the Council’'s Code of
Corporate Governance, have been effectively operating during the year with the exception of those areas highlighted on
pages 11 above. We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in
our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation during the year and as part of our next
annual review.

David Clifford
Leader of the Council
Date: XX June 2019

Paul Shackley
Chief Executive
Date: XX June 2019

90

Page 109



Glossary of Terms
Glossary of Terms

Assets Held For Sale
An asset is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered mainly through selling the asset rather than
through usage.

Billing Authority
A local authority responsible for collecting the council tax and non-domestic rates in areas where there is a two-tier system
of county and district councils.

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an
existing fixed asset.

Capital Receipts
The proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets.

Collection Fund

A Statutory Fund maintained by a billing authority, which is used to record local taxes and non-domestic rates collected by
the authority, along with payments to precepting authorities, the national pool of non-domestic rates and its own general
fund.

Community Assets
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life, and that may have
restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historic buildings.

Corporate and Democratic Core

The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because they are
elected, multi-purpose authorities. The costs of these activities are thus over and above those which would be incurred by
a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services. There is, therefore, no logical
basis for apportioning these costs to services.

Current Assets
Assets which may change in value on a day to day basis

Depreciation

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed during the period.
Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from
use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for the goods and services
produced by the asset.

Financial Instruments
Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument to another.

Finance Lease
A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee.

Government Grants

Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international, in
the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating
to the activities of the authority.

91

Page 110



Glossary of Terms

Heritage Assets

Assets that are held and maintained by an entity principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. The key feature
of heritage assets is that they have cultural, environmental or historical associations that make their preservation for future
generations important.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are non-financial fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and are controlled
by the entity through custody or legal rights e.g. software licenses.

Inventories
Materials or supplies unused and held in expectation of future use. When use will not arise until a later period, it is
appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or consumption when it arises.

Investments

A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the activities of the
authority. Investments should be so classified only where an intention to hold the investment for the long term can clearly
be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the investor’s ability to dispose of the investment.

Investment Properties
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not
met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Joint Ventures

An entity established with contractual or binding arrangements whereby two or more parties are committed to undertake
an activity that is subject to their joint control, with strategic, financial and operating decisions relating to the activity
requiring the unanimous consent of the parties sharing the control.

Liabilities
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the future. Current liabilities are
usually payable within one year.

Long-Term Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.

Non-Distributed Cost
These are overheads for which no user now benefits and should not be apportioned to services.

Operating Leases
A lease other than a finance lease.

Provisions
Amounts set aside for expenditure in a future financial period as a result of an obligation arising from a past event. The
obligation must be expected to result in a payment that can be reasonably estimated.

Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance by, to or for a related party irrespective
of whether a charge is made. The materiality of related party transactions should be judged not only in terms of their
significance to the authority, but also in relation to its related party.

92
Page 111



Glossary of Terms

Reserves
These are amounts set aside for specific purposes where there is no certainty about the level and timing of expenditure.

Revenue Expenditure
The operating costs incurred by the Council during the financial year in providing its day to day services.

Revenue Support Grant
Grant paid by the Government to local authorities to help them finance the cost of their services. The system is designed
so that if all local authorities spend at the level determined by the Government, the Council tax would be the same across

the country.

Useful Life
The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset.

93

Page 112



Council Offices, www_rushmoor.gov.uk W @rushmoorcouncil
0252 308 300 I Rushmoor Borowgh Council
Hants, GlLha 7JU customersenvicesi@rushmoor.gov.uk May 2019

Page 113




This page is intentionally left blank



External audit
progress report

Rushmoor Borough Council

July 2019







& Progress on the 1819 audit

Risks around the 31 July deadline for publishing of the financial statements

Introduction

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the
timetable for the preparation and approval of accounts was brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of
the accounts by 31 July. These changes brought risks for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements:

» The Council has less time to prepare the financial statements and supporting working papers. Risks to the Council include internal quality
assurance arrangements and slippage in providing working papers, explanations and evidence to respond to audit queries.

» As your auditor, we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to
delivery of all audits within same compressed timetable. Slippage at one client could potentially put delivery of others at risk.

Risk
To mitigate this risk we stated in our 2018/19 Audit Plan, presented to the Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee on 28 January 2019, that
we would require:

e good quality draft financial statements and supporting working papers by the agreed deadline;

e appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the agreed audit period; and

e complete and prompt responses to audit questions.

We stated in our audit plan that, if key dates within our agreed timetable were not met or if additional risks were identified which required additional
work, we would notify you of the impact of this on the completion of the audit.

Impact on 18/19 audit

» The Council’s 2018/19 financial statements were presented for audit with an uncertainty in the Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) balance in the
Council’s Balance Sheet.

* We commenced the audit on 24 June, and have made good progress in most areas. However officers were still querying some of the asset values
provided by the Council’s Valuer, and were looking to adjust the PPE balance by some £11.7 million. Some material PPE adjustments have been made,
however officers are still questioning the appropriateness of the value of the Council’s depot which was built in 2018 at a cost of £5.8 million. This has
been valued by the Valuer at approximately £800k. Understandably, given that this is a material difference, officers are seeking a second valuation.

Y, . ! ) o : S e . "

2 Additionally we have raised this as a significant risk and have commissioned our own specialists to carry out some work on our behalf. This additional

@ work for both Council and EY will clearly take time to complete and therefore we have unfortunately had to delay the completion of the external audit

H whilst this is being carried out.

By taking this action now it supports the quality of the external audit and our reporting to you as TCWG.

* In order to meet its obligations under the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, the Council is required to publish the Statement of Accounts by 31 July
2019, and state that it is unaudited at that date.

°LT



Value for Money

Background

Informed We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure
decision making economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money
conclusion.

81T abed [®_|

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise

Proper arrangements for your arrangements to:
securing value for money . .
= Take informed decisions;

= Deploy resourcesin a sustainable manner; and
Sustainable Working with =  Work with partners and other third parties.

resource partners and . . . i
deployment third parties In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE

| | framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are

already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance
Overall conclusion

statement.

We identified two significant risks to our Value for Money Conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its use of
resources. These were:

» Delivery of a sustainable medium term financial plan; and
« Commercialisation and the purchase of investment properties

We found that the Council’s Corporate Risk Register had not been updated since it was first presented to the Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee in
January 2018. Officers recognise that proper risk management arrangements have yet to be embedded in the Council and a first meeting of the new Corporate Risk
Management Group was held on 18 July 2019. Plans are in place to improve the accountability and audit trail in managing risk. Officers propose that service risk
registers are to be built into service plans and that the Corporate Risk Register will be updated to include the high scoring service risks and the cross-cutting strategic
risks with a named owner and actions going forward to manager risk to an acceptable level.

We therefore propose to give an “except for” value for money conclusion for the Council for the year end 31 March 2019, which will report that the Council’s

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources are adequate except for the Council’s formal risk management arrangements
which need updating.



61T abed

02

.

Looking forward to Completlon of
the 2018/19 audit



% Looking forward to completion of the 2018/19 audit

-U - - - - -
%ewsed timetable of communication and deliverables

New timeline

We reported our planned timetable in our Audit Plan presented to the Licensing, Audit and General Purposes Committee on 28 January 2019. We suggest the
following revised timetable for the audit.

Licensing, Audit and
Audit phase Timetable General Purposes Deliverables
Committee timetable

Planning:
« Risk assessment and settingof | | November 2018
scopes.
» Walkthrough of key systems and January 2019 28 January 2019 Audit Planning Report
processes
Interim audit
» Substantive testing February / March
Year end audit postponed July 29 July 2019 Audit Progress Report
Year End audit September
* revised timetable TBC
October 23 September 2019 - TBC  Audit Results Report
Audit opinions and completion certificates

Audit Completion procedures N November 27 January 2020 Annual Audit Letter



T2T abed

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 3

LICENSING, AUDIT AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

AUDIT MANAGER 29 JULY 2019
REPORT NO. AUD 19/07

INTERNAL AUDIT — AUDIT UPDATE

SUMMARY:
This report describes the work carried out by Internal Audit for quarter 1.

RECOMMENDATION:
Members are requested to:
i.  Note the audit work carried out in quarter 1, including the work slipped from
quarter 4 2018/19.
ii.  Note the update to the expected deliverables for quarter 2.
iii. Endorse the expected deliverables for quarter 3

1 Introduction

1.1  This report is to provide Members with:

e An overview of the work completed by Internal Audit to date for Q1
2019/20.

e A schedule of work expected to be delivered Q2 and Q3 2019/20.
2 Audit work — Q4 18/19

2.1  The following audit work has been carried out within quarter 1:

Work | Status

Audit findings — Appendix A of this report

Corporate Governance A reasonable assurance opinion has been given
to this area.
Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Disabled Facilities Grants | This audit was carried out by the contract auditors.
A substantial assurance opinion has been given
to this area.

Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Risk Management A limited assurance opinion has been given to
this area.
Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Contract Management and | This audit was carried out by the contract auditors.
monitoring A reasonable assurance opinion has been given
to this area.

Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Page 123



Planning Applications

This audit was carried out by the contract auditors.
A substantial assurance opinion has been given
to this area.

Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Contract letting and
tendering follow up

A follow up was carried out on the
recommendations made from the contract letting
and tendering audit carried out in 2018/19.

The findings from the follow up has not changed
the assurance opinion given which was,
reasonable assurance.

Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Portable IT equipment
follow up

A follow up was carried out on the
recommendations made from the portable IT
equipment audit carried out in 2017/18.

The findings from the follow up has not changed
the assurance opinion given which was, limited
assurance.

Findings are detailed within Appendix A.

Page 124




Expected deliverables for Q2 and Q3 2019/20
The work expected to be delivered in quarter 2 and 3 is detailed within the
table below. As with the previous quarter, these audits can be subject to

change due to the changing needs of the organisation or resource availability.

An update will be provided at the November meeting.

Service

Audit/ follow up/descriptor

Expected

Property &
Regeneration

Purchase of property follow up -
A follow up on the recommendations
made within the audit carried out in 2017

Finance

Capital Programme Management -

A review of the arrangements in place to
manage the capital programme and the
projects included.

Regeneration
& Property

Estates Management and Commercial
Letting —

A review of the arrangements in place to
manage the Council’s properties and
letting of the property.

Operations

Community Safety Partnership —
A review of the partnership arrangement
in place for Community Safety ensuring

that statutory requirements are being met.

Finance

Financial borrowing —

A review of the process for financial
borrowing within the Council. This is a
new area for the Council as previously
have not borrowed finances.

Economy,
Planning &
Strategic
Housing

Building Control Partnership —
A review of the partnership arrangement
in place for Building Control.

Operations

Taxi Licensing — fees and processing
records —

A review of the process in place for taking
and processing taxi licensing fees.

Finance/
Regeneration
& Property

Contaminated water & soil review —

A review of the amount invoiced for the
removal of contaminated soil and water
for the Depot project.

Finance

Procurement —

A proactive review of procurement to
ensure that the procurement process is
being appropriately followed.

Finance

Risk Management consultancy —
Consultancy days planned to offer advice
for updating the risk management
process within the Council.

Q2 2019/20

Page 125




Economy, SANGS consultancy —

Planning & Consultancy days planned to offer advice
Strategic for the SANGS process.

Housing
Operations Car park income reconciliation
consultancy —

Consultancy days planned to offer advice
around the reconciliation process for car

park income.
Various Follow up on high risk recommendations
from previous audits
Operations PCNs — Q3 2019/20

A review of the PCN process to ensure
that the process is correctly followed.
Finance PCI DSS -

A review of PCI DSS compliance within
the Council to ensure the standards are
being met.

Finance Treasury Management —

A key financial system review.

Finance Cash Receipting —

A key financial system review.

Finance Council Tax Billing and Collection —

A key financial system review.

Finance Ethical Governance —

A review of petty cash usage within the
Council.

Operations Housing Allocation list —

A proactive review of the process and
controls in place for the applicants on the
housing allocation list.

AUTHOR:  Nikki Hughes, Audit Manager
01252 398810
nikki.hughes@rushmoor.gov.uk

HEAD OF SERVICE: David Stanley, Executive Head of Financial Services

References: Internal Audit — Audit Plan report, presented to the Committee on the
6t June 2019
https://democracy.rushmoor.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=166&MId=738&Ver=4

Page 126


mailto:nikki.hughes@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:nikki.hughes@rushmoor.gov.uk
https://democracy.rushmoor.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=738&Ver=4
https://democracy.rushmoor.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=738&Ver=4

/2T abed

APPENDIX A

AUDIT FINDINGS ON SEVEN ITEMS: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS, RISK MANAGEMENT,
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING, PLANNING APPLICATIONS, PORTABLE IT EQUIPMENT FOLLOW UP AND

CONTRACT LETTING AND TENDERING FOLLOW UP

Audit Title 1 Corporate Governance

Year of Audit | 2018/19

Assurance Reasonable — Basic controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place.

given Improvements are required if key controls are to be established.

Overview of The CIPFA/ SOLACE framework set a standard for local authority governance in the UK. The overall aim of the standards is to
area ensure that:

Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities

There is sound and inclusive decision making

There is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired outcomes for service
users and communities.

The CIPFA/ SOLACE framework sets out 7 principles of good governance:

A.

B.

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability




8¢T abed

The Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance which evidences its achievement towards the principles of

good governance.

This audit has been carried out to ensure that the evidence used to demonstrate the Council’s actions and behaviours towards

implementing these principles is appropriate.

Priority Key findings Management response and agreed | Action by who and
action when

Medium The Council’s constitution is not up to date in some A specific team has been assigned the Andrew Colver, Head of
areas and requires reviewing to ensure that it remains project of updating the Council’s Democracy, Strategy
appropriate. Constitution. The team are planning on and Partnerships and

reporting on the update to Council at the | Jill Shuttleworth,

Risk: If the constitution is not regularly reviewed to beginning of October 2019. Democracy, Strategy &
ensure that it remains appropriate then officers ND Partnership
Members will not be clear on what the Council requires | Updates will be communicated to the
of them in terms of standards and behaviours. Corporate Governance Group. October 2019

Medium Policies in place to set the standard of behaviours and | The code of conduct for Councillors, and | Andrew Colver, Head of

requirements within the Council, some of which are
linked to the Constitution, have not been recently
reviewed or updated.

Risk: If the Council’s policies are not regularly reviewed
then the standards and behaviours required by the
Council may not be correctly communicated to staff.

protocol for Member-officer relations will
be reviewed as part of the update to the
constitution.

The following policies will be reviewed by
the relevant services:

e Code of conduct for officers
Behaviours framework
Disciplinary procedures
Dignity at work
Equal opportunities

Whistle blowing
e Anti-fraud and corruption

Democracy, Strategy
and Partnerships and
Jill Shuttleworth,
Democracy, Strategy &
Partnership

Alison McBride,
Corporate Manager —
People

Nikki  Hughes, Audit

Manager




621 abed

October 2019

Medium The register of interests is not up to date for all Post the recent elections, all apart from 7 | Catriona Herbert,
Members. Members now have an updated Corporate Manager —
declaration of interest. The remaining 7 Legal Services
Risk: If the register of interests is not maintained then it | are being followed up by the Corporate
would be unclear if there are any conflict of interest Manager — Legal Services. September 2019
which arise.
Medium A register of interests for employees is not regularly Work around the process for employees | Estelle Rigby, Interim
refreshed to ensure that declarations are up to date. updating the register of interest is HR Manager, (Alison
currently being carried out by HR. McBride, Corporate
Risk: If employees are not regularly prompted to Manager - People
declare any interests then Managers may be unaware starting September) and
of potential conflicts and employees may neglect to Catriona Herbert,
ensure that the register is updated with any necessary Corporate Manager —
changes. Legal Services
October 2019
Medium It is unclear if the complaints procedure is always being | The Head of Customer Experience is Quarterly to CLT to
followed as details are not updated on the SharePoint completing a complaints review on Aug commence the end of
spreadsheet. Furthermore, it is unclear if lessons are 2019. This review will look at the Quarter 2.
being learnt across the Council as a result of process, associated technologies,
complaints made. internal audit and the possibility of a
centralised complaints team. The
Risk: If details are not recorded on the SharePoint outcomes will be brought to CLT.
spreadsheet then it is unclear if the complaint was dealt
with as per the procedures. Furthermore, the Council is | In the medium term the Head of
unable to take any lessons learnt from complaints Customer Experience will bring issues to
received. CLT to ensure that details are recorded
and that necessary people have
appropriate access to the SharePoint site
to support this action.
Medium There is no communication strategy in place to Development of an effective | Colin Eckworth, Head of

demonstrate how the Council will engage with
Stakeholders.

communications strategy forms part of
the Rushmoor 2020 modernisation and

Customer Experience
and Gill Chisnall,




0cT abed

Risk: Without a communications strategy in place the
Council may not engage with Stakeholders at key
points within decision making.

improvement programme. Development
of the strategy has recently been
incorporated in the ICE project with a
planned delivery of September 2020. In
the meantime, the processes and
approaches are set out in the Council’s
last communications strategy remain
relevant and continue to be followed.

Stakeholders have been engaged with by
the Council during the year.

Corporate
Communications
Manager

September 2020

Low Rushmoor Strategic Partnership sustainable community | The Rushmoor Strategic Partnership has | Andrew Colver, Head of
strategy has not been updated on the Council’s website | been superseded with the Rushmoor Democracy, Strategy
to reflect the changes made to the partnership and an Partners Network. As a result of this and Partnerships
update on the actions/ objectives to be achieved. change the strategy has evolved and will

be updated on the Council’s website. August 2019
Risk: Stakeholders may be unaware of the of the
changes to the partnership and the objectives if these
are not clearly documented.

Low The Statement of Community involvement on the The Council have prepared a revised John Thorne, Interim
Council’s website is currently out of date and requires Statement of Community Involvement Corporate Planning
reviewing. (SCI) and has been subject to public Manager

consultation.
Risk: If the statement of community involvement is not December 2019
up to date then the Council may not involve the right Comments received through the
stakeholders at the right time for making decisions on consultation process are being
planning policy and applications. considered and the Council anticipates
adopting a final SCI by the end of 2019.
Medium A workforce strategy is currently not in place within the | Development of a workforce strategy is Alison McBride,

Council to ensure the strategic allocation of resources
in the future.

Risk: By not having in place a workforce plan the
Council may not have the right skills, knowledge or

part of the Rushmoor 2020 programme,
scheduled to commence September
2019 with delivery early 2020. The
strategy will focus on the allocation of
resources to deliver the Council’s

Corporate Manager —
People

January 2020




TET abed

amount of resources required to enable the
achievement of its strategic objectives.

ambitions

High

The Risk management process has not been formally
adopted and communicated within the Council.

Risk: Without a clear risk management process set out
and communicated across the organisation it is unclear
if services are correctly identifying, assessing and
mitigating risks to a level which has been determined
by the Council as acceptable.

The Corporate Risk Management Policy
will be reviewed as a result of changes to
the organisational structure and
responsibilities during 2018/19.

The Corporate Risk Management Group
(CRMG) will meet regularly during the
year (at least quarterly), with the first
meeting due to take place in July 2019.

The Corporate Risk Register will be
reviewed by CRMG in July 2019 to
ensure the format is fit for purpose, and
that all key risks have been identified,
scored, and reviewed effectively.

Risk management will be embedded in
the organisation through the inclusion of
risks within Service Business Plans, and
through reporting of key Strategic Risks
through Corporate Leadership Team
(CLT) on at least a quarterly basis.

David Stanley,
Executive Head of
Financial Services

October 2019

Medium

It is unclear if contracts within the Council are being
monitored and performance communicated.

Risk: If the contracts within the Council are not
monitored they may not be performing as required.

The Executive Head of Finance will
review the guidance for Contract
Managers concerning contract
management with the aim of producing a
framework for contract management.

Whilst there are advantages to a
standardised approach, there are a
number of factors that will inform the
approach to contract management such
as risk, contract value etc.

Therefore, guidance will set out the

David Stanley,
Executive Head of
Financial Services

Katherine Berry,
Principal Procurement
Officer

October 2019




ZeT abed

principles of contract management with
contract managers to include
proportionate contract management
measures in contract documents.

Medium It is unclear if all strategies, and performance towards The Council is currently reviewing its | Andrew Colver, Head of
them, are reviewed. e.g. deprivation strategy performance management system as | Democracy, Strategy
part of its work to prepare a new three- | and Partnerships
Risk: If performance towards strategies is not reviewed | year rolling Council Plan. This will be
then the Council will be unaware of they are achieving | focussed on monitoring overall | November 2019
the intended outcomes. performance of the Council, monitoring
progress at service/portfolio level and
how it is progressing towards its
priorities. These will include action plans,
underpinning strategies and policies.
Decision makers do not always receive detailed Some of the options are discussed at
analysis of the options available. informal Cabinet and therefore are not
included within the Cabinet report.
Risk: If all potential options with associated risks and
financial implications are not detailed then decision A clear narrative around how the options
makers cannot make an informed decision on the most | have been reviewed should be recorded
appropriate option for the Council. within the Cabinet reports.
High An asset management strategy is currently not in place | A high level Asset Management plan is | Paul Brooks, Executive

within the Council.

Risk: If the Council does not have in place an asset
management strategy then it cannot be clear on the
correct mix of properties to invest in and the risk vs
returns required.

going to Cabinet in July.

The following areas of work have, as a
result, been highlighted for priority
attention,

a) The Property Acquisition Process

b) A Review of the Investment
Portfolio

c) A Review of the Rent Arrears
Process

d) An audit of Property Ownership

e) Procurement of an Asset
Management system to digitise

Head of Regeneration &
Property




£¢T abed

records

Priority key for way forwards

High priority

A fundamental weakness in the system/area that puts the Authority at risk. To be addressed as a matter of
urgency.

Medium priority

A moderate weakness within the system/area that leaves the system/area open to risk.

Low priority A minor weakness in the system/area or a desirable improvement to the system/area.

Audit Title 2 Disabled Facilities Grants

Year of Audit | 2018/19

Assurance Substantial — Key controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place. There are

given opportunities to enhance/strengthen these controls.

Overview of The Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) system is managed by the Private Sector Housing Team (PSHT).

area
The team facilitate the grants on behalf of residents, with the funding coming from Central Government as part of the Better
Care Fund initiatives. The 2018/19 budget was £1.2m, which includes a top-up of funds of £92k allocated by the Department
of Health early in 2019.
Residents can apply to claim on the funds available, with the assessment and recommendation for works needed undertaken
by Occupational Therapists from Hampshire County Council. For the more complex cases, there is often a partnership
approach involving the PSHT and a professional quantity surveyor to identify the most appropriate solution.

Priority Key findings Management response and agreed | Action by who and
action when
Concern A sentence will be added to the existing Hilary Smith, Private
Within the Application Form and Grant Approval DFG approval document to explain the Sector Housing
Medium documentation, there is no reference to the applicant’s responsibilities for Manager / Sue Berry,

responsibility of the owner/resident for servicing, repair, | maintenance of the adaptation on Private Sector Housing
maintenance, etc of equipment provided / works completion. This will detail any guarantee | Officer — To make the




v£T abed

completed and when this applies.

Risk:

There may be misunderstanding as to the responsibility
for equipment installed and works completed once
Completion Forms are signed.

periods.

relevant changes in
liaison with IT

28" June 2019

Concern

As part of the sample testing it was identified that:

- For one sample, the Schedule of Works could not be
located.

- For one sample, the Planning and Building Control

Officers have been reminded of the
importance of recording all relevant
documents on UNIFORM and IDOX and
checking.

Officers to check documents provided by

Hilary ~Smith, Private
Sector Housing
Manager

31 May 2019

Low documents were not sent on by the QS. the surveyors and ensure that all
documents are submitted to the council
Risk: on completion of works.
Supporting documentation for grants claims is not
complete and statutory compliance cannot be verified.

Medium Concern Meeting held with Katherine Berry from Hilary Smith, Private
The quotation parameters applied for the DFG work do | Procurement team on 15" May 2019 and Sector Housing
not correspond with the RBC Contract Standing Orders | agreed that three quotes will be required Manager
for works up to £10,000. once the new framework agreement is

set up. This will include all DFG works Not yet determined.
Risk: except those covered by the ESPO 364 Will include end date of
RBC Contract Standing Orders are not being complied | framework agreement which covers the current process and
with and could be subject to challenge. provision of stairlifts, thru-floor lifts and start date of new
hoists as these have already been compliant process.
procured.
Medium Concern This will require a framework agreement Hilary Smith, Private

The current DFG work is undertaken by a group of
around 12 contractors who quote for work on a
rotational basis selected by the team. The group was
inherited from the Homes Improvement Agency and
then evolved over time, and some contractors are
invited to quote more often than others.

Risk:
Selection could be as inequitable and subject to
challenge and there may be a more efficient and

to be set up for all contractors involved in
DFG works with the exception of stairlifts,
thru-floor lifts and hoists (ESPO 364).
Hilary Smith to provide list of contractors
who have or are likely to carry out DFG
work in Rushmoor. The framework is to
be set up for a four-year period.

Hilary Smith to provide details of
contractor requirements, in consultation
with the Council’s property and estates

Sector Housing
Manager

No date set but as
above, end date and
new compliant process
date to be set




GeT abed

effective value for money procurement process, e.g.
Framework, for the appointment of contractors.

team.

A further meeting with the Procurement
team has been set up for 12th June 2019
to move this forward, at which point we
will be in a position to consider when the
new framework agreement will start.

Low Concern This will be dealt with as part of the new Hilary Smith, Private
For the occasional contracts over £50,000, the framework agreement. The maximum for Sector Housing
Procurement Service is not consulted for guidance on each DFG is £30,000. Manager
the best approach and requirements, e.g. advertising
on the South East Business Portal (SEBP). No date set but as

above, end date and
Risk: new compliant process
RBC Contract Standing Orders are not being complied date to be set
with and could be challenged.

Medium Concern Annual financial checks will be made on Hilary Smith, Private
a) The financial stability of contractors is not formally all contractors as part of the new Sector Housing
verified. framework agreement. Manager
b) There is an expectation that contractor works would
be guaranteed for 12 months but this is not formally set No date set but as
out in the purchase orders / process. above, end date and

new compliant process
date to be set
Risk:
Work could be awarded to a financially unstable
contractor and there could be misunderstanding of
responsibility should any issues arise.
High Concern A separate framework agreement will be Hilary Smith, Private

Two quantity surveying services are exclusively used
(with one particularly favoured- BJC Design with
payments in 2018/19 of c.£46k). The Contract Standing
Orders ‘requirement of aggregation’ are not applied in
assessing contract requirements.

set up to procure quantity surveying
services.

Hilary Smith to provide details of existing
surveyors and to provide details of
surveyor requirements in consultation

Sector Housing
Manager

No date set but as
above, end date and
new compliant process




o¢T abed

Risk:

RBC Contract Standing Orders are not being complied
with and the EU Public Procurement Directives for
services may be breached.

with the council’s Property and Estates
team.

date to be set

Medium Concern This will be dealt with by the new Hilary Smith, Private
There is no annual verification of the Professional framework agreement. Sector Housing
Indemnity Insurance for the two quantity surveying Manager
services or the Public Liability insurance for the
contractors. In the meantime, the two existing No date set but as
surveyors will be asked to provide their above, end date and
Risk: public liability insurance information. new compliant process
Services and works could be being provided without the date to be set.
appropriate insurances in place. All of the twelve existing contractors who
currently carry out DFG works have 28™M June 2019
provided details of their public liability
insurance.
Medium Concern All contractors and surveyors will be Hilary Smith, Private

Contracts let over £5,000 are not being added to the
RBC Contracts Register.

Risk:

Contract Standing Orders (13.1) and the Central
Government Transparency Code requirements are not
being met.

added to the RBC Contracts Register by
the Procurement Team once a list is
provided to them.

Sector Housing
Manager

28" June 2019




/€T abed

Audit Title 3 Risk Management

Year of Audit | 2018/19

Assurance Limited — Minimal controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place. Significant

given improvements are required if key controls are to be established.

Overview of Risk is a key area across the Council. Appropriate identification and mitigation of the risks faced by the Council should be

area carried out at a strategic, corporate and service level.
Risks should be regularly reviewed to ensure that they remain a risk and are still being appropriately mitigated to a level
acceptable by the Council.
Risk Management was highlighted within the annual audit opinion for 2017/18 as an area where action would enhance the
adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control. Furthermore, the implementation of a risk
management process was an action within the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18.

Priority Key findings Management response and agreed | Action by who and
action when
_ A risk management process has not been clearly The Corporate Risk Management Policy David Stanley,
High formulated, communicated or embedded within the will be reviewed as a result of changes to Executive Head of




geT abed

Council. There are gaps in:

e The formal documenting of risks at a corporate
and service level

e Understanding the risk appetite of the Council

e Ensure a standard process is consistently used
across the Councll

e Ensuring the risk are being mitigated to a level
which is within the Council’s risk appetite.

Risk: Without a risk management process the risks to
the Council may not be appropriately identified or
mitigated, which could result in a major impact to the
Council.

the organisational structure and
responsibilities during 2018/19.

The Corporate Risk Management Group
(CRMG) will meet regularly during the
year (at least quarterly), with the first
meeting due to take place in July 2019.

The Corporate Risk Register will be
reviewed by CRMG in July 2019 to
ensure the format is fit for purpose, and
that all key risks have been identified,
scored, and reviewed effectively.

Risk management will be embedded in
the organisation through the inclusion of
risks within Service Business Plans, and
through reporting of key Strategic Risks
through Corporate Leadership Team
(CLT) on at least a quarterly basis.

Finance

October 2019

Audit Title 4 Contract Management and Monitoring

Year of Audit | 2018/19

Assurance Reasonable — Basic controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place.

given Improvements are required if key controls are to be established.

Overview of A review of the Contract Management was undertaken to ensure that contracts are being managed and monitored effectively

area in achieving their objectives both financially and operationally.
The Senior Procurement Officer assists Contract Managers with the tendering and contract award activities of new suppliers
and will ensure that the correct policies (local, national and European) and legal procedures are followed and adhered to.
Contract Managers are then expected to manage their contract on a day-to-day basis.

Priority Key findings Management response and agreed | Action by who and

action

when

High

Corporate Framework

Agreed

David Stanley,




6£T abed

There is no Contract Management corporate
framework in place to provide guidance for
Contract Managers, Procurement and
management to:

a) Assess the level of contract management
required, e.g. formal, ad-hoc, ‘light touch’;

b) Assess the risk to the business, e.g. financial,
Health and Safety, reputational, business
continuity, etc;

c) To re-assess the level of contract management
as the contract becomes established and client
relationships evolve;

d) Set out the requirement of recording meeting
minutes / contract issues / progress, including the
need for a standard template;

e) Set out the steps to take if a contractor’s

performance / quality of delivery is inadequate, e.g.

KPlIs.

f) Set out the process for the review / monitoring of
continual contracts, e.g. HAGS/SMP Ltd, those
contracts with expiry dates and any action
required, e.g. PHS;

g) Set out the process for adding on to the
Contract Register;

h) Set out the process when handing over an on-
going contract to a new manager to oversee, e.g.
PHS.

i) Set out the reporting requirements to senior
management and Members.

Risk: There is an inconsistent level of contract
management which puts business operations at
risk together with potential financial implications.

The Executive Head of Finance will
review the guidance for Contract
Managers concerning contract
management with the aim of
producing a framework for contract
management.

Whilst there are advantages to a
standardised approach, there are a
number of factors that will inform the
approach to contract management
such as risk, contract value etc.

Therefore, guidance will set out the
principles of contract management
with contract managers to include
proportionate contract management
measures in contract documents.

Executive Head of
Finance

Katherine Berry,
Principal Procurement
Officer

October 2019




ot T abed

Contract Managers are not guided as to how to
balance good control with resources available.

Medium

Contract Terms

Under Contract Standing Orders, it is not
mandatory for contracts under £50,000 to have a
contract, with a purchase order being used
incorporating the standard RBC terms and
conditions. There is no specific assessment of
whether more contractual protection is needed for
certain contracts.

Risk: The Council may be at risk when
experiencing performance concerns, are in dispute
or wanting to terminate a contract, without the
insurance of specific contract terms.

This will be investigated as part of the
review of the Council’s Contract
Standing Orders.

David Stanley,
Executive Head of
Finance

October 2019

High

Key Roles

There is no corporate guidance that sets out the
clear roles and responsibilities for the Contract
Managers, Procurement and management.

Risk: The key officers in the management of
contracts are unaware of their responsibilities and
the expectations of their role.

New guidance for Contract Managers
will be issued following the review
and adoption of the Council’s
Contract Standing Orders

Katherine Berry,
Principal Procurement
Officer

November 2019

Medium

Guidance / Training
There is no formal written guidance on Inform or
training available for contract managers.

Agreed but not implemented

This will be considered as part of a

All contract managers

July 2019




T¢T abed

Risk: Contracts managers are not being given the
opportunity to attain the appropriate skills or be
guided by best practice.

wider review of the training and
support requirements for contract
managers.

Visits to Sites

As part of some contracts, contractor visits to sites
are required, e.g. PHS, 3C. Under the PHS
contract, Health and Safety requirements of
signing in and out were not being applied until an
iIssue arose. For 3C, there are detailed specific
Health and Safety conditions in the contract.

Contractors conducting site visits will
be reminded of the Health & Safety
conditions stipulated in the contract

David Stanley,
Executive Head of
Finance

September 2019

Medium
Risk: For site visits involving contractors, contract
managers should ensure that all Health and Safety
and security requirements are adhered to at all
times.
Sharing Knowledge Agreed
There are no pro-active resilience arrangements. Whilst the recommendation is agreed,
The contracts reviewed identified that detailed services are responsible for their own
knowledge of managing these was generally held | business continuity arrangements.
with a single officer and there is no active These should set out the
Medium approach to identify the highest risk contracts. arrangements in place for managing

Risk: Operations and service delivery could be
disrupted with the absence of a key contract
manager.

the highest risk contracts.

Heads of Service will be reminded of
the need to ensure that a detailed
contract management information is
documented and available to services




Zv1 abed

to mitigate the risk of service delivery
failure

Division of Duties

For most contract payments, there are no division
of duties, with the checking and authorising of
invoices being managed solely by the Contract

Agreed

A review of the authorisation process
for contract invoice payments through
Integra will be undertaken to ensure

Alan Gregory, Finance
Manager

Morag McVey,

Medium Manager. that there is an adequate separation | Payments and
of duties. Insurance Manager
Risk: The Council is vulnerable to the risk of fraud. September 2019
Verifying Invoices The Finance team will consider the | Alan Gregory, Finance
For one contract (PHS) the invoice is sent directly | arrangements in place for contract | Manager
to Accounts Payable and there is no check invoice submission so that they are
undertaken by the Contract Manager of the rates approved by the appropriate contract | Morag McVey,
paid. manager. Payments and
Medium Insurance Manager
Risk: 'If Contract Managerg do not receiye invoices September 2019
to review them, the Council cannot confirm the
correct rates are being applied.
Verifying Rates Agreed David Stanley,
The contracts setting out the schedule of rates for | Whilst the recommendation is agreed, | Executive Head of
PHS, Capita and Northgate could not be located to | services are responsible for their own | Finance
enable the verification of the rates invoiced. business continuity arrangements.
. These should set out the | September 2019
Medium Risk: The Council cannot confirm that the correct

rates are being applied and paid.

arrangements in place for managing
the highest risk contracts.

Heads of Service will be reminded of
the need to ensure that a detailed
contract management information is




ciT abed

documented and available to services
to mitigate the risk of service delivery
failure

Local Procedures

For the contracts reviewed, there were no local
procedures in place setting out the management
and payments processes.

Risk: Operations and service delivery could be

Agreed

Whilst the recommendation is agreed,
services are responsible for their own
business continuity arrangements.
These should set out the local
procedures in place for contracts.

David Stanley,
Executive Head of
Finance

September 2019

Low disrupted with the absence of a key contract _ _ _
manager. Heads of Service will be remln.ded of
the need to ensure that a detailed
contract management information is
documented and available to services
to mitigate the risk of service delivery
failure
Sharing Knowledge Whilst this is considered best | Katherine Berry,
There is no corporate process for the sharing of practice, there is not a clear | Principal Procurement
contract experiences, good practice, issues management response to this | Officer
arising, etc, e.g. the recent PHS contract. recommendation.
Low December 2019
Risk: The organisation is not communicating the | 1€ Council’s Principal Procurement
good and poor contract management lessons to Officer will consider ways to improve
relevant parties to inform future practice. knowledge sharing and good practice
Audit Title 5 Planning Applications
Year of Audit | 2018/19
Assurance Substantial - Key controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place. There are opportunities
given to enhance/strengthen these controls.
Overview of The Planning Team process approximately 1,000 applications a year with a variety of different application types and
area associated fees. Workload can vary with peaks and troughs through the year. In 2017-18, the team exceeded government

targets on statutory time limits for decision making and on the quality of decisions based on appeal statistics.




v T abed

The majority of staff within the Planning Team have worked at the Council for a number of years and have considerable
experience. A number of recent structural changes have taken place at Senior Management level and line management has

changed for a number of staff.

Priority Key findings Management response and agreed | Action by who and
action when
Concern: As part of the departmental re- John Thorne, Interim
organisation and alignment of Corporate Planning
There is no standard checklist or prompt to ensure that | management and reporting, the Manager
officers have taken all the practical steps necessary Development Management procedure
(i-e. fee check, all relevant consultees/neighbours notes will be revised and updated to March 2020
comments captured, publicity, site visit, notifications of | address this.
decision) to process an application. It may be beneficial
to consider such a prompt/check in light of the following
findings from sample testing of 20 applications:
e In 6 applications sampled, contributors made
representations. For 2 out of these 6
applications, the contributors were not notified
about the decision.
Medium ¢ In 1 of the sample, there was no scanned fee

receipt or receipt number added to
Uniform/IDOX

e In 2 of the sample, the website indicated that no
comments had been made but there were
comments identified on the Uniform system.

e In 1 of the sample, the site visit notes and
photos had not been saved to the system in
error.

Risk: There is a risk that key administrative/process
steps may be missed; this potentially exposes the
Council to criticism/complaints/further unnecessary
work after the decision and/or loss of revenue.




GiT abed

Concern:

The scheme of delegation on the website giving
delegated authority to the Head of Planning is dated
2004, and the document setting out the powers and
duties of the Development Management Committee is
dated 2014.

Revisions to the constitution and the
Scheme of Delegation are anticipated to
take place in autumn 2019.

Andrew Colver, Head of

Democracy,  Strategy
and Partnerships/ Jill
Shuttleworth,

Democracy and

Partnership Manager

Low October 2019
Risk: These documents may benefit from a review and
refresh as they may not be totally up to date or
compatible with current processes, especially in light of
the interim structural changes.
Concern: Up to date JD for PPO and DO exist John Thorne, Interim
dating from recent job evaluation and Corporate Planning
There were no job descriptions available at the audit recruitment advertising. They will be Manager
from HR for the following roles: shared with HR
o . . June 2019
- Principal Planning Officer (Development
Management), - Development Officer Tim Mills, Head of
- the newly created Interim Corporate Planning JD for new CPM post to be prepared. Economy, .Plannln.g and
Manager. Strategic Housing
Medium

The following concerns were also identified/observed
from discussions with staff about roles and
responsibilities:

e Capacity of Principal Planning Officers (PPOSs)
to offer necessary support/guidance and training
if there are changes to the types of planning
applications officers are asked to consider.

o PPO workload and the potential for delay to

These points have already been
recognised and inform the proposed
reorganisation of management and
reporting. They are all pertinent to the
design of the reorganisation and will be
taken into account as part of that
process.

Caseloads are within expected levels.

September 2019

Interim
Planning

John Thorne,
Corporate
Manager /Tim Mills,
Head of Economy,
Planning and Strategic
Housing

March 2020




o1 abed

decision making if they do not have capacity to
provide support/advice/time for discussion.

e Excessive PPO workload may cause morale
issues at all levels.

¢ Need for alternative arrangements to be put in
place when PPOs are dealing with Committee
Closedown.

e Cover in the Interim Corporate Planning
Manager’s absence.

o Desire for greater clarity over who will be
expected to do what going forward, i.e. the
types of applications officers should and should
not be expected to consider at each level;
where responsibility sits for the administrative
elements of the process, etc.

¢ If administration processes are redistributed,
concern that Planning Officers should retain
ownership of the application description and
consultees.

¢ Importance of being realistic and honest about
what can be achieved with the current resource
limitations.

Risk: If staff are not clear on their responsibilities and
the scope of their role, this may result in confusion and
misunderstanding. A lack of capacity to carry out
roles/responsibilities may result in delays; impact on
staff morale; and, have an adverse effect on the team’s
ability to meet KPls.

Medium

Concern:
There is no requirement for staff to agree to declare

Scheme of delegation is clear on limiting
delegated powers to take decisions on

Estelle Rigby/ Alison,
Corporate HR Manager




/¥T abed

any conflicts of interest when considering planning
applications.

Risk: In the event of any irregularity or accusation, it
could not be evidenced that staff were aware of their
responsibilities to highlight any potential conflict of
interest.

applications made by
employees/relatives and Councillors.

All decisions require a recommendation
and separate authorisation

Staff will be reminded annually of their
responsibilities. Whether there should be
a requirement to acknowledge and sign
up to a code of conduct regarding
personal interests will be considered as
part of wider of corporate governance

and Catriona Herbert,
Corporate Manager —
Legal Services

October 2019

Concern: Revised SCI in preparation, currently out | John Thorne, Interim
The Statement of Community involvement published on | to consultation which addresses this Corporate Planning
the website indicates that the Council will go beyond issue. Manager
statutory requirements and include a publication about
householder/minor applications in a local newspaper. It December 2019
is no longer the Council’s practice to go beyond
Low statutory requirements on publication (ceased about 18
months ago).
Risk: The Statement of Community Involvement is not
up to date with current practice and there is a risk of
complaint that the Council is not in compliance with
their published policy.
Concern Attributable to human/computer error in John Thorne, Interim
On a review of data published on the website, a total of | entering information and status to the Corporate Planning
11 applications (received between April and December | Uniform system. These anomalies are Manager
2018 that were over the 26 week deadline under the found and corrected when preparing
planning guarantee), were showing on the website as quarterly reports. Ongoing on a quarterly
Medium status ‘unknown’. basis

Risk: Inaccurate information is being reported to the
public.

Auditor note: This was explained at the audit as due to
system issues from the categorisation chosen on




81T abed

Uniform and not as a result of failing to make a
decision.

Concern: Human/computer/contractor errors can John Thorne, Interim
For 1 out of the 20 sample applications tested, the occur when entering documents into the | Corporate Planning
wrong document (a piece of correspondence between Development Management System. Manager
the Planning Officer and an agent) was saved as the These are corrected when they come to
‘decision notice’ and published on the website in error. | light. All staff have received GDPR Complete
There was no indication that the document contained training and are aware of the need to
Low sensitive personal data. The issue was rectified during | safeguard and redact personal data.
the audit and the correct document saved to the
system.
Risk: If incorrect documents are published, there is a
risk that sensitive data could inadvertently be made
public and contravene the Data Protection Act.
Concern: These points are all pertinent to the John Thorne, Interim
During discussions with planning staff, the following design of the reorganisation of Corporate Planning
concerns were raised: management and reporting and have Manager
e Current performance management informed the need for and will be taken
arrangements do not identify whether work is into account as part of that process March 2020
shared out consistently and workloads are
balanced; there is a perception that this is not
: always the case.
Medium e Staff do not receive feedback on performance
against targets and would find this beneficial.
Risk: If staff feel that performance management
systems are not identifying concerns over workload
balance and performance, or not recognising good
performance, this may have a negative impact on
morale.
Concern The majority of fees are prescribed Complete
Medium Exceptions in testing identified: clearly in regulations and on the

e For 1 of the 20 sample applications tested, there

was no evidence of a scanned fee receipt or

Council’s website. Those submitted via
the planning portal are calculated by the




61T abed

receipt number.

o For 1 sample, it was not evident from the
documents saved on Uniform how the fee of
over £50k had been calculated.

Risk: There is the possibility of under/overcharging or
complaints if fee calculations are not transparent.

website. No application can become live
and valid unless the fee is paid

Occasionally fees for large scale
complex applications involve some
interpretation of the regulations. This is
resolved in discussion at pre-application
stage. This discussion would be recorded
on the pre-app file rather than the
application file.




0GT abed

Audit Title 6

Contract Letting and Tendering - follow up

Year of Audit

2017/18

Assurance given
at time of the audit

Reasonable — Basic controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place.
Improvements are required if key controls are to be established.

Assurance given
at time of the
follow up

Reasonable — Basic controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place.
Improvements are required if key controls are to be established.

Overview of area

An audit was carried out on contract letting and tendering in January 2018.The audit found that whilst there is
a structured procurement process in place, in order for Rushmoor to achieve value for money going forward,
the focus on compliance and financial savings needs to be driven by Heads of Service with the robust support
of senior management.

The findings from this audit resulted in 9 medium priority and 4 low priority recommendations being made
which were agreed by management.

Management comment:
As the follow-up report sets out, there have been changes in the management structure of the Council which
has resulted in Financial Services having responsibility for Procurement.

The original recommendations from the audit in January 2018 remain unimplemented at the time of the follow-
up audit, and this management comment sets out the approach being taken by the Executive Head of Finance
and the Principal Procurement Officer to those findings.

The Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) and Financial Procedure Rules (FPRs) are being reviewed as part of
the wider review of the Council’s constitution and will be completed by September 2019. Therefore, it would
be more appropriate to review recommendations when the updated CSOs and FPRs have been formally
adopted by Council.

The Executive Head of Finance will review the Council’s strategic approach to procurement as part of the
Council’'s Saving Plan requirement. This may impact on the way in which procurement activities are
undertaken, use of frameworks etc.

Therefore, an updated management response to the follow-up audit will be provided to the committee in




TST abed

November 2019.

Priority

Way forward agreed

Follow up findings

Recommendation
status

Medium

The Contract Tendering and Letting
Framework is robust and is supported by
comprehensive Contract Standing Orders
(CSO) that were revised in 2015. Their
introduction was accompanied by training
which was taken up by ¢.85% of appropriate
budget managers and staff and it is
understood that there is to be re-fresher
training in early 2018. There is also guidance
available on Inform for officers and
management

Further training has been provided
which has been targeted to specific
areas of spend. At the end of the
financial year a spend analysis will be
carried out in order to develop a work
plan around procurement and training.

Not implemented

Low

Although the CSO states that there is a list in
place of authorised contracting officers for all
service areas, Audit were informed that this is
yet to be produced.

This has not been completed. This will
be the responsibility of the new
Corporate Legal Services Manager and
will be raised with her.

Not implemented

Medium

A Council’'s Contract Register is maintained
but was found to be incomplete with not all
contracts listed, as highlighted by an analysis
of spend undertaken by the Procurement
team. This was corroborated by the audit
review and the 17 contracts tested which
were not on the Register totalled expenditure
of £931,000 for 2016-17. There was also
some inconsistency in the level of detall
recorded, also required to meet Transparency
Code needs. In addition, there were
differences in the data between the
Procurement supplier spend analysis and
Finance figures provided.

Once the spend analysis has been
carried out in April then this will
be reviewed.

Not implemented




ZST abed

Medium

The Financial Procedure Rules are set out in
Part 4 of Rushmoor Borough Council’s
Constitution. The ‘Expenditure’ element may
not reflect current practice as the Rules are
dated December 2006.

The Financial Procedure Rules are
currently being updated by the Head of
Financial Services and are due to be
completed in 2019.

Not implemented

Medium

Rushmoor has a Procurement Strategy
(2010-2013) which is posted on the RBC
website and includes many contract related
references, including an action plan dated
from June 2010. The contract elements of the
strategy and the action plan may not reflect
current practice or future objectives or be
consistent with supporting the Council plan,
priorities or vision.

Due to the restructure of the Heads of
Service and the Procurement team
moving to a different service the
procurement strategy is still in draft
form. This strategy is due to be
implemented in 2019. Some further
work to enhance the procurement
strategy has come out of the
recommendations made from the
Contract Management audit.

Not implemented

Low

Audit found only partial compliance with
regards the retention of documentation being
held to support procurement decisions and
compliance with the CSO. Where the
Procurement team had been utilised to
facilitate the purchasing process, records
were complete, including recording on the
Contracts Register.

Further communication and training for
officers is required to ensure that
documents are sufficiently retained, and
details included on the Contracts
Register. This will be linked to the above
recommendation where further training
will be provided to officers.

Not implemented

Medium

Some suppliers’ frameworks have been set
up but are currently not being fully utilised
across the Authority.

The use of frameworks is increasing but
this will be reviewed further at the end of
the financial year once the year-end
analysis has been carried out.

Not implemented

Low

Procurement have demonstrated the financial
benefit of negotiation using a framework

The updated procurement strategy will
look to guide officers to use framework

Not implemented




€GT abed

agreement by securing preferential rates for
bothh a new contract and existing
arrangements in place with the same
supplier.

agreements where possible.

Low

It was noted that recruiting managers are
approaching various staff agencies directly to
employ temporary staff. There may be merit
in drawing up a centralised framework
agreement, which includes the current
providers.

Nothing has been done around this.

Not implemented

Medium

Testing indicated that in some instances,
there was non-compliance with the CSO, but
that the type of expenditure meant that an
approved ‘exemption’ was appropriate, e.g.
where professional acts can only be booked
through specific promoters, these had not
been applied for.

Only 1 exemption has been rejected.
However, it is unknown if exemptions
are being applied for, when appropriate.
Once an exemption has been rejected it
is unclear what happens. The use of
exemptions is an area that can be
picked up within the training for officers.

Not implemented

Medium

Some contracts reviewed were ongoing on a
rolling basis and it could not be demonstrated
that official ‘extensions’ had been approved or
that value for money was being
demonstrated.

This is still the case — non-compliance
with the Contract Standing Orders. This
IS an area that can be picked up within
the training for officers.

Not implemented

Medium

As per the CSO, financial checks of
contractors had not been undertaken for all
contracts with a total value in excess of
£50,000. This included on-going contracts
where ‘aggregation’ had not been taken into
account at the outset.

This is still the case. This is an area that
can be picked up within the training for
officers.

Not implemented




¥GT abed

Where suppliers were being sourced from a | This has also been highlighted within | Not implemented
rotation list for Disabled Facilities Grants, it | the Disabled Facilities Grants audit. A
was noted that this list had never been | recommendation was made, and action
subject to review and had been inherited from | is being taken to address this issue. The

Medium the Homes Agency. In addition, financial | Principal Procurement Officer has
checks of these companies had not been | started work with the Private Sector
carried out. Housing Manager relating to this as it

appears to be OJEU level.

Audit Title 7 Portable IT Equipment - follow up
Year of Audit 2017/18
Assurance given Limited — Minimal controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place. Significant

at time of the audit | improvements are required if key controls are to be established

Assurance given Limited — Minimal controls designed to achieve the system/function/process objectives, are in place. Significant
at time of the improvements are required if key controls are to be established
follow up

Overview of area An audit was carried out on IT portable equipment in March 2018. The audit found that controls in place for mobile
devices assigned to staff, were in need of significant improvement. The audit was unable to confirm if all mobile devices




were accounted for and being used.

The Council uses a Mobile Device Management system (MDM) to asset manage mobile devices. The use of an MDM
helps to comply with the Government’s Public Services Network (PSN) Code of Connection requirements and provides a
list on devices and owners.

The findings from this audit resulted in 6 recommendations being made, 3 medium priority and 3 Low priority, which
were agreed by management.

Management Comment:

The use of mobile devices (smart phones and tablets) has grown significantly and whilst every effort is made to
maintain details of all devices and recover older equipment, it has become clear that a more robust administrative
system is required. The new mobile phone contact is being implemented and work is underway to confirm the
exact number of devices to be bought under the new contract. At this point, it is proposed to re-set and establish
a new baseline. New polices will be introduced accordingly.

The IPad contained within the report will be written off and other smart devices returned.

It should be noted that all the 2018/19 smartphones returned during last years restructure have been internally

GGT abed

re-cycled.
Priority Way forward agreed Follow up findings Recommendation
status
Inventory Check A record of all mobile devices is held by IT, | Not implemented
A full physical inventory check should be however the system does not clearly show
undertaken by IT Service Desk of all mobile when a mobile device has been re-assigned
Medium phones owned by the Council. The database of to another user. Therefore, it appears that
users and assets held by IT should be the Council has more devices then it
reconstituted referencing each phone to an actually does. This also makes it difficult to
individual and accurate sim record. Some form of | monitor if leavers have returned their mobile
annual review should also be undertaken to devices.




9GT abed

ensure that phones issued were still required and
assigned to the right user.

The Head of IT, Facilities and Project
Services accepts that this is not a clear
system for monitoring devices held by the
Council and is currently looking into ways in
which this could be better managed without
it being an onerous process. This may
mean that the leavers process requires
updating to ensure better liaison with IT
when someone is leaving and checking
what devices are due to be returned.

Low

Updating Vodafone Billing Reference

Once an inventory check has been undertaken
and the database of phones reconstituted, phone
references for Vodafone itemised billing should be
updated online against the correct employee and
maintained.

The tender process for mobile phones has
just been completed. As a result, a list of all
mobile numbers currently used by the
Council has been identified. This data will
be recorded on the MDM system against
the relevant mobile devices.

Medium

Return of Mobile Phone

The former employee should be contacted to
return the phone that was issued with immediate
effect

It was unclear if this mobile phone had been
returned. This further highlights the need for
a clear record of mobile devices to ensure
that they are returned from leavers.

A cross reference of device serial numbers
was carried out as part of this audit. This
identified that the device was given to
another employee. However, it was
identified that the iPad had not been
returned.

A note within the system states that the
employee was keeping the device.
However, the Head of IT, Facilities and
Project Services confirms that this was not
agreed. As the item is of low value and now

Not applicable




/ST abed

pursuing this will prove difficult the Head of
IT, Facilities and Project Services has
stated that this item will be written off.

Low

Leavers Checklist

As part of the leaver process, HR should add an
entry to the existing leaver’s checklist prompting
the return of assigned equipment if applicable.

The return of assigned equipment is
detailed within the leaver’s checklist form.

Implemented

Medium

Mobile Phone Policy
The Mobile phone policy should be reviewed and
updated to reflect current requirements

Due to other corporate priorities, this has
not been carried out. The policy will be
updated and linked to the Bring Your Own
Device (BYOD) policy.

Not implemented

Low

Mobile Phone Policy Issue

The Mobile phone policy should be issued to all
existing users of a Council mobile phone and with
all newly issued mobile phones

Due to other corporate priorities, this has
not been carried out. Once the mobile
phone policy has been updated then this will
be issued to relevant staff.

Not implemented




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 4

LICENSING AUDIT & GENERAL PURPOSES EXECUTIVE HEAD OF FINANCE
COMMITTEE REPORT NO: FIN1922

29 JULY 2019

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS 2018/19

SUMMARY:

Treasury management operations for 2018/19 are presented in accordance with
strategic requirements. All treasury management activity during 2018/19 was
carried out in accordance with the Annual Treasury Management Strategy and
complied with the treasury and prudential indicators set out in that report, and with
the Treasury Management Code of Practice.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are requested to:

Note the contents of this report in relation to the treasury management
operations carried out during 2018/19

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

INTRODUCTION

The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s Code
of Practice on Treasury Management (‘the Code”), which includes the
requirement for determining a treasury strategy on the likely financing and
investment activity for the forthcoming financial year. The Code also
recommends that members be informed of Treasury Management activities at
least twice a year. This report therefore ensures this authority is embracing
best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s recommendations.

The Council has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore,
exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue
effect of changing interest rates. Full Council originally approved the Annual
Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 on 22 February 2018.

Appendix A shows the actual prudential indicators relating to treasury
activities and capital financing for 2018/19 and compares these to the
indicators set in the Annual Treasury Management Strategy for the year
2018/109.

Treasury Management Advice

The Council continued to engage the services of Arlingclose for independent
treasury advice during the year 2018/19. Arlingclose provide specialist
treasury support to 25% of UK local authorities. They provide a range of
treasury management services including technical advice on debt and
investment management and long-term capital financing. They advise on

Page 159



2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

4.1

investment trends, developments and opportunities consistent with the
Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy.

With the exception of pooled funds all investment activity is carried out by the
Council’'s own treasury team with advice from Arlingclose, and having due
regard to information from other sources such as the financial press and credit-
rating agencies.

Pooled funds are managed at the discretion of the external fund managers
associated with each fund. It should however be noted that whilst the funds
are externally managed, the decision as to whether to invest lies solely with
the Council in accordance with its Treasury Management Strategy.

The needs of the Council’'s treasury management staff for training in
investment management are assessed on an ongoing basis and as part of the
staff appraisal process, and additionally when the responsibilities of individual
members of staff change. During 2018/19, staff attended relevant workshops
provided by Arlingclose and other service providers.

EXTERNAL CONTEXT

The Council’s treasury management advisors have provided commentary on
the economic background that prevailed during the year 2018/19. This
commentary is provided at Appendix B.

LOCAL CONTEXT

On 31st March 2019, the Council had net borrowing of £37m arising from its
revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow
for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR),
while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources
available for investment. These factors are summarised in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary

31.3.19
Actual
£m

General Fund CFR 58.3
MRP -0.3
Adjustment of IFRIC 4 lease accounting 2.8
Total CFR 60.8
Total borrowing 61.2
Total Investments 24.2

Page 160



4.2

the year is shown in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary

The treasury management position at 315t March 2019 and the change during

31.3.18 31.3.19 | 31.3.19
Movement
Balance cm Balance | Rate
£m £m %

Long-term borrowing 1.7 (0.4) 1.3 0
Short-term borrowing 12.4 47.5 59.9 0.96
Total borrowing 14.1 47.1 61.2
Long-term investments (19.9) (2) (21.9) 4.7
Short-term investments (4.5) 4.5 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents (3.2) (0.9) (2.3) 0.48
Total investments (27.6) (3.4) 24.2
Net borrowing/(investments) (13.5) 43.7 37

Borrowing Activity in 2018/19

4.3 At 315t March 2019 the Council held £61.2m of loans, an increase of £47.1m
since 315t March 2018, as part of its strategy for funding previous and current
years’ capital programmes. Outstanding loans on 31t March 2019 are

summarised in Table 3 below.

Table 3: Borrowing Position

31/03/18 | Net 31/03/19 | 31/03/19
Balance | Movement | Balance | Rate
£m £m £m %

LEP (long-term) 1.7 -0.4 1.3 0

LEP (short-term) 0.4 0 0.4 0

Local authorities 12 475 595 0.96

(short-term)

Total borrowing 14.1 47.1 61.2 0.96

4.4 The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change
being a secondary objective.

4.5  With short-term interest rates remaining much lower than long-term rates, the
Council considered it to be more cost effective in the near term to use short-

term loans.

Page 161



Investment Activity in 2018/19

4.6 The Council holds significant invested funds. During the year, the Council’s
investment position is shown in table 4 below.

Table 4: Treasury Investment Position

Balance at Movement in Balance at
Average Rate

31/03/18 year 31/03/19
£m £m %
Managed in-house:
Money Market Funds 3.2 -0.9 2.3 0.48 ok
Yields...Libor
Covered Bonds 4.5 -4.5 0 +1.18% -
1.47%

Managed externally:
Pooled Funds:
CCLA LAMIT Property Fund 3.9 0 3.9 5.27 *x

M&G Investments Strategic

Corporate Bond Fund 4 0 4 437 o
Payden 5 -5 0 0.4 *
UBS Multi Asset Fund 5 0 5 3.95 o
Kamas 0 2 2 5.17
Threadneedle Investments 2 0 2 3.06 o
Schroder Income Maximiser Fund 0 5 5 6.4 *
Total Investments 27.6 -3.4 24.2

*Annualised return as purchased during 2018/19
**Based on 12 month average April 2018 to March 2019

4.7  The following chart illustrates the spread of investment by type of investment
(figure 1) along with maturity analysis (figure 2).

Figure 1: Type of Counterparty

M Pooled Funds
B Covered Bonds

MMF'S

Page 162



Figure 2: Maturity analysis

M Instant
H 0 - 3 months
3 -6 months

M6 - 12 months

m>1year
Table 5: Maturity analysis
Maturity Analysis for ALL : :
INVESTMENTS Amount invested £ % of total investments
Instant 2,340,000 10%
0 - 3 months 0 0%
3 -6 months 0 0%
6 - 12 months 0 0%
> 1 year 21,900,000 90%
Total for all duration periods 24,240,000 100
4.8 Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest

4.9

its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
treasury investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The
Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults
and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Given the increasing risk and low returns from short-term unsecured bank
investments, the Council has diversified into more secure and higher yielding
asset classes as shown in table 4 above. £2m was moved from covered bonds
into pooled multi-asset funds. The Council has also restructured its pooled
fund holding by moving £5m from an absolute return fund (Payden) to an
equity income pooled fund (Schroder Income Maximiser). As a result,
investment risk was diversified spreading risk and the average income return
was 4.46% as compared with 1.05% in 2017-18.

Page 163



4.10 The graph below has been produce by Arlingclose and demonstrates that the
Council income only returns on total investment portfolio was 4.46%, the
highest return of all Arlingclose’s Council clients

Figure 3: Total income return on investment portfolio

Income Only Return on Total Investments (Internal plus External Funds)
4.5%

The rate of return has been calculated as:

4.0% External pooled funds: income only return for the past year, i.e. excluding
capital gains and losses.

Other investments: effective interest rate (EIR) of investments held at the
quarter end date.

3.5%

Since investment portfolios change over time, this will not equal your actual
rate of return for the past year, but is a snapshet of current returns.

3.0%

2.5%

2.0%

1.0%

0.5%

1.5% }

0.0%

| ® Average income on internal investments m Over-performance of external funds m Rushmoor - 31/03/2019

4.11 The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts from
Arlingclose’s quarterly investment benchmarking in Table 6 below.

Table 6: Investment Benchmarking — Treasury investments managed in-house

Credit | Credit Bail-in
Score | Rating | Exposure
31.03.2018 1.05 AAA 70%
31.03.2019 3.73 AA- 100%
Similar
LAs 4.03 AA- 53%
All LAs

Page 164



External Strategic Pooled Funds

4.12 £21.9m of the Council’s investments are held in externally managed strategic
pooled equity, multi-asset, bond and property funds where short-term security
and liquidity are lesser considerations, and objectives are regular revenue
income and long-term price stability. During 2018/19 the funds were re-
structured to reduce risk through diversification and to increase capital and
income returns over the long-term. Capital and income returns have increased
in 2018/19 compared with 20178 by 0.9%. The pooled fund portfolio generated
an average total return in 2018/19 of 5%. A summary of returns and
diversification is set out below.

Figure 4: Pooled fund diversification

H Property M Multi-Asset M Bonds MEquity

Table 7: Pooled fund diversification

Type of Pooled Fund Amount invested £ % of total investments
Property 3,882,128 18%
Multi-Asset 11,000,000 50%
Bonds 2,000,000 9%
Equity 5,000,000 23%

21,882,128 100%

Page 165




Figure 5: Total returns year-on-year comparison

6

S

w

N

=

2017/18 average return 2018/19 average return

HIncome H Capital

Table 8: Total return breakdown

2017/18 average return 2018/19 average return
Type of return % %
Income 3.9 4.46
Capital 0.2 0.54
Total Returns 4.1 5

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for
withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in
meeting the Council’s investment objectives is regularly reviewed. Strategic
fund investments are made in the knowledge that capital values will move both
up and down on months, quarters and even years; but with the confidence that
over a three to five-year period total returns will exceed cash interest rates. In
light of their performance over the medium-/long-term and the Council’s latest
cash flow forecasts, investment in these funds has been increased.

Details of the Council’s investment activity together with returns generated
during 2018/19 are outlined as follows:

Capital returns — the Council’s pooled funds have continued to experience
some variations in performance during the year 2018/19. Aggregation of the
Council’s pooled funds resulted in an overall net increase in fair value for the
year 2018/19 of around £118,000(an aggregate increase of 0.54% of overall
pooled funds invested).

There is variation in performance across the portfolio as shown in figure 6
below.

Page 166



4.17

Figure 6: Movement in capital value of pooled funds during 2018/19
6000000

5000000 S o o ° K
== &/
/

4000000
3000000 /

2000000 L]

1000000

Investment 31/03/2018 30/06/2018 30/09/2018 31/12/2018 31/03/2019

=@==Payden —=@=—CCLA
=@=BS Threadneedle
M&G =@==Schroder Income Maximiser Z Income

=@=Kames Diversified

Income Returns — The income returned by fund for the period to 315t March
2019 is analysed below:

o Payden & Rygel’s Sterling Reserve Fund - £5 million investment at the
commencement of the year. Total holding sold in November 2018. The
Fund seeks to provide capital security, liquidity and income through
investment in Sterling denominated investment-grade debt securities.
The fund’s performance for 2018/19 was 0.4% annualised income
return.

o CCLA’s Local Authorities’ Mutual Investment Trust - £3.9 million
investment at commencement of the year. The Property Fund is
designed to achieve long-term capital growth and income from
investments in the commercial property sector. The fund has returned
5.27% income during 2018/19.

o UBS Multi-Asset Income Fund - £5 million investment. This fund follows
a strategy of reducing volatility exposure levels by spreading
investments across a diversified range of asset classes. This fund has
returned 3.95% income during 2018/19.

o Threadneedle Strategic Bond Fund - £2 million investment. The fund
aims to provide income and capital appreciation through investment
grade and high yield bonds. This fund has returned 3.06% income
during 2018/19

Page 167



4.18

5.2

° M & G Corporate Bond Fund - £4m investment. This fund aims for a

target total return of 3-5% from a combination of investment income or
capital appreciation. This fund has returned 4.37% income during
2018/199.

° Schroder Income Maximiser Fund - £5m investment made in December

2018. The fund aims to provide both income and capital growth,
delivering a target income of 7% per annum. The fund has returned
6.4% annualised during 2018/19.

. Kames Diversified Monthly Income Fund - £2m investment made in

February 2019. The fund aims is to provide income with the potential
for capital growth over the medium term. The fund has returned 5.17%
annualised during 2018/19.

Internally Managed Investments

Bonds - debt instruments in which an investor lends money for a specified
period of time at a fixed rate of interest. Covered bonds are conventional
bonds that are backed by a separate group of loans (usually prime residential
mortgages). When the covered bond is issued, it is over collateralised, with
the pool of assets being greater than the value of the bond. During the year,
one covered bond was redeemed. The Council has redeemed all covered
bonds during 2018/19.

TREASURY PERFORMANCE

The Council measures the financial performance of its treasury management
activities both in terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship
to benchmark interest rates.

Compliance - The Chief Finance Officer reports that all treasury management
activities undertaken during the year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of
Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy with the
exception of current account balance limits. As set out in the Council’'s 2018/19
Treasury Management Strategy there is a £2m limit on the main current
account. During the 2018/19 financial year there were two periods (total of 8
working days) where the Council held balances in its main current account
above the £2m. The excess balances were due to timing differences between
raising funds and purchasing property. The finance section manages treasury
activity rigorously and is exploring options to mitigate such timing differences
in the future.

Page 168



5.3

Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 9 below.

Table 9: Debt Limits

2018/19 2018/19 :
31.3.19 Complied?
| Operational | Authorised P
Actual | gondary Limit
Borrowing 61.2 71 76 Yes
Total debt 61.2 71 76

5.4

Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external
debt is demonstrated in table 10 below.

Table 10: Investment Limits

31.3.19 | 2018/19 | Complied?
Actual Limit
Any group of pooled funds under the 21.9m 25m Yes
same management
Money Market Funds 2.3m 20m Yes
5.5 Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it
is not significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to
variations in cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.
6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS
6.1 The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators.
6.2  Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to

credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its
investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size
of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their
perceived risk.

31.3.19 | 2018/19 .
?
Actual Target Complied-
Portfolio average credit rating AA- A- YES

Page 169



6.3

6.4

6.4

6.5

6.6

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s
exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact
of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

31.3.19 2018/19 .
?
Actual Limit Complied-
Uppgr I|r.n|t.on one-year impact of a _£166.,000 | £500,000 Yes
1% rise in interest rates.
Upper I|'m|.t on one-year impact of a £220,000 | £500,000 Yes
1% fall in interest rates.

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that
maturing loans and investments will be replaced at current rates.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the
Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the
maturity structure of all borrowing were:

31.3.18 | Upper Lower o
Actual Limit Limit Complied-
Under 12 months 99% 100% 0% YES
12 months and within 24 1% 100% 0% YES
months
24 months and within 5 0% 100% 0% YES
years
5 years and within 10 years 0% 100% 0% YES
10 years and above 0% 100% 0% YES

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 days: The purpose
of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring
losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-
term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end were:

2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2019/21
Qrclz(tjual principal invested beyond year £21.9m | £21.9m | £21.9m
|élr:glt on principal invested beyond year £40m £40m £40m
Complied? YES YES YES

Page 170



6.7

7.1

7.2

Investment yield: The Council’'s revised estimates regarding investment
yields and costs compared to the actual outturn for 2018/19 is shown in the
table below.

Budgeted income and outturn Revised Actual Variance
Estimate 2018/19
2018/19
£000 £000 £000
Interest receivable (977) (1035) (58)
Interest Payable 176 181 5
Net Amount (801) (854) (53)

CONCLUSIONS ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS
2018/19

The Council’s treasury team continued to concentrate on the security of
investments taking due regard for the returns available. The investment
portfolio has been re-structured during 2018/19, improving diversification of
funds and increase the yield on investments by £189,000 from original 2018/19
budget.

With increased levels of borrowing the treasury team continually reviews the
borrowing strategy, weighing up interest rate levels and risk of refinancing.
During the 2018/19 financial year short-term interest rates have remained
low and are forecast to remain low. Therefore, all borrowing deals in 2018/19
have been made with short-term maturities. As the level of borrowing
continues to increase the risk of holding the whole portfolio in short-term
arrangements increases refinancing risk and consideration is being taken to
restructure the debt portfolio to spread the risk between short-term and
longer-term arrangements.

Contact Details:

Report author:
Alan Gregory - Finance Manager
01252 398443
Alan.Gregory@rushmoor.gov.uk

Head of Service:

David Stanley - Executive Head of Finance
01252 398440
David.Stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk

Page 171


mailto:Alan.Gregory@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:David.Stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

1.1 Prudential Indicators

Estimates of Capital Expenditure: The Council’s planned capital expenditure

and financing may be summarised as follows.

APPENDIX A

lc::iig:\?:li rI‘E;(penditure and R%g\}?s/;dg 2210%1:'

£m £m
General Fund 45.7 48.0
Total Expenditure 45.7 48.0
External sources 3.1 2.0
Own Resources 0.4 0.4
Borrowing 42.3 45.6
Total Financing 45.7 48.0

Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement:

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying
need to borrow for a capital purpose.

31.03.19| 31.03.19

Capital Financing Requirement Revised Actual

£m £m

General Fund 57.9 58.3

MRP -0.4 -0.3
IFRIC 4 Finance Lease

Adjustment 2.8 2.8

Total CFR 60.3 60.8

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that
over the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should
ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital
financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional
capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This
is a key indicator of prudence.

Page 172



31.03.19| 31.03.19

Debt Revised Actual
£m £m

Borrowing 60.7 61.2
Total Debt 60.7 61.2

The information above refers to the use of a revolving infrastructure fund from
the Local Enterprise Partnership (EM3 LEP).

Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary is based
on the Council’s estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent, but not worst case
scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Council’s estimates of capital
expenditure, the capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements, and
is a key management tool for in-year monitoring. Other long-term liabilities
comprise finance lease, Private Finance Initiative and other liabilities that are
not borrowing but form part of the Council’s debt.

2018/19 | 2018/19

Operational Boundary Revised Actual
£m £m

Borrowing 71.0 61.2
Total Debt 71.0 61.2

Authorised Limit for External Debt: The authorised limit is the affordable
borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.
It is the maximum amount of debt that the Council can legally owe. The
authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational boundary
for unusual cash movements.

2018/19 2018/19

Authorised Limit Revised Actual
£m £m

Borrowing 76.0 61.2
Total Debt 76.0 61.2

Page 173



Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an indicator of
affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed
capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required
to meet financing costs, net of investment income.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 201.8/19 2018/19
Revised Actual

Revenue Stream
% %
General Fund -4.2 -5

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: This is an indicator of
affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions on Council
Tax levels. The incremental impact is the difference between the total revenue
budget requirement of the current approved capital programme and the
revenue budget requirement arising from the capital programme proposed.

Incremental Impact of Capital 2018/19| 2018/19
pa P Revised Actual

Investment Decisions c c

General Fund - increase in

annual band D Council Tax -14.22 -12.8

Page 174



APPENDIX B

Market commentary regarding the year 2017/18 from the Council’s treasury
management advisors Arlingclose

External Context

Economic commentary

After spiking at over $85/barrel in October 2018, oil prices fell back sharply by the end
of the year, declining to just over $50 in late December before steadily climbing toward
$70 in April 2019. UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) for February 2019 was up 1.9%
year/year, just above the consensus forecast but broadly in line with the Bank of
England’s February Inflation Report. The most recent labour market data for the three
months to January 2019 showed the unemployment rate fell to a new low 3.9% while
the employment rate of 76.1% was the highest on record. The 3-month average annual
growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.4% as wages continue to rise steadily
and provide some upward pressure on general inflation. Once adjusted for inflation,
real wages were up 1.4%.

After rising to 0.6% in the third calendar quarter from 0.4% in the second, fourth quarter
economic growth slowed to 0.2% as weaker expansion in production, construction and
services dragged on overall activity. Annual GDP growth at 1.4% continues to remain
below trend. Following the Bank of England’s decision to increase Bank Rate to 0.75%
in August, no changes to monetary policy have been made since.

The US Federal Reserve continued its tightening bias throughout 2018, pushing rates
to the 2.25%-2.50% range in December. However, a recent softening in US data
caused the Fed to signal a pause in hiking interest rates at the last Federal Open
Market Committee (FOMC) meeting in March.

With the 29t March 2019, the original EU ‘exit day’ now been and gone, having failed
to pass a number of meaningful votes in Parliament, including shooting down Theresa
May’s deal for the third time, MPs voted by a maijority of one (313 to 312) to force the
prime minister to ask for an extension to the Brexit process beyond 12" April in order
to avoid a no-deal scenario. Recent talks between the Conservative and Labour
parties to try to reach common ground on a deal which may pass a vote by MPs have
yet to yield any positive results. The EU must grant any extension and its leaders
have been clear that the terms of the deal are not up for further negotiation. The
ongoing uncertainty continues to weigh on sterling and UK markets.

While the domestic focus has been on Brexit's potential impact on the UK economy,
globally the first quarter of 2019 has been overshadowed by a gathering level of
broader based economic uncertainty. The US continues to be set on a path of
protectionist trade policies and tensions with China in particular, but with the potential
for this to spill over into wider trade relationships, most notably with EU. The EU itself
appeared to be show signs of a rapid slowdown in economic growth with the major
engines of its economy, Germany and France, both suffering misfires from downturns
in manufacturing alongside continued domestic/populist unrest in France. The

Page 175



International Monetary Fund downgraded its forecasts for global economic growth in
2019 and beyond as a consequence.

Financial markets:

December was a month to forget in terms of performance of riskier asset classes, most
notably equities. The FTSE 100 (a good indicator of global corporate sentiment)
returned -8.8% assuming dividends were reinvested; in pure price terms it fell around
13%. However, since the beginning of 2019 markets have rallied, and the FTSE 100
and FTSE All share indices were both around 10% higher than at the end of 2018.

Gilt yields continued to display significant volatility over the period on the back of
ongoing economic and political uncertainty in the UK and Europe. After rising in
October, gilts regained their safe-haven status throughout December and into the new
year - the 5-year benchmark gilt yield fell as low as 0.80% and there were similar falls
in the 10-year and 20-year gilts over the same period dropping from 1.73% to 1.08%
and from 1.90% to 1.55%. The increase in Bank Rate pushed up money markets rates
over the year and 1-month, 3-month and 12-month LIBID (London Interbank Bid) rates
averaged 0.53%, 0.67% and 0.94% respectively over the period.

Recent activity in the bond markets and PWLB interest rates highlight that weaker
economic growth is not just a UK phenomenon but a global risk. During March the US
yield curve inverted (10-year Treasury yields were lower than US 3 month money
market rates) and German 10-year Bund vyields turned negative. The drivers are a
significant shift in global economic growth prospects and subsequent official interest
rate expectations given its impact on inflation expectations. Further to this is world
trade growth which collapsed at the end of 2018 falling by 1.8% year-on-year. A large
proportion of this downturn in trade can be ascribed to the ongoing trade tensions
between the US and China which despite some moderation in January does suggest
that the International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) and Organisation for Economic Co-
Operation & Development’s (OECD) forecasts for global growth in 2019 of 3.5% might
need to be revised downwards.

Credit background:

Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads drifted up towards the end of 2018 on the back of
Brexit uncertainty before declining again in 2019 and continuing to remain low in
historical terms. After hitting around 129 basis points in December 2018, the spread
on non-ringfenced bank NatWest Markets plc fell back to around 96bps at the end of
March, while for the ringfenced entity, National Westminster Bank plc, the CDS spread
held relatively steady around 40bps. The other main UK banks, as yet not separated
into ringfenced and non-ringfenced from a CDS perspective, traded between 33 and
79bps at the end of the period.

The ringfencing of the big four UK banks (Barclays, Bank of Scotland/Lloyds, HSBC
and RBS/Natwest Bank plc) transferred their business lines into retail (ringfenced) and

Page 176



investment banking (non-ringfenced) entities.

In February, Fitch put the UK AA sovereign long-term rating on Rating Watch Negative
as a result of Brexit uncertainty, following this move with the same treatment for UK
banks and a number of government-related entities.

There were minimal other credit rating changes during the period. Moody’s revised the
outlook on Santander UK to positive from stable to reflect the bank’s expected
issuance plans which will provide additional protection for the its senior unsecured
debt and deposits.

Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads drifted up towards the end of 2018 on the back of
Brexit uncertainty before declining again in 2019 and continuing to remain low in
historical terms. After hitting around 129 basis points in December 2018, the spread
on non-ringfenced bank NatWest Markets plc fell back to around 96bps at the end of
March, while for the ringfenced entity, National Westminster Bank plc, the CDS spread
held relatively steady around 40bps. The other main UK banks, as yet not separated
into ringfenced and non-ringfenced from a CDS perspective, traded between 33 and
79bps at the end of the period.

The ringfencing of the big four UK banks (Barclays, Bank of Scotland/Lloyds, HSBC
and RBS/Natwest Bank plc) transferred their business lines into retail (ringfenced) and
investment banking (non-ringfenced) entities.

In February, Fitch put the UK AA sovereign long-term rating on Rating Watch Negative
as a result of Brexit uncertainty, following this move with the same treatment for UK
banks and a number of government-related entities.

There were minimal other credit rating changes during the period. Moody’s revised the
outlook on Santander UK to positive from stable to reflect the bank’s expected
issuance plans which will provide additional protection for the its senior unsecured
debt and deposits.

Page 177



Page 178



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	2 Statement of Accounts 2018/19
	Statement of Accounts 2018/19 - Appendix A
	Statement of Accounts 2018/19 - Appendix B

	3 Internal Audit Update
	4 Treasury Management Operations 2018/19

